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CENTAVR

Adyvise. Inform. Connect.

Our vision

We will be the ‘go to’ company in the international Marketing
Services and Legal sectors for:

»  Advising businesses on how to improve their performance
and ROI;

Informing customers uging data, content & insight with
the provision of business intelligence productg:

Offering training and advisory services through digital
learning initiatives and on-fine programmes; and

Caonnecting specific communities through media and events.

We w l prov de cutting -edge insight and analysis, bulding strorg
end tasting relationships with our custormers and aiming to deliver
long-term suslainable returns to our shareholders,

Qur business

Centavur is an international provider of business information, training
and specialst consultancy that inspires and enables people to excel
at what they do within the market ng and lega professions. Our Xeim
anct The Lawyer business units serve Lhe marketing and legal sectors
respectively and. across both, our customer centric approach enab es
us to offer a wde range of products and services targoted at he'ping
them add valie.

Our reputation is based on the trust and corfidence ansing from a
deep understanding of these sectors ard nnovatior o sat sfy what
our customers need: wg have developed a strong track record for
providng insight, conlent, data and traimng. Cur key strengths are the
expertise of our pecpie, the quality of our brards and products. ard
our ability to harmess techrology to innovate continualy and develop
our customer offering. This enab'es us to help our customers raise
the r aspi-aticns and delyer better performarce,

Eﬁﬁjf%momron

o {E yearahead cor

REVIEW

Contents

STRATEGIC REPORT
Introduction

Highlights of the year
Chairman’s Statement
Strategy

Performance: CEC Review
Key Performance indicators
(Financial & Non-Financial)
Performance: Financial Review
Risk Management

Viability Statement

Section 172 Statement
Environmental, Social and
Governance

GOVERNANCE REPORT
Board of Directors

Executive Cornmittee
Directors' Report

Direclors’ Slalermenl on
Corporate Governance

Audit Committee Report
Nomination Committee Report
Rermuneration Committee Report
Statement of Directors’
Responsibifities

FIMAMCIAL STATEMEMTS
indapendent Auditor's Report
Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

OTHER INFORMATION
Five Year Record

Directors, Advisers and Other
Corporate Information

GYSTERCATCHERS

fo

TOMOTTIA'S Tiews today




STRATEGIC REPORT ‘

Highlights of the year

Strategic

Centaur performed well in the initial months of the year and was on track to achieve the organic revenue growth set out
under our Margin Acceleration Plan 2022 (MAP22) in addition to the benefit of 2019 cost savings.

We took immediate clear and decisive action to mitigate the impact of Covid, protect the health and safety of our employees
and customers and to ensure the long-term financial security of the business. 1his included improving our digital capabilities
and moving our face-to-face training sessions, and landmark events, online. We also halted recruitment, reduced Board and
senior management remuneration, froze marketing expenditure and suspended our dividend payment.

This allowed us to recover gradually over the course of the second half of the year, to the point where we had sufficient
confidence to review and update our strategy to drive organic revenue and profit growth over the next three years.

In January 2021, we announced our Margin Acceleration Plan 2023 {(MAP23}). Our aim is now to raise Adjusted1 EBITDA
margins to 23% by 2023 while increasing revenue to at least £45m.

As a fundamental part of MAP23, we will priaritise investment and resource allocation for our Flagship 4 brands -
Econsultancy, Influencer Intelligence, Mini MBA and The Lawyer — with our wider portfolio of Core Brands playing

an important role in creating opportunities for Centaur.

Operational

Our brands have proven resilient throughout the pandemic, clearly demonstrating the benefit of our investment in digital
transformation in recent years.

At the onset of the pandemic, we moved quickly to adapt our training and events to an online format, allowing us to deliver
our products and services and to maintain our customer relationships.

While revenues at both Xeim and The Lawyer were severely impacted by the initial stages of the pandemic, both business
segments recovered over the course of the second half of the year, Highlights includeq:

Mini MBA saw strong demand for its online courses, including new bespoke offerings

The Festival of Marketing was held online and attracted over 3,900 delegates

The Lawyer achieved a full-year corporate subscription renewal rate of 106%, demonstrating its continued value
to UK and international law firms.

The pandemic had a severe impact on the MarketMakers telemarketing business which the Board teok the difficult and
sensitive decision to close. We have retained Really B2B, the award-winning demand generation agency.

Financial

Centaur reported revenues from continuing operations of £32.4m (2019: £39.6m), reflecting the severe impact of the pandemic
on our customers and events.

Centaur posted an improved Adjusted EBITDA margin of 12% (201%: 10%), which benefited from an increase in H2 2020
margin compared with H1 2020,

The Group reported an improved adjusted operating profit of £nil (2019: a loss of £1.2m). On a statutory basis the Group made
an operating loss of £2.3m (2019; a loss of £7.8m).

Through a focus on prudent financial management and continuing tight control of costs, Centaur remains financially strong
with £8.3m in cash backed up by a new three-year £10m revolving credit facility.

In May 2020, Centaur suspended payment of its final 0.5p dividend for the financial year 2019 in order to preserve cash during
the pandemic. Due to the encouraging second half performance, Centaur is recommending a 0.5p final dividend for the 2020
financial year. From 2021, Centaur is recommending a resumption of its normal dividend policy of 40% of adjusted retained
earnings, subject to a minimum of 1p per share.

't See financial performance review for defintion of adjusted results and alternative performance measures

im

Excellence in marketing

@influencerintelligence

@ Mini MBA THE LAWYER

www.centaurmedia.com
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Chairman’s statement

1 The Board is
confident Centaur
can make further
progress in 2021
towards meeting
the goais of its
MAPZ3 strategy.”

COLIN JONES
Chair
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Our immediate priorities were fo secure the
health and safety of all our employees and
customers, and t¢ manage our cash fiows
to secure the long-tesrm financial security
of the Company. The decisive actions
taken by management in response to these
challenges mean that Centaur has started
the new financial year in better shape than
many would have thought possibfe a year
ago, and this is testament to the resilience
of our people and our brands.

Difficult though 2020 inevitably was,

the Board learned some important

lessons about the strengths of Centaur's
businesses. The transfermation of recent
years, including simplification of the
operating mogdel, a reduction in central
costs, and an increased focus on the digital
delivery of Centaur's premium content,
training and consultancy services, has

left the Group better abie to withstand
shocks such as that delivered by the Covid
pandemic. It also means the Board has an

even clearer vision of its strategy for organic
growth through investing in high quality
digital products.

| want 1o pay a special tribute to the
resilience, flexibility and commitment of our
employees, and to the executive team led
by our CEQ, Swag Mukerii. Qur people have
been working from home since last March
and our leading brands within both Xeim
and The Lawyer have adapted quickly to
the very different trading environment that
confronted them. Shareholders owe them
our thanks.

As has been widely discussed and
acknowledged, the pandemic has
accelerated the shift online and the growth
of e-commerce. Mini MBA, Xeim's online
marketing course, was able to continue

its rapid growth, supported by an initiative
10 attract students from among the ranks
of the many thousands of pegple working
from home. Econsultancy, our platform for
digital marketing excellence, quickly shifted
its focus to oniine training, enabling it to
continue to win business from the many
international companies it services.

The events businesses within Xcim and

The Lawyer had 1o respond 1o the reality
that Covid restrictions and social distancing
rules meant physical gatherings were not
possible, The Festival of Marketing, normally
a two-day event at London’s Tobacco
Dock, instead ran 80 onling sessions across
five days. The Lawyer similarly pivoted to
run events online, a maove that received
particularly strong feedback from attendees.

Unfortunately, not all our businesses were
able to cope with the severe challenges
created by the pandemic. MarketMakers,
our telemarketing business in Portsmouth,
found that several of its biggest customers
stopped spending amost overnight. In July,
the Board took the difficult and sensitive
decision to close MarketMakers aithough
we have retained its Really B2B operatian,
the award-winning demand generation
agency.

Strategy

The experiences of 2020 have led to an
evolution of Centaur's strategy and of

cur Margin Acceleration Plan, which we
updated in an announcement to the market
in January 2021, Under Margin Acceleration
Plan 2023 {{MAP23’), Centaur aims to raise
Group Adjusted EBITDA margins to 23% by
2023 while increasing revenue to more than
£45m. This revénue growlih, compined with
a relatively fixed cost base, is expected to
deliver year-cn-year improvements to profit
marging.

Annuai Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decembe- 2020



The main drivers of revenue growth over
the next three years are expected to be our
Flagship 4 brands, briefly described below:

«  Econsultancy provides online training,
insight and essential information to
accelerate the performances of its
customers’ marketing and e-commerce

= Influencer inteligence Is the leading data
intelfligence and measurement platform
for influencer and talent-led marketing
campaigns

*  Mini MBA is the highly regarded online
MBA-level marketing course developed
under the Marketing Week brand

= The Lawyer is the most trusted brand
for the UK legal profession and a
leading provider of intelligence to the
global legal market

These brands have demonstrated their
resilience through the pandemic and will
be our priority for future investment and
resource allocation. You can find further
details of our strategy on page 4 and the
perfarmance of our brands in the CEO's
Review from page 10.

Group performance

Centaur's results for the year obviously
reflect the impact of Covid, and the
decisions taken to manage through the
pandemic and position the business

for recovery, including the closure of
MarketMakers. After a challenging second
quarter, which included the postponement
of a number of the Group's events, the
results have gradually improved during the
second half as the business successfully
pivoted towards online delivery of its
content, training and events.

Group underlying revenue from continuing
cperaticns fell by 16% to £32.4m. Adjusted
EBITDA for the year was £3.8m, similar

to last year, driving an improvement in the
Adjusted EBITDA margin to 12%, from 10%
in 2019. Despite the impact of Covid, the
Group achieved breakeven at the adjusted
cperating profit line, after an adjusted
operating loss of £1.2m in 2019, a much
better cutcomea than was expected in the
early stages of the pandemic.

Cash, funding and dividends

The Group began the year in a strong
position with net cash of £9.3m. However,
the onset of the pandemic in March created
significant uncertainty over future trading
and cash flows and the Board immediately
explored all options for optimising the
Group’s financial positicn and securing its
long-term future. Actions taken affected

all stakehclders, including the suspension
of dividends, the renegotiation of bank

www.centaurmedia.com

covenants, reductions in costs including
headcount, pay and incentives, and seeking
government financial support. These actions
helped the Group end the year with net
cash of £8.3m, a much better position than
anticipated nine months earlier.

Early in the pandemic Centaur accessed
the government's furlough scheme, largely
to support its employees at MarketMakers.
As | have already noted, MarketMakers was
directly and immediately hit by the impact of
the pandemic on its customers, particularly
in the SME segment. While the furlough
funding enabled us to keep those roles
open for a few maonths, it quickly became
apparent that this would not be sufficient to
support the MarketMakers business over
the longer term. After exploring all options
for this business, including restructuring and
a possible sale, the Board took the difficult
and sensitive decision to close it during the
summer of 2020.

The Group has histcrically maintained

a revolving credit facility to fund short-
term waorking capital requirements and
acquisitions, aithough it has nct drawn
on the facility for some time. As part of
its contingency planning for the impact of
Covid, the Group, with the support of its
bankers Lioyds and NatWest, was able
to negotiate more favourable covenants
on its facility, This provided the Board
with the comfort that it could continue to
operate through even the most severe
Covid scenarios. Uitimately strong cash
management has ensured the facility has
not been required.

The Board recognises the importance

of dividends to many of its shareholders
and the decisions to cancel the 2019 final
dividend of 0.5p per share, and not ta pay a
2020 interim dividend, were not taken lightly.
The Board has kept the situation under
review and now believes that the financia!
position of the Group is such that the Board
recommends a final dividend of 0.bp per
share for the 2020 financial year. The Board
is also recommending a resumption of its
normal dividend policy of distributing 40%
of adjusted retained earnings, subject to

a minimum of 1p per share. The Board

will consider resuming further returns of
capital to shareholders once the longer-term
Impact of Covid on the Group's cash flows
becomes clearar.

Governance and people

Twa new independent Non-Executive
Directors were appointed at the start

of the year, Carol Hosey as Chair of the
Remuneration Committee and Leslie-Ann
Reed as Chair of the Audit Committee.
Carol and Leslie-Ann’s insight has been

STRATEGIC REPORT ‘

especially valuable in addressing the
significant people, remuneration and
financial issues raised by the Covid
pandemic. This combined with the
experience of William Eccleshare, our
Senicr Independent Director, has ensured
the Board has benefited from a stable,
enthusiastic and effective membership
throughout the year.

Centaur is a business that operates with
integrity, transparency and accountability,
and the Board remains committed to the
highest standards of corporate governance.
More detail on our governance policies is
set out from page 43.

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires the Board's decision-making to
reflect the interests of a broader group of
stakeholders, including employees. On page
31, you will find cur Section 172 statement
which highlights the initiatives the Company
has taken to develop its culture and to live
up to its values.

We are particularly proud of the empioyee
panel that we established in 2018 to
promote Diversity, Inclusion, Community and
Engagement (DICE), which reports to Swag
Mukerji and has Carol Hosey as its non-
axecLtive sponsor. In 2020 BICE worked
closely with employees to implement a
series of policies and programmes to help
Centaur build a more diverse and inclusive
workplace. DICE aiso played a vital role

in supporting the business through the
pandemic by setting up a series of virtual
social activities and online initiatives to help
employees cope mentally and physically
with the challenging circumstances. The
impact of these programmes and policies
was measured through qualitative employee
feadback which was extremsly positive.

Outlook

While the progress of the pandemic remains
uncertain, the early success of the UK
Government's vaccination programme gives
ground for hope that trading and warking
conditions will continue to normalise over
the course of 2021. The Group continues to
maintain a robust balance sheet and based
on the current momentum in the business,
and in particular our Flagship 4 brands, the
Board is confident Centaur can make further
progress in 2021 towards meeting the goals
of its MAP23 strategy.

COLIN JONES
Chair

16 March 2021
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Strategy

OUR FLAGSHIP 4

NXeim

Excellence in marketing

Mini MBA
i : Revenues by 2023 justed EBITDA margin by 2023

Marketing

@®influencer intelligence
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Certauris an nternational provider
of nusiress information. raining
and specialist consultancy that
mspires and enables customers

to excel at what they do, raiss

e asprrations and dehver hetter
pertormance

In recent years, the Group has evolved
rapidly as we focus on the paid provision

of business intelligence, consultancy,
training and lead generation, building on the
reputation and trust established from our
history in providing highly valued thought-
leading content in innovative ways.

www.centaurmedia.com
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STRATEGIC REPORT '

In 2019, Centaur completed a radical
transformation programme to create a
simpler and more efficient Group focused
on two attractive sectors: the marketing and
lagal professions. By divesting 21 of our
smaller and ex-growth brands, we simplified
our business, raised £16.3m net cash and
established the platform to drive margin
enhancement through profitable revenue
growth and margin and cost synergies.

As a result of this transformation, Centaur
is a more effective and efficient business
comprising two business units - Xeim and
The Lawyer.

Xeim takes its name from eXcellence In
Marketing and its purpose is to accelerate

performance for marketers. The Xeim
portfolio brings together the Group's
marketing brands to deliver business
infarmation and specialist consultancy

to the marketing sector. it achieves this
by providing the advice, intelligence and
connections that marketers need to set
themselves apart from their peers. Our
market-leading brands and industry experts
provide insight, analysis and proprietorial
content, attracting over § millicn digital
contact points every month, Xeim brands
include Influencer Intelligence, Marketing
Week, Mini MBA, Creative Review,
Econsultancy, the Festival of Marketing,
Really B2B and Xeim Labs.
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Strategy

CONTINUED

In The Lawyer, Cenfaur awns the most trusted brand for the UK lagal profession and

a leading provider of intelligence to the global legal market, delivered via a scalable digital
platform. The Lawyer has built on its heritage and reputation for providing incisive analysis
of the UK legal market to develop a much more international business providing market
intelligence to the warld's largest law firms. The Lawyer courits 90% of the top 50 UK

THE LAWY LR

and top 50 US law firms in London among its corporate subscribers.

MAP23

—

Three-year plan to grow revenues to >£45m and profit margins to 23% by 2023

.

An international provider of market inteltigence and specialist consultancy

Flagship ¢

- Wi

Core Brands
Customer focus

International growth
Control of costs

Qur strategic focus is to deliver the

new targets set out under our Margin
Acceleration Plan, known as MAP23, An
evolution of MAP22, we updated this plan
in January 2021 following a review of our
strategy in the wake of the pandemic. As
part of MAP23, we are focused on raising
Group Adjusted EBITDA margins to 23% by
2023 while organically increasing revenue
10 more than £45m, Centaur's resilience
during the pandemic, e Cutipary’s strong
balance sheet and improving revenue gives
the Board confidence that we will deliver on
these targets.

MAP23 is intended to deliver its targets
through a combination of profitable organic
revenue growth and operational cost
leverage. The most important actions
inclucte:

*  Focusing invesboent and resource
allocation on our Flagship 4 brands
- the four brands which we have
identified as our key growth drivers
encompassing Econsultancy, Influencer
Intelligence. Mini MBA and The Lawyer;

+  Dolighting our custnmers through
excellent customer service;

« Investing in technology and continuing
to develop our digital offering through
new prnducts and services;

* Increasing focus on cross-selling Xeim's
sulile of pruducts and services to
ontorprico clionts;

= Craaling furthcr opportunitios for grosath
thrriigh Xeim's wider portfolio of Core
Brands;

|+ Investing in marketing, building out our

marketing teams o increase birand
profie and sell uur praducts to a
hroarier rango of international clints;
and

«  Continuing th levarage our cost base
by managing costs tightly as revenus
grows.

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31Dscember 2020
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Structure

In 2012, we restructured Centaur Intc a much simpler business consisting of Xeim, the name adopted by our marketing business, and
The Lawyer. From 2019, we started reporting revenue in a new, clearer way to reflect our simpler portfolio and more accurately represent
Centaur's different revenue streams. Following the restructuring of MarketMakers {outlined in greater detail below), we have now closed
the telermarketing servicas arm of our businass and 3o, from this puinl, will report revenue for Xeim and The Lawyer under the following
categories;

+  Premium content comprising subscription-driven paid content «  Events inciuding sponsorship and delegate revenue from
services; conferences, awards, and large-scale events;

+  Marksting senvices from campaign management and marketing «  Marketing solutions including display and bespoke client
automation; campaigns; and

+ raining and advisory from marketing consultancy, digital *  Recruitment advertising being sector-focused job
learning and online training; advertisements including digital advertising.

The chart below shows which brands derive revenue from each category:

Marketing Training and Marketing Recruitment
Brand Premium Content Services Advisory Events Solutions Advertising

Econsuftancy
Influencer Intelligence
Mini MBA

Festival of Marketing

Creative Review
/Design Week

Marketing Week - ’
Fashion & Beauty Monitor
Oystercatchers

Really B28 Lt

The Lawyer %

We have been encouraged by the continued improvement in the quality of our revenue streams, both following the transformation of our
portfolio as well as over the course of 2020. 41% of our revenue from continuing operations came from our premium content {2019: 36%)
while only 3% (2019: 6%} was derived from recruitment advertising. Despite the impact that Covid has had on Centaur, we are pleased
to see the quality of our revenue continue to Improve.

The charts below show the transformation of Centaur over the last 5 years with higher value revenues from premium content, marketing
services and training and advisory increasing from 36% in 2016 to 76% in 2020 and revenue from events, marketing sclutions and
recruitment advertising reducing from 64% to 24% in that same period. Revenue from cutside the United Kingdom has also increased,
to 31% from 24% in 2019, with a lift of 4% to £10.0m as Centaur extends its international reach.

3%

Prermiurm Content
Marketing Services
Training and Advisory
Events

Marksting Solutions
Recruitment Advertising

Ve

‘ Revenue 2020

www.centaurmedia.com

Revenue 2016

® % & & 0 @




Centaur Media Plc

Our portfolio

To achieve aur MAP23 ambitions, we will
focus investment and resource allocation
on the Fiagship 4 brands which we have
identified as the key drivers for revenue
growth aver the next three years, As
cutlined above, the Flagship 4 comprises
Econsuitancy, Influencer inteligence, Mini
MBA and The Lawyer. Each of these brands
has performed consistently well throughaout
the pandemic, winning new contracts and

witnessing growth in customer engagement.

Econgtitancy is surengial platiorn
1hat tansforms the knowledge.
swills and needse: of housanas of
markabing. agital and ecaommerse
arofessionals to acnicve Adigiral

e arkasting aceliencs

Our aim for 2021 is to build upen
Econsultancy's position as the market-
leading Digital Transformation specialist.
We will continue to improve its “blended
learning” offering, combining onfine learning
with live training sessions, launch virtual
Econsultancy Live events and expand the
“digital subject matter” content on the
website.

Mini MBA

What could you
do with a more
confident
team?

@influencer intelligence

iluence Intelligence is Gl
market-leading dat inteligence
seaoh And mansurcmant piatfarm
for iniluercer ard 1aieni-"ed
nrarkonng NAIGNS [

dato-ole RIS

SRt ar, arad

Daspite the challenges posed by the
pandamic, we remain confident in a product
that gives us access to an industry that

is forecast to be worth more than US$15
hillion in 20222, Over the course of the
coming year, we will continue to expand

the number of influencers covered, launch
new tools for campaign management and
measurement and introduce an ecommerce
“Influencer Light” offering for SME
businesses.

»  WELCOME
TOTHE
CLASSROOM

WIBAS Do o NBA- e o

amiarwaEting

Following a very strong year in 2020, we
will continue to develop our Mini MBA
customer programme through the launch
of a new and improved editicn of the
marketing course. We will also continue to
drive the development of new partnerships
through targeted marketing campaigns as
we expand our sales tearm with a particular
focus on building the Mini MBA brand in
North America. To support these efforts,
we are also launching a new, dynamic Mini
MBA marketing website which will include
case studies and testimonials.

* Source: Mediakix data

Annual Report and Financial Statements for tne year ended 31 December 2020



THE LAWYER

The Lawyer — The imust trusted
brand for the UK iega grsiession
and afeading provider of
intelligence to the gobi leyal
market delivered via a scaiable
digital plattorm.

Client renewal rates and cnline usage
performance remained strong for 2020,
For the coming year we will develop new
paid content and products in conjunction
with the input and collaberation of our
customers. We also take the learnings
from the virtual events we held during the
pandemic to launch new and improved
hybrid events. These events will use
technology to increase the giobal reach
for speakers and attendees, virtua! speed
networking and community building apps
to create events that combine the best of
both worlds.

Qutside the Flagship 4, our wider portfolio

of Core Brands will continue to support
Centaur's growth and play an important

role in creating opportunities for Centaur,
through the cross-selling of our products and
services, infroducing us to a wider customer
hase and demoenstrating the breadth of cur
business intelligence. These include:

* Festival of Marketing — an annual
thought leadership, learning and
netwarking event that has become the
largest global event dedicated to brand
marketers, Having successfully held the
event virtually in 2020, we plan to offer &
bespoke event for 2021, combining the
networking benefits of a physical evert
with digital additions to make it accessible
to a wider, global audience. This wil!
include the introduction of a digital annual,
festival pass for corporate customers.

Festival
“Marketing

www.centaurmedia.com
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To complement the main gvent, in 2021
we will also be launching two new events
to be held in March and June;

Marketing Week - for over 40 years,
the most influential source of marketing
informaticn in the UK. In 2021, we will
continue to build on the Marketing
Week Knowledge Bank which allows
Xeim to generate additional revenue for
proprietary research and white papers
published on the website;

Really B2B - as demand generation
and ABM experts, Really B2B delivers
creative campaigns tc drive its clients’
return on marketing investment. It was
the most awarded marketing services
business at the 2020 B2B Marketing
Awards, securing wins for its work
with M&S, British Gas and Kettyle Irish
Foods. Going forward, the team will
continue to focus on attracting higher
value enterprise clients while working
on integrated content and demand-led
campaigns by cross-selling with the
Xeim Labs team;

Xeim Labs - the single access paint
to Xeim’s community of marketers,
which accelerates the effectiveness

of marketers by targeting marketers
and creatives. 'n 2021, we will build a
stronger link and integration between
digital events and digital online content
1o drive more leads for clients, as well

s i o w

N v "

1,391

¢
o+

11,818

as offering commercial content-led
research packages in partnership with
Econsultancy; and

Oystercatchers — as one cf the
Financial Times most highly regarded
management consultancies in the UK,
Oystercatchers have distinguished
thermselves from the competition in an
increasingly competitive marketplace by
providing best in class agency pitch and
business performance transformation
advice to its clients. It believes that the
right team, the right ways of working
and the right client:agency relationships
transform business performance.

Connect s
thire

In 2021, our focus is 10 continue to

drive organic revenue growth over
the next three years to deliver our
MAP23 strategy. To do this, we
will focus invesiment and resource
allocation on our Flagship 4 brands
while continuing to develop our widsr
portiolio, increasing focus on cross-
selling our products and building on
their synergies. We are conficent in our
plan: the targets are ambilious
and achievable and, with our strong
balance sheet and Lnigque portiolio
of brands, leaves us well-placed to
capitalise on fulure opportunities.
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Performance

CEO REVIEW

1 We will continue to
focus on providing
cutting-edge
insight, training and
analysis, building
strong and lasting
relationships with
Our customers and
delivering fong-
ferm sustainable
returns 1o our
shareholders as we
amerge from the
pandemic.”

SWAG MUKERJI
Chigf Executive

Overview of 2020

This is my second report to you as Centaur
CEOQ, and it comes on the back of what
has been an extraordinary year. it is hard {o
underestimate how challenging 2020 was,
with vast swathes of our customers, our
industry and the wider econamy forced to
shut down for extended periods. | am pleased
by the rasilience and agility the Group has
shown, driven by the energy, cammitment,
drive and can-do tenacity of our people, to
whaom we owe our sincere thanks.

Looking back to tast January, Centaur
made a strong start to the year, building

on the momenturn that we carried over
from the final quarter of 2019. It meant that
we were well on track to deliver pianned
revenue growth, benefit from the 2019 cost
savings and achieve the margin target set
out under MAPZ22, aur Margin Acceleration
Plan strategy.

Wae startad to feel the impact of Covid
from March and took immediiate action to
mitigate the effect on our clients and our
business, protect the health and safety of
our employees and customers and ensure
Centaur's lang-term financial stability.

The enforced closure of large parts of the
UK economy had a severs impact on our
ravenues in the second quarter, but the
measures we took significantly reduced the
effect on our profitability from the resuiting
revenue 10ss.

Over the second half of the year, trading
saw a gradual recovery, and this gave us
sufficient confidence 1o review and update
our strategy. We now have new targets for
our Margin Acceleration Plan, now known
as MAP22, As part of MAP23, we are
focused on raising Group Adjusted EBITDA
margins to 23% by 2023 while increasing
revenue 1o rmore than £45m.

MAP23 wili be driven by our Flagship

4 brands - Econsultancy, Influencer
Inteligence, Mini MBA and The Lawyer —
supported by our wider partfolio of Care
Brands. The Flagship 4 are all products that
did not exist in their current guise five years
age and are each a clear demonstration
that we can inncvate and build growing new
products based on the trust and confidence
in the editorial content of our brands.

Results for the year

At the start of 2020, Centaur was emerging
from a radical transformation which saw it
rashaped into a sicapler business focusad
on two sectors — markeling services through
Xgim and legal services through The Lawyer.
We were well placed to achieve the revenue
agrowth set out under our MAPZ2Z strategy,

in addition to the £6m of annualised cost
savings that had already been delivered by
the end of 20189.

The disruption caused by Covid led 10 a
significant impact on revenues and EBITDA,
but the invastment we had made in digital
transformation in recent years ensured that
we could continue o sarve our customers.
We successfully maved aur training and
events to an online format, as { will outline in
greater depth below.

The upshot was that our Adjusted EBITDA
margin was sustained. Our brands
remained resilient and this, combined with
the impact of our significant 2018 cost
cutting measures and adaptation to the
new environment, gave us breathing space
throughout the first lockdown,

Over the second half of the year, our
business saw a recovery with growing
momentum, providing us the confidence
to put in place our MAP23 strategy to
guide Centaur over the coming years,
The transformation of Centaur over the
iast § years is evidenced with higher
value revenues from premium content,
marketing services and fraining and advisory
increasing from 36% in 2016 {0 76% in
2020 and revenue from avents, marketing
solutions and recruitment advertising
reducing frorm 64% to 24%. Revenue
from outside the United Kingdom has also
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increased to 31% from 24% in 2019 with a
lift of 4% to £10.0m as Centaur extends its
international reach.

Nonetheless, the severe impact of the
pandemic on our customers and events
affected our results for 2020. Centaur
posted a break-even adjusted operating
profit and a statutory operating loss of
£2.3m on revenues of £32.4m (2015
£39.6m), with Group Adjusted EBITDA
margin growing from 10% to 12%.

Through a focus on prudent financial cash
management and continuing tight control

of costs, Centaur ended the year with a
cash balance of £8.3m (2019: £9.3m).

This is after paying £1.2m in exceptional
costs in H2, mainly related to the closure of
MarketMakers, which will be cutlined below.
The Group also has access to a new three-
year revolving credit facifity of £10m.

Dividend

On 27 May 2020, the Group announced
that it was cancelling payment of the final
(.5p dividend relating to the 2019 financial
year in order to preserve cash during the
pandemic. The Board also decided not to
pay the 2020 interim dividend and kept

the situation under review. The Board now
proposes a 0.5p final dividend relating to the
2020 financial year and is recommending
that Centaur resumes its normal dividend
policy of 40% of adjusted retained earnings,
subject to a minimum of 1p per share. The
Board will also consider resuming further
returns of capital once the longer-term
impact of Covid on the Group's cash flow
becomes clearer.

Operational Review

Centaur comprises two business units,
Xeim and The Lawyer. Xeim is Centaur's
largest business and centributes 80% of
Group revenues, with The Lawyer making
up the balance. Each business unit is run
on a stand-alone basis with dedicated
management teams supported by
streamlined central functions.

Both Xeim and The Lawyer saw revenues
dacline over the course of 2020, which
reflects the loss of event delegates and
recruitment advertising sales due to the
pandemic. Our premium content revenues
were impacted to a lesser extent with some
recovery of subscription renewal rates being
experienced in the second half of the year.
A key contributor to this was the investment
we made in developing our digital
capabilities cver recent years. As | wil
touch upon below, our abilty to harness
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technology to continue to engage our
existing customers and win new business
has been a crucial element in the resilience
of our brands across both Xeim and

The Lawyer.

Looking forward, brands from Xeim and
The Lawyer will play an important role in the
implementation of our MAP23 strategy.

»
xelm

Excoflence in marketing
Xeim was formed in early 2019 and brings
our marketing brands into a single business
unit, allowing us to manage them more
effectively, cross-sell our products more
efficiently, eliminate duplication of effort and
enhance their margins. Xeim represented
80% of revenues in 2020 and posted a
14% decrease in underlying revenue, a
40% decrease in Adjusted EBITDA and an
Adjusted EBITDA margin of 17%.

Xeim interacts with its customaers by

using the power of its brands to generate
different types of revenues, creating both
cross-selling opportunities and operational
synergies. Xeim's customer centric strategy
is achieving success with its largest
customers as we create more tailored
sclutions and integrated senvices across
muftiple brands.

in 2020, Xeim increased revenue from its
top 50 customers to 34% of total revenues
(2019: 30%) with an average spend that
only reduced by 7%, compared with the
14% overall decline in underlying revenue.
In order to increase the strategic focus on
cross-selling Xeim brands to cusiomers
within this valuable customer segment,

we have recently created a centre of sales
axcellence in Xeim. In addition, there are
specific product teams for each of the

Mini MBA, Econsultancy and Influencer
Inteligence Flagship brands with a separate
unit for the Core Brands.

Xeim brands will play an important role in
the implementation of our MAP23 strategy,
with particular focus and investment

being placed on the Flagship brands
Econsultancy, Infiuencer Intelligence and
the Mini MBA.

STRATEGIC REPORT ‘
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Digital Skills Index

Econsultancy is our digital platform that
provides onling training, insight and
essential inforration to transform the
knowledge, skills and mindset of thousands
of marketing, digital and ecommerce
professionals. It focuses on subject matter
areas which underpin digital excellence,
defining ‘what good looks like' and
customers receive reports, webinars and
analyst sessions as part of their subscription
package.

During 2020, Econsultancy initially
experienced some disruption and delays as
a result of Covid, as companies cut costs
and deferred spend. The team transitioned
swiftly and effectively to instructaor-led
training tc ensure they could deliver best
practice, in a virtual environmenrt, rather than
simply replicating face-to-face workshops
online. Cver the course of the vear, we put
greater emphasis on this “blended learning”
oftering and average scores stayed at

over 90%, very good or excellent, in this
revised format.

The transition made Econsultancy perfectly
placed tc mest the demand for training

in Digital Transformation and Ecommerce
and this has accelerated throughaut 2020,
Demand for services has increased over the
last six months as companies focus more
on digital transformation and new ways of
working, with a significant number of new,
global enterprise clients signing up for multi-
year capability programmes. As a resutt of
the pandemic, subscription renewal rates
decreased significantly in Q2, but recovered
in H2 such that the year-on-year renewal
rate remained flat.

Influencer Intelligence is our Market-leading
data intelligence search and measurement
platform for influencer and talent-led
marketing campaigns, providing data-driven
information, tools and proprietary analysis.

Influencer Intelligence started 2020 with
strong momentum, but the pandemic badly
impacted its target customer segments,
primarily in the fashion and retail sectors.
As a result, we achieved renewal rates for
the year of 71%, a significant fall from 88%
in 2019,

Despite this, we remained confident that the
market would recover and continued with
our planned product development. Over

the course of 2020, Influencer Inteligence
increased the volume of influencers on

its platform that are supported with full
analytics functionality. It also created a new
design, look and feel to the platform and

a direct link to Xeim's Fashion & Beauty
Manitor service.

Additionally, Influencer Inteligence launchad
its new campaign measurement tool in
February 2021 which enables marketers to
measure the true impact of thair influencear
markating investments across Instagram,
Facebook, YouTube, Twitter and TikTok.
This is a key driver in the future growth of
the business.

The Mini MBA, cur online MBA-level course
in marketing deveioped under the Marketing
Week brand had a very strong year and
continued to build on its successfui 2019
with delegate numbers and revenue
increasing by approximately 90%.

The Mini MBA is a good example of cur
product innovation over recent vears and
responded quickly to the challenges posed
by the initial lockdown in Spring 2020. We
swiftly implamented an ecommerce strategy
to attract single user MBA candidates.
supported by an enhanced markating
campaign targeted at employees working
from home. This proved very successful and
contributed to a doubling of delegates over
the first half of 202Q.

Since launch, there have besn almost
11,000 global participants with 86 different
nationalities. The course has a Net Promoter
Score of +75 with customer satisfaction
running at a commendable 98%.

The Mini MBA comprises two courses:

»  The Marketing Week Minl MBA in
Marketing: A CPD accredited, digital,
MBA level course covering the same
core marketing modules as leading
MBA programmes; and

*  The Mini MBA in Brand Management: A
course which provides participants with
the knowledge required {o become a
fully trained brand manager. It enables
participants to take their career and the
success of the brands they run to the
next level.

Over the course of the year, we have run
add-on brand managerment courses and
bespoke work for companies such as
Google, Flight Centre, Coles Supermarkets
in Australia, the Marketing Academy and
Woestpac Bank.
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Xeim's wider portfolic of Core Brands
comprising Marketing Week, the Festival of
Marketing, Creative Review, Qystercatchers,
Design Week, Fashion Monitor, Foresight
News, Really B2B and Xeim Labs, will alsc
continue to play an impartant role in creating
opportunities for Centaur by demonstrating
the depth of our business intelligence and
our ability to connect and provide valuable
services to marketers and senior leaders.

The Festival of Marketing is a prime example
of how our digital capabilities allowed us

to adapt to the 'new ncrmal' of online and
virtual events. Not long into the pandemic it
became clear that our usual two-day format
at Tobacco Dock would not be feasible

in the circumstances, so our team swiftly
repositioned the Festival of Marketing as a
paid-for enline learning, development ana
networking experience in Cctober 2020,

In some ways, it was our most ambitious
event to date, comprising 80 sessions
across five days, with the biggest names
in marketing joining to address a different
marketing issue each day. Highlights
Included sessions with Nile Rodgers, the
artist, producer and songwriter responsible
for some of the most recognisable

music in the pop era; Richard Curtis,
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the internationally acclaimed writer and
director; and the Cnief Marketing Officers
of global brands such as Lego, GSK and
GE. 2020 had similar delegate numbers
to the previous year and the change to
an online format saw an increase in gross
profit margin.

The Xeim Labs operation accelerates the
effectiveness of companies looking to target
marketers and decision-makers. The team
provides a single access point to reach
Xeim's unrivalled community of marketing
professionals with a multi-channel approach
to delivery. The team brings together
content-led soluticns, insights, audiences
and outcomes by working with our Flagship
4 and Core brands.

Marketing Week continues to be at the
centre of the marketing industry and
underping Xeim's reach and reputation

in the secter, providing marketers with
content of unrivalled authority and integrity.
Daily content delivered through our digital
platform provokes debate about the biggest
questions in marketing and the important
issues that elevate marketing as a driving
force in business.

®influencer intclligence

The state of
Influencer
Marketing

Following a challenging 2019,
MarketMakers saw a further sharp fal;

in revenue due to the crisis, as several
major customers were hit by disruption

in their own markets. We took decisive
Actinn to restructure MarketMakers, with
the unfortunate loss of around 180 roles.
Closing the telesales arm of MarketMakers
and focusing on the more profitable Really
B2B arm will lead to short term decreased
revenues, but margins will improve as wilt
the profitability of the brand.

Towards the end of 2020, we appointed Will
Johnston as Group Commercial Director

to lead the Xeim Sales Programme which
will drive a custamer centric strategy to
cross-sell our brands. Will is a proven B2B
commercial cperator with considerable
sales leadership experience in high growth
and subscription-based businesses and |
welcome him to Centaur.

Looking ahead to 2021, our strong

and resilient Xeim brands will all play an
important role in our MAP23 strategy. While
Econsultancy, Influencer Intelligence and
the Mini MBA will have particularly important
parts to play in achieving cur targets, we will

also be looking to the rest of our core Xeim

brands to make a sizeable contribution.
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THE LAWYVR
The Lawyer is a leading provider of
inteligence to the global legal markst,
generating revenue from digital
subscriptions, live and online events,

and marketing sclutions. The Lawyer
represented 20% of revenues in 2020

and posted a 21% decrease in underlying
revenue, a 34% decrease in Adjusted
EBITDA and an Adjusted EBITDA margin

of 33%. The fall in revenue and Adjusted
EBITDA reflects the impact of Covid

on events and recruitment advertising
revenues partially offset by a 9% increase in
underlying premium content revenue.

Cver the course of recent years, The Lawyer
has successfully moved to a multi-channel
digital platform and was a key driver of

our growth at the start of 2020. As the
pandemic took hold, The Lawyer's strong
digital presence allowed it to maintain its
role as the most trusted brand for the UK
lagal profession and a leading provider of
intellgence to the global legal market.

The Lawyer saw a substantial increase in
its digital engagement with subscribers
over the course of the year. The number
of subscribers visiting TheLawysr.com

per month increased by 17% compared
with 2019, Subscribers also increased the

THE LAWYER

VIRTUAL EVENTS

Building and nurturing online

communities to facilitate
powerful conversations.

frequency of their visits to the website, with
the number of subscriber visits per month
increasing by 29%.

In the first quarter of the year, it launched
Harizon, a daily early morning email that
draws on The Lawyer's data and research
cdpabilities to pinpoint emerging trends in
the business of law and was opened by
8,800 subscribers per day in 2020. While
only available to subscribers, users do not
have to visit TheLawyer.com 1o read Horizon
as all the content is in their inbox, so
interaction is an additicnal source of strong
subscriber digital engagement. This strong
digital engagement supported our highly
sugcessful subscription renewal efforts,
with a renewal rate of 106% for 2020
demonstrating the trust put in the brand by
the international legal market.

As with Xeim, we took an early decision

to move our highest profile events for The
Lawyer online. After a swift turnaround from
our team, we launched a series of digital
events at The Lawyer through in-House
Financial Services 2020 ('IHFS’), a virtual
conference attended by cver 220 people
and including exclusive virtual rouncitablas
with handpicked attendees and full plenary
sessions. The NPS from the event was +45,
which is as Nigh as the equivalent face-to-
face event. Cver the course of 2020 we
delivered on more than 100 different virual
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events, with over 6,000 total attendees.

These capabilities were instrumental

in seeing The Lawyer named Business
Information Product of the Year at the PPA
Awards, the industry Oscars, and it is well-
positioned to build on this success in 2021.

People and culture

Our executive commitiee is committed

to ensuring we davelop a culture that
supports, engages and empowers
employees to fulfil their potential. It is a
culture that underpins our business ambition
and we continue 1o develop internal training
plans and communications processes to
ensure our employees’ success — and

has become even more important in an
environment where our workforce has been
working from home.

Across the Group, the gender balance

is a female:male ratio of 58:42. At Board
level, 33% of our Directors are female, as

is the femaie reprasentation on our senior
leadership team. There is stilt much work to
be done to encourage and promote women
and ethnic minorities to senior leadership
positions, We had 82% maternity returners
and pan time working arrangements have
increased to aver 10% of cur employees.

In 2019 we established a workforce
advisory panel to cover diversity, inclusion,

e - e ——t ——
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culture and engagement (DICE) to ensure
that our culture supports and empowers
our employees and promaetes their
ongoing development. DICE reports

to me and frequently meets with the
exgcutive committee, There is also a
nominated Non-Executive Director, Carol
Hosey, tc oversee the working of DICE.

In recent months 1t has been instrumental
in supporting our response to the Black
Lives Matter mevement and in developing
our Antiracism, Inclusivity and LGBTQ+
pledges. A safe space has also been set up
by DICE to support colleagues.

Qur policles and working practicas underpin
an inclusive working environment and
ensure that Centaur takes a proactive

and progressive approach to supporting
diversity. | am extremely proud of the
fabulous achievements of DICE since

it started. Our hiring policy is focused

on appointing the best person for the

Job irrespective of race, gender, sexual
orientation or disability. The Company also
offers a range of mental health, wellbeing
and fithess sessions.

During the pandemic, enhanced
communication has been a key focus of our
activity to foster a culture of inclusion and to
keep up morale and focus. This has taken
the form of weekly staff updates, monthly all

staff Q&A sessions, monthly business Town
Hall sessions, improvement project working
groups, CEQ breakfasts and informal group
catch up sessions. DICE has also organised
a range of social activities including a
monthly quiz, book and film groups, and
virtual Summer and Christmas celebrations.

We have also enhanced the range of
support available to support mental and
physical wellbeing. We have trained Mental
Health First Aiders across the business and
a comprehensive Employea Assistance
Programme. 2020 saw the launch of an
online GP App and a number of webinars
and initiatives to support coping with
change and uncertainty, building resilience
and warking from home effectively. We have
also arranged more than fifty 121 coaching
sessicns and warkshops for line managers
1o equip them to lead teams remotely. We
have 15 formal mentoring arrangements in
place and are looking to increase this during
2021. Reverse mentoring is also on the
agenda.

Engagement and mativation are tracked
on a weekly basis using our in-house
engagement tocl and there has been
increased focus on performance
development,
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Summary

If 2019 marked a new chapter in Centaur's
evolution, then 2020 was a year of testing
our new structure 1o is iimits.

| am pleased that Centaur emerged from
last year a more resilient and agile business,
something which can be attributed to

three things — the investment in digital and
subsequent adaptation of our brands to the
new environment; cost-cutting and cash
management measures we put in place
both prior to and during the pandemic

and, most iImportantly, the expertise,

the commitment and tenacity shown by

our employees in extremely challenging
circumstances.

As | look to 2021 and beyond, while
uncertainty remains, our strong balance
sheet and growing momentum give me
confidence for the future. We have the
strategy and resources in play to achieve
organic growth and the targets set out
under our MAP23 strategy, and both our
Flagship 4 and other Core Brands will
have impaortant roles to play in hitting those
targets.

SWAG MUKERJI
Chief Executive
16 March 2021
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Key Performance Indicators

(FINANCIAL AND NON-FINANCIAL)

The Group has set out the following core financial and non-financial metrics o measure the Group's
performe . The KPIs are monitored by the Board and the focus on these measures will support
the successful implementation of the MAP23 strategy. These indicators are discussed in more detail
in the CEO and financial reviews.

Financial

2020
2020

-2%

2019

2019

Underlying revenue decline’ Adjusted EBITDA margin®

The growth/(decling) in total revenue adjusted to exclude the Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue where Adjusted
impact of event timing differences, as well as the revenue EBITDA is defined as adjusted cperating profit before
contribution arising from acquired or disposed businesses. depreciation and impairment of tangible assets, and amortisation

and impairment of intangible assets other than those acquired
through a business combination.

Adjusted diluted EPS Cash conversion’
Diluted earnings per share calculated using the adjusted The percentage by which adjusted operating cash flow covers
earnings, as set out in note & to the financial statements. Adjusted EBITDA {on continuing and discontinued operations) as

set out in the financial performance review.

*See definitions in Financial Review on page 18
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Non-Financial

2020

2019

Attendance at Festival of Marketing
Number of unique delegates attending the Festival of Marketing.

2020

89 (£12.1m)

2019

Xeim customers >£50k

Number and value of Xeim customers that have sales in the year
of greater than £50,000.
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2020

2019

Delegates on Mini MBA course

Number of delegates on Mini MBA and related elearning
courses in the year.

2020

160 (64%)

170 (68%)

2019

Top 250 law firm customers

Number and percentage of top 200 UK law firms and top 50 US
law firms.
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“ The resitience
of our brands,
our cost-cutting
initiatives and
our strong cash
balance mean that
we are well-set to
achieve the targets
inour MAP23
strategy”

SIMON LONGFIELD
Chief Financial Officer

Overview

2020 has been a year of unprecedented
challenges emanating from the pandemic.

It has been chalienging for Centaur with all
physical events severely impacted by the
social and governmental restrictions imposed
as well as declines in most other revenue
streams across our key brands, with the
notable exception of training and advisory.

However, Centaur arguably moves into
2021 in a stronger pasition thar i previous
years, 2020 has seen the full benefit of over
£6m in annualised cost savings from the
programme announced in 2019 resuiting

in an improved adjusted operating profit
performance this year over the prior year.
This is despite lower profits from our Xeim
and The Lawyer busingsses. 2020 has
also encouraged bold thinking - the Group
moved quickly to close the low-margin
telemarketing business at MarketMakers
and alsc responded quickly {0 the
opportunity to offer events and training in
avirtual, rather than face-to-face, format.
Having reduced our dependsnce on
events revenue (37% of revenue in 2018
but only 13% in 2019} and generated
significant cash proceeds from the disposal
programme, Centaur had the flexibility and
made good managerial decisions to exit
2020 in a strong position.

In our 2019 Annual Repart and Accounts,
we announced a 0.5p per ordinary share

dividend to be paid in May 2020. We
cancalled payment of that dividend shority
after the onset of the pandemic due to
significant uncertainty about how the
Group's cash profile would respond. | am
delighted to report that, despite these
worries, operating cash performance has
remained very strong and the Group closed
2020 with £8.3m in the bank (2013: £9.3mj.
The Board is therefore pleased tc be able to
recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 0.5p per share for the year 2020, In
2021, we will revert to our dividend policy of
payment of either 40% of adjusted retained
earnings or 1,0p per share - whichever

is greater,

We are alsc pleased to announce the
reassessment of our Margin Acceleration
Plan (' MAP22") which targeted 20%
Adjusted EBITDA in 2022 without the
benefit of the impact of IFRS 16. Falawing
the pandemic of this year, we have now
amended this target to MAP23 which
targets an Adiusted EBITDA margin of 23%
in 2023. This s combined with a minimum
revenue target of £45m for that year.

Qur futura reporting will demonstrate our
progress to achleving this target.

Performance

Group

Statutory revenue fell by £7.2m in 2020 -

a fall of 18%. Xeim deciined 17% and The
Lawyer 22%. Underlying revenue for Xeim,
axcluding the impact of Marketing Week
Live that was closed in 2019, fell 14% giving
a consalidated fall in the Group's underlying
revenue of 16%.

The Group posted an adjusted operating
profit of £nil in the year (2019; a loss of
£1.2m) and has thersfore improved its
like-for-like trading performance for the
continuing business despite the impact

of the pandemic in 2020. The Group has
seen a full year’s benefit of the cost savings
programme reported in its 2019 Annual
Report and has achieved an annualised cost
reduction of over £6m. This has enabled the
Group to outperform 2019 despite reduced
revenues in various business lines during the
year primarily as a result of the pandemic.
The Group received payments from the
government’s Coronavirus Job Retention
Scherne (CJRS} during the pertad from

April to September 2020 totaling £0.8m in
relation to approximately 130 furloughed
employees. Of this amount £0.5m related to
the MarketMakers telemarketing business in
Portsmouth which, as described fater in this
review, we closed in August. The remaining
' £0.3m of the grant has therefare heen

Annual Report and Financial Statements for tne year ended 31 December 2020



recognised within the adjusted operating
profit from continuing cperations.

As a result of this performance, Adjusted
EBITDA margin increased from 10% in 2019
10 12% in 2020 showing progress towards
our MAP23 targets, albeit on reduced
revenues. The Group is reporting a statutory
loss after taxation of £14.4m {2019: a profit
of £1.9m) primarily due to the closure of the
MarketMakers telemarketing business in the
year with impairment of £11.0m of goodwill.
-
Xeim
Exceflence in marketing

Xeim's underlying revenue for 2020 was
£26.0m, a reduction from £30.3m in 2019.
Premium content fell 13% as some of our
major brands (Econsultancy, Influencer
Intelligence and Fashion Monitor) were
impacted by economic uncertainty.
Marketing Services, which represents our
Really B2B business, saw a more significant
fall of 33% partially as a result of the issues
experienced at MarketMakers.

Underlying revenue from Xeim events
halved to £1.6m with the vast majority of
the reducticn being driven by the move to
a virtual event at the Festival of Marketing
following the introduction of social
distancing measuras.

Training and advisory revenue saw strong
growth of 12% on the back of continued
excellent performance in eLearning
revenues from both the Mini MBA and
Brand courses, partially offset by reducticns
in training and advisory provided by
Econsultancy and lower pitch revenues for
the Oystercatchers business.

As highlighted, Xelm’s telemarketing
business, MarketMakers, was closed

in 2020 and its results and prior-year
camparatives are now represented as
discontinued operations in line with
acoounting standards. Its results therefore
do not form part of the commentary on
continuing operations below.

Xeim reports an Adjusted EBITDA of £4.3m
for the year, a reduction from £7.2min
2018. Despite responding quickly to the
econcmic downturn by cutting business unit
costs significantly, the reduction in statutory
revenue of £5.4m has impacted Xeim's
result for the year.

Xeim contains three of the Group’s Flagship

4 brands — Econsultancy, Influencer
Intetigence and Mini MBA.

Econsultancy revenues fell 12% in the
year driven primarily by a 17% reduction
in premium content revenues and 14%
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fall in training revenues. New business

was saverely impacted by the economic
downturn for the pericd of March to May
but picked up strongly in the final four
maonths of the year so that overall, year-
on-year new business subscription sales
increased 21%. Renewals struggled during
the first half of the year as the pandemic
created uncertainty in our customer base
but recovered in the second half such that
a subscription renewal rate of 64% was
achieved, a flat performance compared

to 2019. Renewal rates will be driven
upwards in 2021 through our blended
learning strategy Increasing usage as a
result of better content format, together with
improved account management processes.

Econsultancy's face-to-face training and
advisory contracts were significantly
impacted by the restrictions imposed

due to the pandamic. The shifts to virtual
training partially mitigated the fall with some
sizeable digital transformation advisory
contracts being executed and delivered

in the second half of the year. Through
continued improvement in its blended
learning proposition, the introduction of
Econsultancy Live events and building

on our market-leading position as digita!
transformation specialists, we anticipate that
Econsultancy revenues will return 1o growth
in 2021.

Influencer Intelligence revenue has fallen
6% in the year on the back of a reduction
in new business as many of our potential
custemers in the retail and fashion sectors
struggled. Renewals fell, in terms of both
volurme and value, during the first four
menths of the pandemic but picked up
strongly from the summer. We anticipate
significant bilings growth in 2021 from the
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combination of increasing renewal rates, an
uplift in new business, customer upselling
relating to new campaign management
tools and a new eccmmerce product for
SME custemers.

The Minl MBA has had an exceptional year
with delegate numbers up 92% year-on-
year and NPS scores of +75. Both the
marketing and brand courses in the spring
and autumn cohorts achieved excellent
growth and in addition we delivered a
bespoke version of the marketing course
for several customers. Qverall, revenue
increased 89% on 2019 and growth is
anticipated to continue into 2021 due to
improvements in the course, the launch

of a new marketing website and through
targeted marketing campaigns.

Of our core Xeim brands, Festival of
Marketing saw a significant downturn

in revenue due to the restrictions of the
pandemic and as a consequence, we
moved swiftly to launch it as a virtual event
in 2020. Although delegate numbers only
fell by 4% year-on-year, the yield was
significantly lower. Sponsorship was also hit
as a large decline in individual sponsors was
only partially offset by an improved average
yield. We will continue to monitor the Covid
situation with a view 1o only returning to a
physical format when it is safe to do so.

MarketMakers business model became
unsustainable after the onset of the
pandemic and lost numerous large
contracts. The Group made the difficult
and sengitive decision to terminate its
telemarketing business. However, the
related Really B2B marketing servicas
business has now been fully merged into
Xeim and is expected to return to revenue
growth in 2021 after a difficult year.

Winners of...
GOLD: Best Multi-channel Campaign
GOLD: Best Use of Direct Mol
GOLD: Best Use of Custamer Insight
GOLD: Most Commarcially Successful Campaign
GOLD: Best Corporate Decision-Muker-Targeted Compaign
Marketing

SILVER: Bast Use of Account-Based
SILVER: Bast Product Launch Campuign
GOLD: Best Lead Gen/Nurturing Campalgn
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THE LAWYER

The Lawyer continuad to show growtty (9%)
in underlying premium content revenue as
yield and renewal rates remained strong,
primarily in corporate subscriptions which
grew 11%. Overall underlying revenues

for The Lawyer fell 21% due to the impact

of Covid. The cancellation of face-to-face
events, partially mitigated by a move to
virtua! events, led to a 57% reduction in
event revenuse. High-margin rectuitment
advertising fell 40% as economic
uncertainty grew in 2020 and law firms
delayed hiring.

Measurement and hon-statutory adjustments
The statutory rasults of the Group are presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {“IFRS"). The Group also
uses alternative reporting and other non-GAAP measures as explained below and as defined in the table on page 25.

Adjusting items

This led to a fall in Adjusted EBITDA from
£3.2m in 2019 to £2.1m in 2020. The
underlying business continues to perform
strongly and the abiity of the business ta
grow premium cantent during a severe
recession indicates how important it has
become to leading law firms and their fee
earners.

Adjusted results are not intended to replace statutory results but are prepared to provide a better comparison of the Group’s core business
performance by removing the impact of certain items from the statutory results. The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted
earnings per share are the most appropriate way to measure the Group's operational performance because they are comparable to the prior
year and consequently review the results of the Group on an adjusted basis internally. Statutory opsrating loss from continuing operations
reconciles to adjusted operating loss and Adjusted EBITDA as fallows:

Re-presented

2020 2019
Note £m £m
Statutary operating lass (2.3} (7.8j
Adjusting items:
Exceptional operating costs 4 0.2 47
Amortisation of acguired intangible assets 11 1.5 1.7
Share based payments 24 .5 0.1
Loss on digposal of assets and labilities 11,1219 0.1 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 814 - oA
2.3 6.6
Adjusted aperating loss - {1.2)
Depreciation, software amortisation and impairment 3 3.8 5.2
Adyjusted EBITDA 3.8 4.0
Adjusted EBITDA margin 12% 10%

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Adjusting items from continuing operations of £2.3m in the year (2019: £6.6m) are comptised as follows:

ADJUSTING ITEM DESCRIPTION

Exceptional operating costs Exceptional costs of £0.2m relate primarily to staff restructuring costs foliowing the onset of
the pandemic. 2019 included £2.5m of staff restructuring costs and £2.2m ¢f costs related to
the divestment programme.

Amortisation of acquired Amartisation of acquired intangible assets of £1.5m has fallen slightly (2018: £1.7m) as certain assets
intangible assets have fully unwound. £0.4m (2019: £0.7m) of amortisation relating to MarketMakers was reallocated
to discontinued operations.

Share based payments Share based payments of £0.5m were higher than the 2019 comparative of £0.1m. 2019 contained
a significant number of forfeitures and lapses of share opticns which resulted in reversals of charges
previously recorded.

Loss on disposal of assets £0.1m relates primarily to small write-offs of software development costs and computer equipment

and liabilities as well as the right-of-use asset offset by the disposal of lease liability on exit of the Portsmouth lease.
Loss on disposat of In 2019, a loss of £0.1m on disposal of subsidiaries was reported relating te the sale of Venture
subsidiary Business Research {'VBR').

Underlying revenue and profit

The Group also measures and presents performance in relation to various other non-GAAP measures, such as underlying revenue.
These have been presented tc provide users with additional information and analysis of the Group’s performance, consistent with how
the Board monitors results. The Group's activities are predominantly UK-based and therefore currency maovements do not have a material
impact on results.

In 2018, the Group disposed of VBR which was included in The Lawyer business unit. Due to its size it has not been treated as discontinued
and its revenues (2020 £nil; 2019: £0.1m) were reported as part of the Group's continuing revenue in 2019, Marketing Week Live, which was
included in Xeim, was closed in 2019 and therefore its revenue has also been excluded for underlying reporting purposes (2020 £nil;

2019: £1.1m).

No other underlying revenue adjustments have been made to the statutory revenue numbers.
Segment Profit
In 2019, we improved clarity around our business units’ performance by introducing the concept of segmental profit which consists of gross

contribution for a business unit minus specific overheads and also specific allocations of the central support teams and overheads that are
directly related to each business unit. Any costs not attricutable to either Xeim or The Lawyer, remain as part of central costs.

The table below shows the statutcry and underlying revenue for each business unit:

Re-presented

Xeim The Lawyer Total Xeim The Lawyer Total
2020 2020 2020 2018 2019 2019
£ £m £m £m £m £m
Underlying revenue
Premium Content 9.5 3.7 13.2 10.9 3.4 14.3
Marketing Services 2.9 - 2.9 4.3 - 4.3
Training and Advisory 8.5 - 8.5 76 - 7.6
Events 1.6 0.9 2.5 3.2 2.1 53
Marketing Sclutions 3.3 0.9 4.2 3.5 1.1 4.6
Recruitment Advertising 0.2 0.9 141 0.8 1.5 2.3
Total underlying revenue 26.0 6.4 32.4 30.3 8.1 38.4
Underlying revenue growth (14}% (217% {160
Revenue from closed or disposed businesses - - - 1.1 01 12
Total statutory revenue 26.0 6.4 32.4 31.4 8.2 39.6
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The table below reconciles the adjusted operating profit/{loss) for each segment to the Adjusted EBITDA:

Re-presented

Reim The Linvwyer Centeal Total Xeim The Lawyer Central Totak

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019 2019

o fin £ £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 26.0 6.4 - 32.4 314 8.2 - 39.6

Other income - - - - - - 1.8 1.6

Qperating costs {24.1) (5.0) {3.3) (32.4) (27.4) 5.9 Q.1 (42.4)

Adjusted operating profit/{loss) 1.9 1.4 3.3} - 4.0 23 (7.5 (1.2)
Adjusted operating margin 7% 22% 0% 13% 28% (3%

Depreciation, amartisation and impairment 24 07 0.7 3.8 3.2 0.9 1.1 5.2

Adjusted EBITDA 4.3 241 (2.6} 3.8 72 3.2 6.4) 4.0

Adjusted EBITDA margin 17% 33% 12% 23% 39% 10%

Net finance costs

Net finance costs were £0.3m {2019: £0.3m). The Group held positive cash balances throughout the year and therefore in both 2020
and 2018 the vast majority of finance costs relate to the commitment fee payable for the revolving credit facility as well as interest on
lease payments for right-of-use assets.

Taxation

A tax credit of £0.9m (2019 re-presented: £0.6m) has been recognised on continuing operations for the year. The adjusted tax credit was
£0.6m (2019: an expense of £0.5m). The Company’s profits were taxed in the UK at a blended rate of 19.0% (2019: 19.0%). On a reportad
hasis, the effective tax rate is 35% (re-presented 2019; 7%,). The 35% rate is driven by the revaluaticn of deferred tax balances to 19% from
17% and the timing of tax-deductible items relating to the 2019 disposal programme. See note 7 for a reconciliation betwean the statutory
reported tax charge and the adjusted tax charge.

n Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Discontinued operations

In 2020, discentinued operations relate to the closure of the MarketMakers telemarketing business that was terminated due 1o a significant
reduction in revenue following the onset of the pandemic and include £11.0m of goodwill impairment. The 2019 comparatives include the
re presentation of the MarketMahkers lelennarkeling business inlo discontinued operations within the reported statutory results for the Greup.

Discontinued Discontinued Continuing As reported

2020 2019 2019 2019

gy £m £m £m

Revenue 3.6 9.3 39.6 48.9
Other operating income - - 1.6 1.6
Net operating expenses (15.9) {9.9) (49.0) (58.9)
Loss on disposal 0.7) - - -
Operating loss {13.0} {0.6) (7.8) 8.4)
Finance costs - - 0.3) 0.3)
Lass beforg tax {13.0} 0.6) 8.1) 8.7
Taxation 0.3 0.1 06 0.7
Loss after tax (2.7} {0.5) (7.5) (8.0)

Earnings/loss per share

The Group has delivered adjusted diluted earnings per share for the year of 0.3 pence (2019: 0.3 pence). Diluted earnings per share for the
year were a loss of 10.0 pence {2016: earnings of 1.3 pence). Full details of the earnings per share calculations can be found in note 9 1o
the financial statements.

Dividends

In 2019 the Group announced a new dividend policy, applicable from 1 January 2020 such that Centaur wili target a pay-out ratio of 40%
of adjusted retained earnings, subject to a minimum dividend of 1.0p per share per annum.

In light of this, the Group propesed a final dividend in March 2020 of 0.5p per crdinary share in respect of 2019. However, following the
onset of the pandemic and the uncertain impact on cash, the Group announced in May 2020 that it was prudent to cancel the payment
of that final dividend.

Following the relatively robust performance of the Group over the last year and strong cash balances, the Board is pleased to announce its
intention to reinstate the payment of dividends and is proposing a final dividend of 0.5p per ordinary share in respect of the 2020 year.

This dividend is subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting and, if approved, will be paid on 28 May 2021 to all ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 14 May 2021.

Cash flow
2020 2019
£m £m
Adjusted operating profit’ - 1.8
Depreciation, amartisation and impairment 4.0 55
Movement in working capital 25 -
Adjusted operating cash flow 6.5 7.3
Capital expenditure (0.8} {1.8)
Cash impact of adjusting items (4.6 (2.7)
Taxation - 01
Repayment of lease obligations and interest (2.1) (2.5)
Free cash flow (1.9) 0.6
Acquisitions - 0.1)
Cisposal of subsidiaries 0.1) 16.4
Disposal of intangible assets 0.1 -
Share repurchases - 0.6
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders - 7.1)
(Decreaselincrease in net cash (1.0 9.2
Opening net cash 9.3 0.1
Closing net cash 8.3 9.3
Cash conversion 100% 100%

- Adjusted operating profit for the purposes of the cash flow Includes the adjusted operating profit from discontinued operations of £nil (2019: £3.0m).
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Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. Gentaur defines adjusted operating cash flow as cash flow from operations
axcluding the impact of adjusting items, which are defined above. The Directors use this measure to assess the performance of the Group
as it excludes volatile items not related to the core trading of the Group and includes the Group's management of capital expenditure.

A reconciliation between cash flow from operations and adjusted operating cash flow is shown in note 1{b) to the financial statements.

The movement in working capital in 2020 includes £1.0m relating to the deferral of VAT payments under the government’s Covid VAT
payment deferral scheme, which is pfanned to be re-paid in 2021, and the receipt of £1.5m refating to the lease incentive on the Wells Street
office that was vacated in early 2020. The cash conversion has been adjusted to exclude these one-off items. The cash impact of adjusting
items primarily relates to exceptional restructuring costs in both years.

MAP23

In 2019, the Group introduced its Margin Acceleration Plan (MAP22) which targeted an Adjusted EBITDA margin of at least 20% by 2022,
excluding the benefit of IFRS 16. Due to the impact of Covid, the Group has now re-assessed its three-year plan and in January 2021
announced MAP23 under which the Group would raise Group Adjusted EBITDA margins to 23% (including the impact of IFRS 18) by 2023,
while increasing revenues to £45m, Further details of MAP23 are detailed in the Strategy section on page 6.

Financing and bank covenants

During the first half of 2020, with great uncertainty around trading and cashflows, the Group agreed a temporary alteration in the terms

of its revolving credit facility of £25m. Until September 2021, it was agreed that the facility would be limited to £10m but with a waiving of
leveragesinterest cover covenants. The waiver was subject to a minimum liguidity test of £3m combining the £10m revalving credit facility
limit and the Group's £1.7m overdraft facility.

On 16 March 2021, the Group signed a new revolving cradit facility with NatWest that replaces the £25m facility signed with NatWest and
Loyds in 2018. The new facility is for up to £10m and a three-year duration with the option of two further one-year pericds. The covenants
regarding leverage and interest cover are identical to thase of the facllity it replaces.

Balance sheet

2020 2019
Fm £m
Goodwill and other intangible assets 46.1 61.2
Property, plant and equipment 3.3 43
Defarred taxation 2.2 1.0
Deferred income (7.0) 8.7)
Other current assets and liabilties {4.8) (4.29
Nan-current assets and liabilities (0.9) {1.8)
Net assets before cash 38.9 51.8
Net cash 8.3 9.3
Net assets 47.2 61.1

in 2020, goodwill and other intangibles have faen by £15.1m primarily due to the impact of terminating operations at the MarketMakers
telemarketing business and the related impairment and elimination of £11.0m of goodwill. Property, plant and equipment has fallen by
£1.0m primarily due to the disposal of the MarketMakers' right-of-use asset pertaining to its offices in Portsmouth following the closure

of that business. Deferred income has fallen by £1.7m primarily due to the closure of the MarketMakers telemarketing business in 2020.
Xelm deferred income is fiat year on year with strong growth in deferred income for training offset by lower levels of premium content at
Fashion Monitor, Influencer Intalligence and Econsuttancy. The Lawyer's deferred income levels have fallen slightly due to the impact of event
cancellations and deferrals.

Going concern

After due consideration, as required under IAS 1 Presentation of Financiat Statements, including consideration of the Group's net current
liability position, the Group’s forecasts for at least twelve months from the date of this repert, and the effectiveness of risk management
processes, the Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to continue to adopt the geing concern biasis in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. As detailed under the Risk Management section, the Directors
have assessed the viability of the Group cver a three-year period to March 2024 and the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Compariy will be able to centinue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over that period.

Conclusion

Centaur performed robustly in 2020 despite unprecedented external circumstances. The resilience of our brands, combined with our cost-
cutting intiatives, managemenit action to addrass MarketMakers, and our strong cash balance mean that we are well-set to achieve the
targets set out in our MAP23 strategy.

SIMON LONGFIELD
Chief Financial Officer
16 March 2021

n Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Alternative performance measures

MEASURE

DEFINITION

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA
margin

Adjusted effective
tax rate

Adjusted EPS

Adjusting items

Adjusted operating
profit/{loss)

Adjusted profit
before tax

Cash conversion
Exceptional iterns
Free cash flow

Segment profit

Underlying revenue

Adjusted operating profit before depreciation and impairment of tangible assets and amortisaticn and
impairment of intangible assets other than those acquired through a business combination, after the impact
of IFRS 16 to remcve property rental charges.

Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue.

Adjusted tax charge as a percentage of Adjusted profit before tax.

EPS calculated using Adjusted prafit for the period.

ltems as set out in the statement of consolidated income and notes 1(b) and 4 of the financial statements
including exceptional tems, amortisation of acquired intangible assets, profit/(loss) on disposal of assets,
share based payment expense, volatile items predominantly relating to investment activities and other
separately reported items.

Operating profit/(loss) excluding Adjusting items,

Profit before tax excluding Adjusting items.

Adjusted operating cash flow {excluding any one-off significant cash flows) / Adjusted EBITDA (including
discontinued operations).

Items where the nature of the item, or its magnitude, is material and likely to be non-recurring in nature as
shown in note 4.

Increase/decrease in cash for the year before the impact of aebt, acquisitions, disposals, dividends and share
repurchases.

Adjusted operating profit of a segment after allocation of central support teams and cverheads that are
directly related to each segment or business unit.

Statutory revenue adjusted to exciude the impact of revenue arising from acquired businesses, disposed
businesses that do not meet the definition of discontinued operations per IFRS 5, and closed business lines
{'excluded revenue’).
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Risk Management

Risk management
approach

The Beard has overall responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls, and
these are regularly monitored by the Audit
Comrnittee.

Details of the activities of the Audit
Committee in this financial year can be
found in the Audit Committee Report on
pages 47 10 49.

The Executive Committes, Company
Secretary and the Head of Legai are
responsible for identifying, managing and
menitoring material and emerging risks in
each area of the business and for regularly
reviewing and updating the risk register, as
well as reporting to the Audit Cornmittee in
relation to risks, mitigations and controls,
As the Group operates principally from cne
office and with relatively flat management
reporting lines, members of the Executive
Committee are closely involved in day-
to-day matters and are able to identify
areas of increasing risk guickly and
respond accordingly. The responsibility

for each risk identified is assigned to a

LATEST  COMMENTARY  HitMS M-I

LATERAL MiEE  NEWS

Milbank targets PE
growth in Asla with three
magic circle hires -

0 Mervemon 2070

COMING SCON: UK 200: THE
INDEPENDENTS 2020

07:14:4310

Lisw Against Loneloews: 10 November 4

& W MR e 2020

Regpalator Aines Wombie Bond Dickinson duc sfter
firen rebuke

10 NOWIT 2020

member of the Executive Committes.
The Audit Committee considers risk
management and controls regularly and
the Board formally considers risks to the
Group's strategy and plans as wel as the
risk management process as part of its
strateqic raview,

The risk register is the core element of the
Group's risk management process. The
register is maintained by the Company
Secratary with input from the Executive
Committes and the Head of Legal. The
Executive Committes initialty identifies the
material risks and emerging risks facing the
Group and then collectively assesses the
severity of each risk {by ranking both the
likelincod of its occurrence and its potential
impact on the business) and the related
mitigating controis.

As part of its risk ranagement processes,
the Board considers both strategic and
operational risks, as well as is risk appetite
in terms of the tolerance level it is wiling

to accept in relation to each principal risk,
which is recorded in the Company’s risk
register. This approach recognises that

risk cannot always be eliminated at an
acceptable cost and that there are some
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risks which the Board will, after due and

careful consideration, choose to accept. !
The Group's risk register, its method of

preparation and the operation of the key

controls in the Group’s system of internal

control are regularly reviewed and overseen

by the Audit Committee with reference

to the Group's strategic aims and its

operating environment. The register is also

reviewed and considered by the Board.

As part of the ongoing enhancement of
the Group’s risk moenitoring activities, we
reviewed and updated the procedures
by which we evaluata principal risks and
uncertainties during the year.

Principal risks '

The Group's risk register currently includes
operational and strategic risks. The
principal tisks faced by the Group in 2020,
taken from the register, together with the
potential effects and mitigating factors, are
set out below. The Directors confirm that
they have undertaken a robust assessment
of the principal and emerging risks facing
the Group. Financial risks are shown in
note 27 to the financial statements.
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MOVEMENT IN
RANK RISK DESGRIPTION OF RISK AND IMPACT RISK MITIGATION/CONTRCOL PROCEDURE | RISK

Sensitivity to UK/ The word economy has been severely
sector cconomic . impacted by Uw pandernic and UK GO fol g
conditions 18.3% in April 2020, recovering to a2 9.9%

" fall for the whole of 2020. This, combined
i with the end of the transition deal with the
EU at the end of 2020, has sigréficantly

- increased the Group's sensitivity to UK/
sector volatility and economic conditions.
- The impact was acute on some of Centaur’
. target market segments e.g. fashion and
- retail and, entertainment,

The likelihood of ongaing volatility will be
" high in 2021 and there are varying views as
to the timing and extent of a recovery.

.,

g

- Most of the risk impacts Centaur

indirectly from our customers. We have
demonstrated we can mitigate the risk
by increased digitalisation, running virtual
events and offering more eLeamning.

Part of the strategic plan for Centaur is to

¢ increase international organic growth in
the mid to longer term, focusing on the US

and Asia in particular, in order to mitigate
this risk. We are also increasing our focus
on targeting larger scale multinational
businasses which have a more diversified
risk profile.

Many of the Group's products are market-
leading in their respective sectors and

are an integral part of our customers’
operational processes, which mitigates the
risk of reduced demand for our products.

The Group regulary reviews the political
and economic conditions and forecasts
far the UK, including specific risks such

as Covid, and the main sectors in which it
operates to assess whether changes to its
product offerings or pricing structures are
necessary.

fihe Board
conmders this
risk to have
increased
since the prior
year.

Failure to deliver Eentaur's success depends on growing

a high growth the business and completing the MAP23
perforrmance culture, Estrategy. In 0(der tq_do this, it c}epengts in
The risk that Centayr JRErge part on its ability to recruit, motivate

and retain highly experienced and qualified
Remployees in the face of often intense
competition from other companies,

is unable to attract,
develop and retain

an appropriately : v
skilled, diverse and ~ JR€SPecially i London.
responsible workforce@investmant in training, development and

ay awards needs to be compelling but will
& challenging in the current economic and
Xaperating climate.

mplementing a diverse and inclusive

Rworking ervironment that allows for agile
and remote delivery is necessary to keep

fie ‘millennial’ workforce engaged and has

and leadership
team, and maintain
a healthy cutture
which encourages
and supports ethical
high-performance
behaviours and
decision-making.
Difficulties in recruiting
and retaining staff
could lead to loss of
key senicr staff.

Bhomeworking.

i ligh staff churn (a challenge for many
deompanias in our sector) has not been an
ssue during 2020 but we will need to keep
Ur policies and practices under review as
ond when a return to the office becomes a
dreality.

Developing the MAP23 business strategy
and changes required in skill set and cufture
are challenging and costly.

nabled us to cope well with the transition tc]

| There has been a significant focus on

employee communication this year. This
has included CEO Breakfasts, Weekly
Updates, Local Town Halls, monthly all

Company Q8A sessicns, staff welfare calls.

We regularly review measures aimed
at improving our ability to recruit and
retain employess and to track employee
engagement. Weekly 'check-ins’ via

f Engage ensure we have a ‘meod’ of the

business and an understanding of any key
risks or challenges as they arise.

Cur employee engagement team, DICE,
focus on Diversity, Inclusion, Cutture and
Engagement along with other key issues
and opportunities that can challange the
business played an important role this
year in driving forward initiatives relating to
diversity, sending regular communications
and arranging virtual soctal functions and

events. This is sponsored by the CEQ and a

Non-Executive Director.

| A review takes place annually to ensure
§ flight risks and training needs are identified

which become the focus for pay, reward
and develcpment areas.

All London based staff continue to be paid at

or above the London Living Wage.

Cur HR processes include exit interviews
for all leavers to resolve areas of concern.

ilhe Board
considers

Jthis risk to be

broadly the

gsame as for
the prior year.
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MOVEMENT IN
RANK RISK DESCRIPTION OF RISK AND IMPACT RISK MITIGATICN/CONTROL PROCEDURE | RISK

Fraudulent or
accidental breach

of aur security, or
ineffective operation
of IT and data
management systems
leads to loss, theft or
misuse of personal
data or confidential
information or

other breach of

data protection
requirements.

A serious occurrence of a loss, theft or
misuse of personal data or sensitive or
confidential information could result in
reputational damage, a breach of data
protection requirements or direct financial
impact. See risk 4: GDPR, PECR below.

Centaur collects and processes personal
data and confidential information from some
of its customers, users and other third
parties.

Centaur is at risk from a serious occurrence
of a loss, theft or misuse of personal data
or confidential information: on our software/
hardware due to the actions of a Centaur
employee, partner or third party.

Appropriate IT security is undertaken for all
key procasses to keep the [T environment
safe.

Wabsites are hosted by specialist third-
party providers who provide warranties
relating to security standards. All of our
websites have been migrated onto a new
and more secure platform which is cloud
hgsted,

External access to data is protected and
staff are instructed to password protect or
encrypt where appropriate.

Following the simplification of the Group
in 2019, the data team has simplified the
warehouse structure with stringent data
retention processes. The Group Head of
Data ensures that rigorous controls are

in place so that anly the data team can
download warshouse data. Cross-system
data integrations are all pertormed under
sacure transfer protocols.,

Centaur has a business continuity plan
which includes its IT systems and there

is daily, overnight back-up of data, stored
aft-site.

Please see risk 4 below for specilics refating
to the GDPR compliance/data.

Arnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decemper 2020

The Board
considers
this risk to be
broadiy the
same as the
prior year,
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MOVEMENT IN
RANK | RISK DESCRIPTION OF RISK AND IMPACT RISK MITIGATION/CONTROL PRCCEDURE | RiSK

Regulatory; GDPR,
‘PECR and other
similar legislation
involve strict
requirements
regarding how
Centaur handles
personal data,
including that of
customers and the
risk of a fine from
! the ICO, third party
claims {e.g. from
custorners) as well as
i reputational damage
if we do not comply.

|
K
i
!
s
i
i
!

The UK General Data Protection Regulation

('GDPRY, the Data Protection Act 2018
('DPA) and the Privacy and Electronic
Communications Regulations {PECR")
involve strict requirements for Centaur
regarding its handling of personal data.
Centaur’s obligations under the GDPR are
complex meaning this area requires ongoing
focus.

PECR includes specific obligations for
businesses like Centaur regarding how they
conduct electronic marketing calls, emails,
texts, and on their use of conkies and similar
technologies, among other things.

In the event of a sericus breach of the data
legislation, Centaur could be subjectto a
significant fine from the reguiator (the ICO)
and dlaims from third parties including
customers as well as reputational damage.

The maximum fines for breaches are £17.5
million (GDPR) and £500,000 (PECR)
respectively and directors can have liability
for serious breaches of PECR's marketing
rules.

Other countries {e.g. USA} and jurisdictions
worldwide are also reviewing and updating
their own laws relating to data and privacy.
Where Centaur is required to comply with
the laws in non-UK jurisdictions there is a
risk that Centaur may not be compliant with
all such laws and could therefore be subject
to regulatory action and fines from the
relevant regulators and data subjects.

Centaur has taken a wide range of
measures aimed at complying with the key
aspects of the GOPR, DPA and PECR.

in March 2020, a Data Protection
Compliance Committee was formed
{overseen by the CFO) in order to monitor
Centaur's ongoing compliance with these
data protection laws.

ICO guidance relating to the use of cookies
published in 2019, and further changes

to the laws relating to data privacy, ad

tech and electronic marketing expected

in the near future, will further increase

the regulatory burden for businesses like
Centaur, and the requirements in this regard
will need to be kept under review.

Staff are required 1o undertake online data
protection awareness and data security
awareness training annually,

Centaur's in-house lawyer keeps abreast of
material developments in data protection
law and regulation and advice from externat
specialist law firms is sought where
appropriate.

Given the increasingly global nature of our
business and our customers Centaur's
approach to complying with data protection
laws in other jurisdictions should be

kept under review. In 2020, Centaur
implemented various measures to mitigate
against risk in respect of the CCPA, anew
Californian privacy law, and also appainted
an ‘EU representative’ under the GDPR
ahead of Brexit.

‘The Board
considers
this risk to be
broadly the
same as the
prior year.
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MOVEMENT IN
RANK RISK DESCRIPTION OF RISK AND IMPACT RISK MITIGATION/CONTROL PROCEDURE | RISK

Serious systems
failure {affecting core
systems and multiple

cr breach of IT
result of a deliberate

Cyber-attack or
unintentional event).

Centaur relies on its IT network to conduct
its operations. The [T network is at risk of

a serious systems failure or breach of its
praducts or functions)  security controls. This could result from
deliberate cyber-attacks or unintentional
network security (as a events and may include third parties gaining
unauthorised access to Centaur’s [T network
and systems resutting in misappropriation
of its financiat assets, proprietary or
sensitive information, corruption of data, or
operational disruption, such as unavailability
of our websites and our digital products 1o
users or unavailability of support platforms.

If Centaur suffers a serious cyber-attack,
whether as a result of & third party or insider,
any operationaf disruption may diractly affect
our revenues or collection activities.
Centaur could incur significant costs and
suffer other negative consequences, such
as remediation costs (including liability for
stolen assets or information, and repair of
any damage caused tc Centaur's [T network
infrastructure and systems), Centayr could
also suffer reputational damage and loss

of investor confidence resulting from any
opeérational disruption.

Centaur has invested significantly In its (T
systems and whers services are outsourced
to suppliers, contingency planning is carried
out to mitigate nisk of supplier failure.

Centaur continues to develop its CRM,
ecommerce and finance systems and
following the divestments in 2019 has
removed a number of legacy systems
reducing the Group’s cyber risk.

Qur IT and information security-refated
policies were upgraded in 2018 to

further ensure our staff understand

their responsibifities in refation to T and
information security and are accountable
for their comgpliance with our policies. We
review these policies at least once annually
1o ensure that they remain fit for purpose.

Centaur has also implemented a number of
security improvements to better protect and
maonitor our network, systems and data.

All employees are required to undertake
online training on data security awarenass
and data protection awareness annually.

The Board
considers
this risk to be
broadly the
same as the
prior year.

We have taken additional insurance cover
in respect of a serious failure of IT network
security controls.

Viabhility Statement

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2018, the
Directors have assessed the viabllity of the
Group over a three-year periad from signing
of this Annual Report to March 2024, taking
account of the Group's current position, the
Group's strategy, the Board's risk appetite
and, as documented above, the principal
risks facing the Group and how these are
managed. Based on the results of this
analysis, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company wiil be

able to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period to
March 2024.

The Board has determined that the three-
year period to March 2024 is an appropriate
period over which to provide its viability
statement because the Board's financial
planning horizon covers a thrae-year period.
In making their assessment, the Directors
have taken account of the Group’s new
£10m three-year revolving credit facility
(which allows extensions to 2026 on similar
termsj, cash flows, dividend cover and
other key financial ratios over the period.
The covenants of the facility are a maximum
interest cover ratio of 4 and net leverage
shall not exceed the last twelve months’

Adjusted EBITDA, excluding the impact of
IFRS 16, by more than 2.5 times. In none of
the sceparios run for the viability staterment
is the Group expected to breach any of
these covenants,

The base scenano assumes that the
Group's MAP23 targets are met. These
targets were built, bottom-up during 2020
once the impact of Covid had become
clear. The Group’s events and recruitment
advertising revenues have been hardest

hit by the pandemic and this impact has
been factored intc MAP23, including the
conservative assumption that no revenue
will be realised from physical events

in 2022. Revenue growth in MAP23 is
therefore focused on continued growth in
the Mini MBA, albeit at a lower growth rate
than its historical trend, and improvements
in premium content revenue from the rest of
the Flagship 4 brands.

The metrics in the base case are subject to
stress testing which involves sensitising the
key assumptions underlying the forecasts
both individually and in unison. The
assumption sensitised included a scenario
under which the Group's forecast Adjusted
EBITDA dropped by approximately 30%.

In this scenario, the impact is more severe
with new virtual event formats being less
successtul than the base case and Mini

MBA growth significantly below historical
frends. Premium content bilings growth
would be weaker in this scenaric and
working capital generation is also assumed
to be less strong.

Under no sensitised circumstances would
the Group be required to rely on the
revolving credit facility to fund its daily
operations. Sensitising the madel for
changes in the assumptions and risks
affirmed that the Group would rermain viable
over the three-year period to March 2024,

Going concern basis of
accounting

In accordance with provision 30 of the

UK Corporate Governance Code 2018,

the Directors' statement as to whether

they consider it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements and their
identification of any material uncertainties,
including the principal risks outlined above,
to the Group's ability to continue to do so
over a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of the financial
staterments and for the foreseeable future,
being the period as discussed in the viability
staternent above, can be found on page 42.

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Section 172 Statement UK Companies
Act 2006

Centaur is a purpose-led business and our success is dependent on the strength of our stakeholder relationships. The Board prioritises
frequent and open engagement with all our stakeholders and their views, values and suggestions are at the heart of our decision making
pracess. in 2020, a year of unprecedanted disruption that affected all our stakeholders, this communication was a key consideration in
making our strategic choices. The table below cutlines who our key stakeholders are and how we interact with them when making key
slraleyic decisions, taking into consideration the factors set out in Saction 172(1)@) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006. This should be read in
conjunction with our ESG report on pages 34 to 37.

STAKEHOLDER WHAT MATTERS TO
GROUP HOW WE ENGAGE? WHY WE ENGAGE? THIS GROUP?

Investors

Customers

Formal decumented investor roadshow
meetings, post results presentations and
market updates, as well as other ad hoc
investor meetings.

Paid-for research, including video intendews,

available to all investors via cur website and
distributed via press releases and email.

Annual General Meeting.

Constultation prior, during and post strategic
decision making ar execution.

Every day we interact with a wide variety
of existing and potential customers. This
is with a view to understanding customer
requirements/feedback, tc manage their
expectaticns and to generate long term
profitable revenue.

DICE Team 2020

www.centaurmedia.com

Our investors are integral to
monitoring and safeguarding the
governance of the Group and
increasing shareholder value is one
of our major focus areas.

We work to ensure that our
investors and their representatives
have a good understanding of,

and are supportive of, our strategy,
business modet, opportunity, culture
and approach to ESG.
Quir purpose is to advise, inform
and connect our customers to help
them achieve their goals. To ensure
our customers are satisfied with
our offering and continue to provide
repeatable and recurting revenues,
it is vital that we obtain feadback to
understand their requirements and
adapt our offering to their needs.

Strategy and business maodel.
Long term share value
growth.

Sustainable dividend palicy.
Financial stability and culture.
An engaged and proactive
Board who take investors
views into account in
decision-making.

ESG.

The customer experience and
overail customer satisfaction.
A provider that listens

and adapts products to
customers’ needs.

Innovative products which
deliver enhanced value to
customers.
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Section 172 Statement UK

Companies Act 2006

CONTINUED

STAKEHOLDER
GROUP HOW WE ENGAGE? WHY WE ENGAGE?

Employees DICE {Diversity, Inclusicn, Culture and
Engagement) was established in 2019

so that all employees have a voice and
thair views are considered. (Mere detail of
the work undertaken by DICE in 2020 i

provided in the ESG report.)

Daily Covid Committee calls during 2020.
This reduced to three times a week in Q4.

Regular breakfast meetings where the CEO
met with every member of staff during 2020
to understand what was going well, what
could be done better and to ascertain ideas
for business improvemnent.

Bi-menthly Executive Committee meetings,
monthly senior leadership meetings and
regular team meetings held virtually during
2020.

Monthly Senior Leaders forums to formulate
operational business improvement initiatives.

Xeim and The Lawyer hold monthly Town
Halls to which all Centaur employees are
invited.

Since the move to working from home
in March 2020 we have held monthly All
Business Qi&A sessions virtually, with afl
employees able to participate and ask
questions of senior leaders.

A weekly online sense check questionnaire
'Engage’ which measures motivation and
levels of engagement, This is anonymised to
encourage employees to be honest about
issues. Line managers have regular access
to guarterly Engage scores to faciltate their
action plans and provide support to team
members.

There have been several ad hoc surveys

in 2020 related to working from home,
equipment and working enviropment, and
employment surveys sent out by DICE.
Annual appraisals and increased facus on
ensuring that all employees had objectives
set in 2020.

All employees received a bonus as a thank
you for their considerable commitment and
efforts during 2020.

Mestings with suppliers as appropriate,
together with negotiations on the terms and
conditions of supply.

Strategic
suppliers

WHAT MATTERS TO
THIS GROUP?

Cur diverse workforce of 288
employees (as 31 December 2020}
is our most important asset and
our success depends on their
commitrnent and iob fulfilment. It
is vital t0 ensure that we take their
needs into account in our strategic

Opportunities for career
development and
progression.

Agile working patterns.

An understanding
management team wha
listen to employees and are

decision making. o considerate of thelr views and
To ensura that communication is values.

clear and understood throughout ) )

the Company so all employees Opportunity to share ideas
understand the purpose and B{‘d m_ake @ dllfferen_ce.
objectives of Centaur. Diversity and inclusion.

The Company is working hard to Centaur's ESG commitments.

drive its status as a destination
employer by creating the right
enviranment and culture.

To ensure that Centaur can
comply with agreed terms
and conditions.

The values of our suppliers

and their high standards of
business conduct.

Strategic suppiiers underpin several
key business operations. Strategic
decisions consider tha impact

on these suppliers, in terms of
capability, scale, value for money
and risk.

Innovation and product
development.

Annuai Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
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STAKEHOLDER WHAT MATTERS TO
GROUP HOW WE ENGAGE? WHY WE ENGAGE? THIS GROUP?

Community The Company supports focal communities To be a good corporate citizen and Inclusion of employee
and charitable organisations through direct give back to the communities and sentiment and what is
functraising and donations. During 2020 this  ¢harities that are important to our important to them.
was difficult due to Covid, but employees empioyees and to the Company.

made generous donations to The Waterloo
Foodbank matched by the Company.

In 2021 the Company will support The
Trussell Trust.

Government The Board’s intention is to behave in doing so, we balieve we wil To ensure that the business

and regulators  responsibly and comply with all applicable achieve our long-term business operates in a legal and
laws and regulations to ensure that strategy and develop our reputation  transparent manner, in
the business cperates with integrity, further in our sector. compliance with the spirit
transparency and accountability, and acts of all applicable laws and
with high standards and good governance. regulations.

Overview The business implications of Covid were fast  The impact of Covid was acutely feit in the telemarketing operation
moving and, at times, extremely uncertain. of MarketMakers with 3 of its top 5 custormers ceasing to trade with
The Board discussed the Group’s response it and revenues rapidly grinding to a halt in April 2020. We had to
and the impact on stakeholders. Qur respond quickly and many of the MarketMakers’ staff were put on
governance structure provided a stable furlough as the Board considered future options. In assessing the
foundaticn from which we could respond to closure of MarketMakers, the Board took into consideration the
the changing situation, led by our ExCo. impact for each of our stakehoider groups.

Investors Continuing strong financial governance; A key driver of the Board's decision to close the business was to

protect the future financial prospects of Centaur and the continuation

Fecus on future financial security of Centaur; ol
Y of employment of Centatr’s remaining ¢.300 employees, thus

Resumption of dividend as soon as ensuring that the business could create shareholder valug by
practically possible. delivering on MAP23.
Customers Moved face to face training on-line; - While many customers ceased to trade with MarketMakers, the

Board understood that there were other customers who needed
continuity of service. As part of the ¢losure process, supply contracts
were established with two cormpestitors who absorbed these
customers’ needs.

Created new Covid and working from home
refated content;

Launched and trialled new titles and formats;
Extended credit terms if needed.

Employees Provided eguipment to safely work from The Board was concemed that ¢. 180 smployses would lose their
home; jobs. However, it was clear that in Partsmouth, th_are was a strong
Accalerated online training: demand for this type of employee and the Board is pleased that

coslerated onine Tral F. g L almaost all of them have subsequently found gainful employmant.
Increased staff communications; During Q2 2020, there was considerable uncartainty about if and
Mental health support; when customers would come back. The Board considered extending
Social activities. the use of CJRS, however, It decided that the responsible action was
10 close the business rather than rely on its further use.
Strategic Ensured that we paid all suppliers on time. Many of MarketMakers' suppliers had been in place for over 5 years
suppliers and the Board ensured that these suppliers were given appropriate

notice and paid in fult for goods and services provided.

Community Charity fund raising; o The strong local demand for the redundant employees was from
Donations tc local foodbanks. businessas which were growing in the Partsmouth area. This allowed
onations to local feodoanks the Board to be satisfied that the redundancies would not adversely
impact the local community.

Government The Congpany used the government’s ) As covered in the CEQ review, the decision to close MarketMakers
and regulators  Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme {CJRS) resufted in the loss of 180 jobs. The Board carefully considered
with the intention of preserving ¢. 130 jobs, whether it was appropriate to repay some or all of the CJRS receipts.

mostly at MarketMakers, from the inception it concluded that the CJRS scheme had been used properly with

of CJRS to September 2020. In doing so, it the intention of presarving jobs in the Group and therefore it was not
assessed the impact of Covid on the business  considered necessary to repay this amount.

and the necessity to place people on furough

with the intention of protecting their jobs and

ensuring the survival of the Group.

www.centaurmedia.com
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Environmental, Social and Governance

Environmental

Environment and climate change

— our impact on the environment
Climate change remains one of the greatest
challenges of aur times and every company,
irrespective of their size or impact,

is required to play its part in minimising its
enviranmental footprint. The Group actively
seeks to minimise adverse environmental
impacts and to promote good environmental
practices wherever possible.

During 2020, we continued to reduce our
carbon footprint aided by the move frorm our
previous larger London office into a WeWork
affice at the end of 2019.Environmental
impact was an important €lement for the
Beard in our office choice and our WeWork
office has:

*  Renewable electricity - scurcing 100%
renewable electricity by 2025 and
offsetting Scope 1 emissicns to become
operationally carbon neutral the same
year;

«  Sustainable, efficient operations —
reducing energy and water use by 20%
by 20256 (from a 2019 baseline) and
reclucing annual waste to 10kg per
member per year;

» Zero plastics - Eliminating single-
use disposable plastics from daily
operations globally through the WeWaork
Zero Plastics Plan launched in 2018;

« Sustainable finishes — using sustainable,
healthy finishes standards, including
CVOG content and emissions imits,
efiminating high risk toxic ingredients,
and sourcing recycled flores for textiles
and cushions, and FSC certified wood
where possible; and

+  Ethical supply chains — ensuring
supply chain partners meet WeWork
standards across ethics, safe working
environments, labour and human rights,
and environment, as established by their
Vendor Code of Conduct published in
2020.

WeWork alsg promotes wellbeing and
social impact through regufar community
led events many of which have been held
virtually in 2020. (source: Sustzinability at
WeWork 2021 Member and Enterprise
Client overview).

QOur other office located in New York is smail
and Is also a WeWork office. In addition, the
Group terminated its lease of coffice space

in Portsmauth during the second half of the
year.

The move to homeworking as & result of
the pandemic helped us decrease our
environmental impact further with a fall in
work-related travel and printing and with 2
greater proportion of our services delivered
virtually. A mix of werking from the office
and working from home will be considered
by the Company as an cngoing option

for employaes once we are through the
pandemic.

Qutside our own practices, we are also
cognisant of the Indirect environmental
impact of our supply chain and aim to
ensure that all our major suppliers are
environmentally respansible, For exampie,
our main paper and print supplier hoids the
ISO 14001 {environmental management)
accreditation and is certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council and Programme jor the
Endorsement of Farestry Certification.

Similarly, as we expand in our digital
capabiliies and products, we continue to
significantly reduce our reliance on print
advertising and as a result reduce the use
of consumable items such as paper and
plastic.

Emissions

We continue to measure our Carbon
footprint by monitoring our energy usage
and we are pleased to confirm that we are
compliant with the EU Energy Efficiency
Directive ‘Energy Saving Opportunity
Scheme' ('ESOS".

The greerhouse gas (‘GHG') emissions from our operations during the year are set out

below:
2019
Crtgnpa g T Tonnes CO,
Scope 1 {gas, fuel and car mileage) 19 105
Scope 2 {electricity and steam) 85 384
Total GHG emissions 35 489
Average number of employees 16 661
Emissions per empioyee 0.2 a7

Annual Report and Financial Statements fo: the year ended 31 Decemper 2020

Social

Our people - talent develepment
Cur paople are our most important asset
and are crucial t¢ our succass. Having the
right people with the right skills at all levels
in our grganisation is ¢ritical to building a
quality, sustainable business and delivering
our strategy. Our culiure is characterised
as customer focused, commercial, diverse,
grounded and innovative with a 'Can do,
Will do, Now!" attitude. Accordingly, career
development is & priority.

Working from home




Our people - training

During the year there have been over
300 training sessions for employees and
a further 11 employees worked towards
formal leadorship aualifications funded
by the apprenticeship levy. The Company
also identified emergency successors

for all key roles and continues tc look to
identify in-house talent and fill gaps in skils
and experience to ensure rising stars are
developed and their potential interest.

As well as developing the skills of our
employees, the Board recognises the
importance of instilling Centaur's values

in the culture of the Company and the
necessity for high standards of business
conduct across the breadth of the Group; it
is integral to delivering on our strategy.

These values and standards are cascaded
to the business from the Executive
Directors, through the Executive Committee
and the senior leadership team, to
employees. This is done through weekly
staff updates, Q&A sessicns, business unit
Town Hall meetings, ana other formal and
informal methods of communication,

Employee engagement - DICE

in action {Diversity, Inclusion,
Culture and Engagement}

DICE was formed during 2019 with the
purpose of helping the business build

a more diverse, inclusive and engaged
workforce by driving positive change, DICE
comprises ten employees from across

the Group and is led by one of our senior
leadership team. DICE reports to the CEC,
and Carcl Hosey is the Non-Executive
Directer sponsor of DICE. Her role is to
ansure that employee sentiment is Claarly
communicated to the Board and that

our gender, diversity and environmental
ambiticns are redlised with actionable plans.

During 2020, DICE cemented its position

as a critical element in Centaur's continued
success, playing an integral role in
supperting engagement with our workiorce
during a period of significant disruption
brought aboul by the pandemic. DIGE made
sure that everyone at Centaur felt connected
and helped to build our community and
culture. During 2020 DICE initiatives took
centre-stage and included the following:

www.centaurmedia.com

Diversity & Inclusivity
in 2020

* Antiracism Pledge - published a
six-point commitment to help drive
anti-racism in the industry and
improve black and minority ethnic
representation;

* Socio Economic Diversity —
collaborated with The Social Mobility
Foundation to invest in a series of paid
internships that will offer a broad range
of journalism experience to individuals
from low income backgrounds;

+«  LGBTQ+ Commitment — published a
six-point commitment to support the
LGBTQ+ community at Centaur;

* Gender Diversity — hosted a series
of working groups discussing issues
surrounding gender equality, including
flexible working options and training
and prograssion plans;

STRATEGIC REPORT ‘

Mentorship Scheme - launched a
mentoring scheme focused on helping
amployees from under-represented
groups to reach their full potential:

Diversity and Inclusivity Training -
unconscious bias training rolled-odt for
all Centaur employees;

Diversity at Grassroots — partnered
with Brixton Finishing School in order
to source new untapped diverse talent
from underrepresented groups which
will be actioned in 2021; and

Community Group Forum — set up The
Community Group forum which acts
as a space of openness and inclusivity
where employees can speak freely
about issues regarding race.
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Culture and Engagement
in 2020

*  Weekly Newsletter — Centaur
Lockdown Roundup included
recommendations an TV, fim, books
and recipes as wall as anline fitness
and wellbeing oragramimes to support
employees;

+ Feedback Forums — 1t 1 and group
feedback sessions organised to better
understand employee sentiment and
achieve greater employee satisfaction;

*  Virtuai Coffee Mornings — set up
to help empioyees maintain social
relationships while working remotely;

*  The Virtual Pub Quiz — a hit with
employees in 2020 and will be
continued in 2021;

+  Film and Book Ciub - virtual fiim and
book club launched;

» Foodbank Donation - organised a food
delivery for our local community facd
bank (Waterloo Foodbank] fallowing
generous donations from employees;
and

*  Virtual Events - summer escape
room and virtual Christmas celebration
events.

All DICE's initiatives were very well received
with qualitative employee feadback
conducted across the breadth of the
business.

Environmental, social and governance (ESG)
criteria are of high importance to younger
talent when making their career choices and
are also an increasingly significant element
for investors when making their investment
decisions: DICE plans to be the key driver in
Gentaur's environmental and social policy and
has devised 11 key workstreams to support
the business in driving continued social and
environmental change in 2021. We will report
on this in aur 2021 Annual Report.

The Group has a whistleblowing policy

in place enabling emplayees to report
any concerng about improper practices,
including relating to its environmental and
social responsibility practices.

Other initiatives

During & year of unprecedented disruption
brought about by the pandemic, the Board
implemented new initiatives 10 support our
colleagues. These included:

* Al business Q&A sessions - From

March 2020, these monthly sessions

took place via Teams and gave alf

employees the opportunity o hear
updates from senior l8aders and ask
questions on any matters of concern.

= CEO “Kaizen” breakfasts - During 2020,
the CEQ met with every employee from
the business to hear about employee
experiences at Centaur, learn what
is working and what could be done
better, and gather ideas and insights on
ways to improve the business. Up to
six employees attended esach breakfast
giving everyone a chance to speak
while maintaining an informal tone. The
insights collected from these breakfast
meetings were used to set up cross-
company projects to address some of
the matters raised. Kaizen is a business
philosophy regarding the processes that
coentinuously improve operations and
involve afl employees.

Suppoart during Covid
We provided:

*  access to Unum "Lifeworks’, an
employee assistance programme
providing counselling, support with
Covid, managing finances, assistance
with legal matters, and mental heaith
support services as well as giving
access to virtual GP appointments free
of charge.

+ five mental health first-aicers
were trained who employeas can
confidentially engage with regarding
any issues they may have. This was
supplemented with a variety of webinars
and initiatives to support those coping
with change and uncertainty, building
resilience and working from home
effectively.

Festivm
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« access to NABS, which is a support
organisation for the advertising and
media industry, was also made available
to employees.

Having seen, first-hand, the benefits of
these initiatives, as weill as listening o
employee feedback, the Board will be
maintaining these practices going forward.

Health and safety

We are committed to the safety of our staif

and, while the nature of the business and

our WeWork serviced offices make risk of

work-based accidents relatively fow, the

Group lakes its responsibilities for the health

and safety of its employees sericusly. We

have a detailed health and safety policy

outlining the responsibitities of aur staff to .
ensure workplace safety and our Health '
and Safety Committes, which is responsible

for overseeing the application of this Policy,

meets every six manths and reports directly

to the Board.

In normal circumstances, our Office
Manager is responsible for maintaining

a safe erwironment for employses at our
WeWork offices and an accident book is
avaiiabie to all staff in reception. We aiso
periodically carry out internal health and
safety reviews, taking foliow up action to
maintain standards where necessary, and
undertake staff training in relation ta fire
safety. To minimise risk to the health and ,
safety of our employess in the event ofa

major disaster or emergency, our business

continuity plan is regularty revised and

tested.

While most of 2020 was spent working from
home due to Covid, our Health and Safety
Committee continued to operate and we
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sent out surveys to employees to ensure
they had the right equipment to work
safely and comfortably from their homes.
We supplied suitable equipment to allow
employees to work from home in a safe
and healthy way, including furniture and T
equipment.

Diversity

Centaur strongly encourages diversity
across the Group and considers it an

integral element of ensuring our success

as a business. We strongly believe that a
workiorce with diverse experiences and
diverse ideas makes for a better business
and we are committed to recruiting and
promoting the most talented people from the
widest pool. Te do this, we offer apprentices,
internships, and work experience
opportunities to young people from all
backgrounds and provide equal opportunities
for all current and prospective employees.

To support this aim, the Group has an
Inclusion, Civersity and Equality Palicy
which covers recruitment and selecticn,
premotion, training and development, and
standard contract terms for all staff. In
recent months DICE has been instrumental
in developing our Antiracism & Inclusivity
and LGBTQ+ pledges.

At 31 December 2020, two of our six (33%)
Board members are female and one out

of our five {20%) Executive Committee
members is female. The percentages
fluctuated during the year due to changes in
the Board’s membership.

As at 31 December 2020, 58% of our
employees are female employees and
42% are male. We proudly support flexible
working opportunities, and over 10% of
staff are employed on a part-time basis.

Gender pay

We carry out an annual analysis an Gender
Pay and will be submitting and publishing
the result for 2020 at the beginning of April
2021. The report can be found on our
website www.centaurmedia.com.

Anti-slavery and human
trafficking policy

We implemented the provisions of the
UK Modern Slavery Act 2015in 2016
and adopted an anti-slavery and human
trafficking policy. Our Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement is pubiished on our
website in March each year.

www.centaurmedia.com

Community

The Group supperts local communities
and charitable organisations through direct
fundraising, donation and pro-bono wark.
In 2020, due to the pandemic the Group
did not actively support a specific charity,
but employees made generous donations
to The Waterloo Foedbank and this was
supplemented by a donation of £2,000 by
Centaur after the end of the financial year.
In 2021 the Group will suppert The Trussell
Trust, an organisation that aids a nationwide
network of food banks to provide
emergency food and support to people
locked in poverty. DICE will be organising a
series of virtual fundraising events to raise
money to support this worthy cause.

In 2019, £75,125 was donated to The
Alzheimer's Society. These donations
comprised employee contributions from

a variety of inttiatives including bake sales
and sporting events, a Group centribution

STRATEGIC REPORT '

and third-party contributions raised through
our events.

Ag and when the pandemic situation
permits, the Gronp will offer cach employee
a paid day off to spend volunteering for

a not-for-profit cause or charity of their
choice We also cperate a Give-As-You-
Earn scheme through the payroll and

offer employees the option to undertake
Volunteer Days.

Governance

Details on Governance are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report starting on
page 43.

The Strategic Report was approved by the
Board cf Directors and signed by order of
the Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secratary

16 March 2021
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Centaur Media Plc

Board of Directors

COLIN JONES
Chair

Colin joined Centaur in September 2018
and became Chair from June 2018, Until
June 2018, Colin was Finance Director

of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
(Euromoney), where he worked in leadership
roles in the UK and US for 22 years. He

is also an independent non-exscutive
diractor, and audit committee chair, at M&C
Saatchi Plc, and a non-executive director
and trustee of City Lit, London's leading
adult education college. During his time at
Euromoney, Colin was instrumental in its
transformation from its traditional media
roots to a global, B2B digital information
services group. He alse has extensive

ME&A expertise through Euromoney's many
successful transactions. Prior to joining
Euromoney, Colin was a Director at Price
Waterhouse Europe, where he qualified as a
Chartered Accountant.

Member of the Remuneration and
Nemination Commitiees. (Chair of
Remuneration Committee until 5 February
2020)

SWAGATAM MUKERJI
Chief Executive

Swag joined Centaur in July 2016 and has
previously held senlor international general
management ang commercial financial
positions with several blue chip FMCG
companies, including United Biscuits

plc, Guinness plc and Virgin, where he
operated as a value creator, trouble-shooter
and change agent. As Group Finance
Director of Biocompatibles international
plc, he Go-lad the cormmercialisation and
growth of the company with the CEC,
increasing the share price fourfold in a
falling market. Since then, he has been

a C-suite director of three private equity
backed businesses in a variety of sectors
with the cormmon themes of strategy
refresh and shareholder value growth. He
has also led a substantial number of M&A
transactions and multi-lender refinancings.
Swag qualified as a Chartered Accountant
at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and is a
Warwick MBA.

SIMON LONGFIELD
Chief Financial Officer

Simoen jeined Centaur in November 2013.
He spent the previous 10 years as CFO

of BMI Research, a leading provider of
macroeconomic, industry and financial
market analysis, which was acquired by
Fitch Group in 2014. During his time at BMI
Research revenues more than doubled as
the company éxpanded internationaily with
Simon's support. Prior to this, Simon was
CFO of Newfound, an AiM-listed property
and leisure group. Simon began his career
at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP where he
quaiified as a Chartered Accountant and
worked in London and Australia.
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WILLIAM ECCLESHARE
Senior Independent Director

CAROL HOSEY
Non-Executive Director

LESLIE-ANM QEED
Non-Executive Director

William joined Centaur in July 2016.

William is Chairman and CEO of Clear
Channel Outdoar {NYSE). He served as

a non-executive director of Hays pic from
2004-2014, has been a board member

of the Donmar Warehouse Theatre since
2013 and is an independent non-executive
director of Britvic plc. Wiliam was a Partner
and Leader of European Branding Practice
at McKinsey & Co. He has previously
served in international leadership roles at
major advertising agencies, including as
European Chairman and CEQ of BBDO
{Omnicom); European Chairman of Young
and Rubicarm (WPP Group); Chairman and
CEO of Ammirati Puris Lintas Northern
Eurcpe (Interpublic Group); Global Strategic
Planning Director of J. Walter Thompson
Worldwide (WFP Group); and CEO of
PPGH/JWT Amsterdam.

Member of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees.

www.centaurmedia.com

Carol jeined Centaur on 5 February

2020, Carol has extensive remuneration
experience at executive and board level and
has spent over 20 years in senior HR roles,
including positions at Mace, the international
consultancy and construction group, Mitie
Group plc, Nationwide Building Society and
Lloyds Banking Group.

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

and member of the Audit and Nomination
Committess. She is alsa the Non-Executive
Director sponsor of Centaur's workfarce
aclvisory panel known as DICE.

Leslie-Ann joined Centaur on 1 March
2020 and became Chair of Centaur's Audit
Committee when Robert Boyle retired from
the Board on 31 March 2020. Leslie-Ann

is an experienced nen-executive director
and chairs the audit committees at Learning
Technologies Group plc and Induction
Healthcare Group PLC. She is also a non-
exacutive director of Bloomsbury Publishing
Plc. Leslie-Ann is a chartered accountant
and her executive roles have included CFO
of the B2B publisher Metal Bulletin plc and
the cnline auctioneer Go Industry plc.

Chair of the Audit Committee and member
of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees.

Rebecca Miskin and Robert Boyle retired
from the Board and Committees on
31 March 2020.
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Executive Committee

SACQUIE MACKENZIE
Group Head of HR

Jacquie is the Group Head of HR and joine
the Executive Committee in January 2020.
Prior to joining Centaur in 2015, Jacquie
worked for Lloyds Banking Group, where
she undertook a number of senior HR
roles. She also spent five years working for
Lloyd’s Retail Banking Division in Customer
Experience and as Head of Engagement in
the London 2012 Sponsorship Team. Talent
and performance are critical to get right in
any business and Jacquie is particutarly
interested in the role that diversity, cutture
and engagement play in ensuring that
Centaur achieves its highest potential.

STEVE NEWBOLD
Group Managing Director
Xeim

ANDY BAKER
Managing Director
The Lawyer

Steve is Group Managing Director of
Xeim. He is responsible for all the brands
and services in the Xeim marketing
division including Econsultancy, influencer
Intelligence and the highly successtul

Mini MBA series. Prior 1o this Steve was
responsible for Centaur's multi-market
Media and Events partialios and Hame
Interest Division. Steve joined Centaur in
2015 having previousiy held Managing
Director roles at WGSN, i2i Events, Emap
Communications {now Ascential} and
Emap Consumer Media (now Bauer). He
has experience of running multi-channel
businesses in key sectors across both B2B
and consumer markets.

Andy is Managing Director of The Lawyer.
He joined Centaur in 2017 and has over

20 years’ experignce of running B2B and
B2C online businesses, including Managing
Directer positions in online acquisitions and
start-ups at IMV, Trinity Mirror and Guardian
Media Group. Prior to jeining Certaur, he
was Managing Director of Public Sector

at EMAPR, part of Ascential, where he
succeassfully transformed the market-leading
Health Service Journal from print to digital-
only, and from advertising to subscriptions.
At Centaur he has successfully delivered
substantial new digital products and
accelerated growth in subscriptions. Andy
holds a first-class degree from Oxford

and an MBA from IMD Business School,
Switzerland.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Centaur Media Pl {'the Company’ or ‘the Group'),
a company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales,
present their report on the affairs of the Group and Company
together with the audited Company and consclidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

There are no significant events since the reporting date for
disclosure in the financial statements.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of business
information, training and specialist consultancy to selected
professional and commercial markets within the marketing and
legal professions, cur two sectors. The principal activities of the
Company are those of a holding company.

Business review

The Strategic Report, incorporating the CEO’s Review, on pages

1 to 37 sets out a summary of the Group strategic objectives,
business model, key performance measures, operating and financial
reviews, future developments, principal risks, $172 statement and
the Environmental, Social and Governance report.

Share capital and substantial shareholdings

GOVERNANCE

Greenhouse gas emissions

Details of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are included in the
Erwircnmental, Sociat and Governance report on page 34.

Research and development activities

The Group invests in systems and website development activities -
see note 11 to the financial statements for the internally generated

amounts capitalised during the year. The Group does not incur any
significant research costs,

Dividends

A final ordinary dividend under the dividend policy in respect of the
year to 31 December 2020 of 0.5p per share (2019: nil) is proposed
by the Directors, and subject to shareholder approval at the

Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 28 May 2021 o ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 14 May
2021. The total dividends paid to shareholders relating to the year
will therefore be 0.5p (2019: 3.5p including a special dividend

of 2.0p).

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2020, and 16 March
2021 (being the last practicable date pricr to publication), notifications of interests at or above 3% in the issued voting shars capital of the

Company had been received from the following:

21 Decembet 16 March

2020 2021

Aberforth Partners LLPt 24.45% 24.36%

Harwood Capital 13.12% 17.04%

Gresham House Asset Management 7.77% 7.78%

Quaero Capital {Argos Funds)tt 7.69% 7.69%

Chelverton Asset Managementtt 7.97% 6.680%

Graham Sherrentt 5.64% 5.64%

Artemis Investment Management LLP 11.62% 4.55%
Herald Investment Management}+ _3.10% _3.75%

T This includes Wellcome Trust Limited which is managed by Absrfortn Partners LLP
11 Figures derived from share register analysis

At 16 March 2021 and 31 December 2020, 4,550,179 (31 December 2019: 6,964,613) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury, representing
3.01% {2019: 4.60%) of the issued share capital of the Campany as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, there were 800,000
{2019: 800,000) deferred shares of 10p each which carry restricted voting rights and carry na right to receive a dividend payment.

As announced on 14 October 2020, the FCA granted Centaur a temporary modification to its listing obligations under LR 6.14.1R to allow for
a minimum of 17.5% of the ordinary shares in the Gompany to be heid in public hands ('free float’). As at the date of this report the free float

8 22.7%.

Directors and Directors’ interests

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are detailed below. All Directors served from 1 January 2020
unless otherwise stated. The Board has decided to continue observing best practice by offering themselves for re-election annually.

Met 2f o nary
shaues 1at
1 January 20

Swagatam Mukerii 136,601
Simon Longfield 34,499
Cclin Jones 120,000
William Eccleshare -
Carol Hosey {appointed 5 February 2020) -
Leslie-Ann Reed (appointed 1 March 2020) —
Robert Boyle {retired 31 March 2020) 117,037
Rebecca Miskin (retired 31 March 2020) 14,800

+ Or date of resignation if eartier

www.centaurmedia.com

Mutmber of orchia g Number of arrlbinnry

Shares acounodd sharos held shaes b at
:_h_n'mqﬁ thf}_}_,'_tairm '{‘! [}f:(m‘,n-’:mt'n'-"r EU’JE'? o ]'3 M:Mu?h 302]

260,605 397,206 398,639

38.270 72,769 72,769

20,000 140,000 140,000

- 117,037 N/A

- 14,800 NZA
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Directors’ Report

CONTINUED

The Directors' interests in long-term
incentive plans are disclosed in the
Remiuneration Committee Repart on pages
51 to 65.

Qualitying third party
indeminity provisions

By virtue of article 217 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, a qualfying
third-party indemnity provision (within

the meaning given by section 234 of the
Companies Act 2008) is in force at the date
of this report in respect of each Director of
the Company and was in force throughout
the year.

The Company has purchased appropriate
insurance in respect of legal actions against
Directors and officers.

Charitable and political
donations

The Group normally supports local
communities and charitable organisations
through direct fundraising, donation and
pro-bono work. During 2020 and due to
Covid this did not happen, but employess
made generous donations to The Waterloo
Foodkank.

In 2019, £75,125 was donated to The
Alzheimer's Society. These donations
comprised employee contributions from
bake sales and sporting events, a Group
cantribution and third-party contributions
raised through our events.

No political donations were made during
the year (2019: £nil).

Employment policy

The Group is an equal opportunities
employer and appoints employees based
on their skill, experience and capability
without reference to age, sex, ethnic group,
religious belisfs or any other personal
characteristics.

It is the Group's policy to give full
consideration to suitable applications
for employment by disabled persons.
Opportunities also exist for employses
of the Group who become disabled to
continue in their employment or to be
trained for other positions in the Group.

The Group actively encourages employee
involvement at all levels, both through
monthly employee briefings and by direct
access to managers and the Executive
Committee. A warkforce advisory panel

known as DICE was set up in 2019 and
mote details can be found in the Strategic
Report on pages 15, 35 and 36. In addition,
the Share Incentive Flan as described

in note 24 encourages employees’
participation in the Group’s performancs.

All employees are regularly briefed on the
financial and economic facters affecting
the Group's performance and new
initiatives through town hall meetings and
management cascade communication.

Significant agreements

The Group's bank facility agreement is a
significant agreement that is terminable
on a change of control of the Company.
In addition, awards under certain of the
long-term incentive plans, details of which
are set out in note 24, will vest or may be
exchanged for awards of a purchaser’s
shares upon a change of control of the
Company.

Conflicts of interest

Following the implementation of legislation
on conflicts of interest, reflected in the
changes to the Company’s Articles of
Association in 2008, procedures are in
place to deal with such conflicts and they
have operated effectively.

Financial instruments

A statement in relation to the financial
risk managemeant ard wse of financial
instruments by the Group is presented in
note 27 to the financial statements.

Information required under
the listing rules

In accardance with the UK Financial
Conduct Autharity’s Listing Rules (LR
9.8.4C), the informaticn to be included in
the Annual Report and financial statements,
where applicable, under LR 9.8.4, is set out
in this Directors’ Report, with the exception
of details of transactions with sharehclders
which is set out on page 62.

Going concern

The Directors have carefully considered the
Group's net current liabllity position, have
assessed the Company’s ability to continue
trading, and have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for at
least twelve months from the date of this
report and for the foreseeable future, being
the period shown in the viability staterment

on page 30. This includes consideration of
downside scenarios relating to the current
immediate risk from Caovid. See riote 1{a) of
the financial statements for further details
and page 30 for our viability statement.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company
are shown in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance
Code

The Directors’ Statemant on Corporate
Governance in respect of the Group’s
compliance with the provisions of the UK
Comoarate Governance Code s set out on
page 43.

Auditor and disclosure of

information to the Auditor

The Directors confirm that, so far as the
Directors are aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware. and the Directors
have taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as Directors in order to
make themselves awara of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditor is aware of that
informaticn.

This confirmatian is given and should

be interpreted in accordance with the
arovisions of 5418 of the Comparies Act
2006.

The Directors’ responsibility staternent is
inciuded on page 66.

Appraved by the Board of Directors and
signed by order of the Board.

HE_EN SIWVER
Company Secretary
16 March 2021
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Directors’ Statement on
Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to high standards
of corporate governance and supports the
UK Corporate Governance Cade published
in 2018. The Board sets out its report below
on how the Group has applied he principles
of, and complied with, the UK Corporate
Gavernance Code during the year.

Compliance statement

The Company has applied the provisions
set out in the UK Corporate Governance
Code throughout the year. The Board is
committed to maintaining a structure which
establishes a sound corporate governance
framework on behalf of the Company's
sharehclders. Throughout the year, the
Group has complied with all the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
except for those set out below.

In contravention of Provision 32 of the
Cade, Colin Jones remained as Chair of
the Remuneration Committee when he was
appointed as Chair of the Company on

30 June 2019 to ensure continuity following
Neil Johnson's resignation and while the
recruitment process for new Non-Executive
Directors took place. Carol Hosey was
appointed as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee, in place of Colin Jones, when
she joined the Board on 5 February 2020.

In respect of Provision 38 of the Code,
Executive Director's pension contributions
are in line with the Remuneration Policy
approved at the AGM in 2019, Swagatam
Mukeriji receives a pension allowance
equivalent to 9% of annual salary, the

rate at the time of his appointment in

2016. Simon Longfield receives a pension
allowance eguivalent to 5% of annual salary,
in line with the pension arrangements of the
general workforce.

www.centaurmedia.com

The Board

As at 31 December 2020, the Beard had
four Non-Executive Directors and two
Executive Diroctors (Chief Cxecutive and
Chief Financial Officer}. On 5 February
2020, Carol Hosey was appointed to the
Board as an Independant Non-Exacutive
Director and as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee. On 1 March 2020, Leslie-Ann
Reed was appainted to the Board as an
Independent Non-Executive Director and
became Chair of the Audit Committee when
Rokert Boyle retired on 31 March 2020.

In addition, Rebecca Miskin retired from
the Board on 31 March 2020. Biographies
for each currently serving Diractor are
shown on pages 38 and 39. The Board
endeavours to maintain diversity in its
composition with respect to gender, skills,
knowledge and length of service in crder
to ensure the balanced and effective
running of the Company. Colin Jones is
Chair of the Board and was independent
on appointment. He leads the Board

and ensures that both Executive and
Non-Executive Directors make available
sufficient time to carry out their duties in
an appropriate manner, that all Directors
recelve sufficient financial and operational
information, and that there is proper debate
at Board meetings.

The Board is responsible for the leadership
of the Company and the Group, and in
discharging that responsibility it makes
decisions objectively and in the best
interests of the Group and its stakehclders.
The Section 172 Statement is set out in
the Strategic Report on pages 31 to 33.
The Board sets the vision, culture, values
and standards for the Group. The balance
of the Board, together with the advice
sought frormn the Executive Committee
members and the Company’s external
advisors, ensures that no one individual
has unfettered powers of decision. The
Board delegates day-to-day responsibility
for the running of the Company to the Chief
Executive.

GOVERNANCE '

The Chair is responsible for the effective
performance of the Board through a
schedule of matters reserved for approval
by the Board {comprising issues considered
maost significant to the Group in terms of
financial impact and risk) and centrol of the
Board agenda. The Chair conducts Board
and shareholder meetings and ensures
that all Directors are properly briefed. The
Chief Executive, supported by the Chief
Financial Officer and Executive Committee,
is respansible to the Board for running

the business and implementing sirategy.
The Board reviews the performance of the
Executive Directors and the Group against
agreed budgets and against the Group's
objectives, strategy and values.

The Senior Independent Director is William
Eccleshare, who is also a member of the
Remuneraticn and Nomination Committees.
The Company Secretary is Helen Silver.
The Company Secretary assists the Chair
in ensuring there is efficient communication
between all Directors, the committees

and senior management, as well as the
professional development of Diractors.
Independent advisors including lawyers,
remuneration specialists and external
auditors are available to advise the Non-
Executive Directors at the Company’s
expense. All the Non-Executive Directors
are independent, and the Chair was
independent on appointment. Committee
meetings are held independently of Board
meetings and invitations tc attend are
extended by the Committee Chair to
other Directors, the Group's advisors and
management as approprate. The terms

of reference of the Audit Committes,

the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, including their
roles and the autherity delegated to them
by the Board, are available on request
from the Company Secretary and will be
available at the AGM.
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Directors’ Statement on
Corporate Governance continueo

Board meetings
During the year, the membership of the Board and of each committee was as follows:

KReumztation NI
Bard Re o ALt o thoe Conmnuttag i

Coln Jores™ T Chair - Member  Chair
William Eccleshare Senior Independent Director ~ Member Member
Carol Hosey 12 Non—Executive Director Member Chair Member
Leslie-Ann Reed 2 Non—-Executive Director Chair Member Member
Swagatam Mukerji Chief Executive ~ - -
Simon Lengfield Chief Financial Cfficer ~ - -
Eoomor Directors

Rebecca Miskin 2 Non-Executive Director Member Member Member
Robert Boyle '2 Non—Executive Director Chair Member Member

Carol Hosey was appointed as Charr of the Remuneration Committes and Colin Jones stepped down as Char ot the Remuneration Committee on 5 February 2020. Rebecca Miskin
and Rebert Boyle retired as members of the Committee on 31 March 2020,

2 Leslie-Ann Reed was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2020 and replaced Fobart Boyle as Chair of the Audit Committee on 31 March 2020, Carol Hosey jained the Audit Committee
from 31 March 2020 and Rebecca Miskin retired as a member of the Committee on 31 March 2020,

The number of scheduled full Board meetings and cornmittee meetings during the year along with attendance of Directors was as follows:

ALt Rutiunerating Rt on
Board! o itroet f;umm et
Number of scheduled 6 4 2
meetings held: o L .
Mestings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Meetings eligible to Meetings sfigible to Meetings eligible to Meetings gligible to
attended attend atiended attend attended attend attended attend
Colin Jones 6 5] - - 2 2 2 2
William Eccleshare 6 6 - - 2 2 2 2
Rebecca Miskin 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1
Robert Boyle 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1
Swagatam Mukerji 6 B - - - - - -
Simen Longfield 6 8 - - - - - _
Carol Hosey
(appointed 5 February 2020) 6 8 2 2 2 2 2 2
Leslie-Ann Reed
{appaointed 1 March 2020) 6 6 4 4 2 2 2 2

! éeven arciiaac:r’\éiru'nscheduleidiséam rﬁeet]ngs were helﬂ dun‘rig H;ﬁa; malrilvﬂrglérﬂng rorcrcr)’\.'id. One addtional Audit Committee meeti;\g was held relating to the Audt tender, o;e_
addtional Remuneration Committee meeting was held 1o address changes required to the 2020 Bonus scheme due 1o Cownd ang one additional Nomination Committee meeting was
held in respect of the appointment of Carol Hosey and Leslie-Ann Reed as Non-Executive Directors.
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If a Director is unable to attend a meeting
he or she is provided with the same level
of information as the other Directors in
advance of the meeting and given the
opportunity to express views, which will
then be shared at the meeting.

In addition to the key items identified for
discussion by the Committees above, the
Board discussed the following matters at
the Board meetings during the year:

= Review of financial performance against
budget and pricr year;

= Decisions regarding the effect of Covid
on the business and employees;

*  Review of Group strategy leading to the
closure of MarketMakers in August;

+  Review of dividend policy and
payments;

* Review and approval of budgets;

«  Review of Group key performance
indicators;

+ Approval of financial reports and
communication to shareholders and
investers; and

« Approval of the Group's internal control
policy, including a robust assessment
of the principal and emerging risks and
corporate governance environment.

Board assessment and
Directors’ performance
evaluation

The Board undettakes a formal evaluation
of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual Directors.
Individual evaluation aims to show whether
each Director continues to contribute
effectively and to demonstrate commitment
to the rolg {including commitment of time
for Board and committee meetings and
other duties). Evaluations are undertaken
annually by self-assessmeant and the
Chair's performance is also evaluated by
the other Non-Executive Directars at a
separate meeting for this purpose each
year. In addition, the Chief Executive is
subject to an annual performance review
with the Chair. New Directors receive an
induction programme and all the Directors
are encouraged to undertake continuous
professional development programmes as
appropriate. The Group maintaing insurance
cover in respect of legal action against

its Directors.

www.centaurmedia.com

Management structure

The Board delegates the day-to-day
running of the Company to the Executive
Directors, who in turn share the operational
running of the Group with the Executive
Committee. Throughout the year, the
Executive Committee was the primary body
implementing operational management
across the Group. The role of the Executive
Committee is 1o review:

+ Financial performance, the budget and
forecasts;

« Human capital management and
resource allocation including capital
expenditure;

+  Operational efficiency andg
developments (including Group [T,
procurement and facilities);

*  Product development;

*«  Market develocpment;

= Business continuity planning;

+ Internal and external communications;

» Business transformation and change
management; and

+  Acquisition and disposal plans.

The biographies of the members of the
Executive Committee are set out on page
40,

Relations with shareholders

The Company encourages meaningful
dialogue with all stakeholders. Shareholder
communication centres primarily on the
publication of annual reports, periodic press
releases, investor presentations and trading
updates. The Chairman and Executive
Birectors are available for discussions

with shareholders throughout the year

and particularly around the time of results
announcements. During the year, meetings
werg held with major sharehoidsrs following
the preliminary results in March, the interim
results in July and most recently in January
2021 following the trading update and
announcement of MAPZ23.

The Senior Independent Director is alsa
avallable should any sharehclder wish

to draw any matters to his attention.

The Directars are available for comment
throughout the year and at all General
Meetings of the Company. Centaur Media
values the views of its shareholders

and recognises their interest in the
Company's strategy and performance,
Board membership and quality of
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management. The Group therefore has

an active programme to meet and make
presentations to its current and potential
shareholders to discuss its objectives.
More details on engagement with our
stakehalders are set out in the Section 172
Statement in the Strategic Report on pages
31 t¢ 33,

Investors are encouraged to attend the
AGM and to participate in proceedings
formally or sharing their views with Board
members informally after the meeting. The
Chairs of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees are available to
answer questions. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each issue so that they can
be given proper consideration and there is a
resolution to approve the annual report and
financial statements.

The Company counts all proxy votes and
indicates the level of proxies lodged on
each resolution, after it has been voted on
by a show of hands. All shareholders can
gain access to the annual reports, trading
updates, announcements, research, press
releases and other information about the
Company through the Company's website,
www.centaurmedia.com.

Risk assessment

Risks that affect or may affect the
business are identified and assessed,
and appropriate controls and systems
implemented to ensure that the risk is
managed. The Group's risk register is
kept by the Company Secretary with input
from the Executive Committee and Head
of Legal and is reviewed by the Audit
Committee regularly with appropriate
mitigation actions also being repeorted to
and overseen by the Committee.

Principal and emerging

risks

The principal and emerging risks facing the
Group, with associated mitigating controls,
are detailed on pages 26 to 30 within the
Strategic Report.
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Directors’ Statement on
Corporate Governance

CONTINUED
Ethics

The Group carries out its business in a
fair, honest and open manner, ensuring
that it complies with all relevant laws and
regulations. The Company has specific
policies on fraud, Director confiict, bribery,
whistleblowing and slavery and human
trafficking, which are widely distributed
and compliance with these policies is
menitored. The HR team ensures that
new joby opportunities are made available
to existing employees as well as to
outside agplicants and that all employees
are able to benefit from training, career
development and promotion opportunities
where appropriate. The recruitment of new
personnel is made without prejudice and
the Group believes in equal opportunity and
encourages diversity. The analysis of the
Group's workforce and Board by gender
is set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on page 37.

Through all our interactions with our
customers and partners we ensure that we
treat them fairly and openly while abiding
by the terms of contracts and relevant law.
Equally, we treat our suppliers fairly, and
do not exploit themn or their employees,
including the objective of paying alf
suppliers within the agreed payment terms.

Mconitoring of controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
effectivensss of the Group's system of risk
management and internal controls, and
these are reguiarly monitored by the Audit
Committee.

Details of the activities of the Audit
CGommittee in this financial year can be
found in the Audit Committee Report on
pages 47 to 49.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosure in respect of the
greanhouse gas emissicns of the Group
that are attributable to human activity in
tonnes of carben dioxide is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on page 34.

Fraud

While the Group cannot guarantee to
prevent fraud, an internal control framework
is in place to reduce the likelihood of fraud
arising. The Group's whistleblowing policy
is available to employees on the Company’s
intranet, should any employee become
aware of any incidence of fraud.

Directors’ conflicts

Group and subsidiary Directors are reguired
to notify their employing company of all
directorships they hold. Annual conflict of
interest disclosures require them to disclose
such directorships or other relationships,
which they or a person connected to them
may hold. These are reviewed by the Beard
to assess the impact on the Company

and whether it would impair the Group’s
objectives.

Bribery Act 2010

In response to the Bribery Act 2010,

tha Board performed a risk assessment
across the Group and formalised its

policy to prevent bribery. The Board has

in place processes to prevent corruption

ar unethical behaviour. The policy explains
what is considered a bribe or facilitation
payment, which are prohibited, and
provides guidance over the levels of

gifts, entertainment and hospitality that

are considered reasonable. Training is
mandatary for all employees. During 2020,
an online training programme was made
avallable 1o all employees. The Group's
policy is communicated to all appropriate
third parties. The more rigorous processes
around declaring Directors' interests and
identifying potential conflicts have improved
the regular monitoring of the Group’s policy.

Whistleblowing

The Coempany is committed 10 the highest
standards of integrity and honesty. Along
with other pofcies which encourage this
behaviour, the Group's whistleblowing
policy is available to employees on the
Company's intranet. This policy allows all
employess to disclose openly, in confidence
ar ancnymously, any concerns they may
have about possible improper practices,

in financial or other matters. An escalation
process has been ccmmunicated to
employees. Any matters raised will be
investigated and resolved. The Audit
Committee will be notified of any issues
raised through this process and appropriate
action taken. However, no incidents were
ncted during the year.

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Company is committed to
implementing and enforcing effective
systems and controls to ensure modern
slavery is not taking place anywhere in its
business or in any of its supply chains. The
GCompany’s slavery and human trafficking
statement for the purposes of section

54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 is
available on the Company's website, www.
centaurmedia.com. The Group has in
place an anti-slavery and human trafficking
policy which has been made available to
employees on the Company’s intranet and
is notified to all new joiners. Training has
been provided to key employees and the
policy is communicated to suppliers and
ather third parties where appropriate.

Capital structure

Information on the share capital structure
is included in the Diractors' Report on
page 41.

Approved by the Board of Directors and
signed by order of the Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary
16 March 2021
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Audit Committee Report

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the
Audit Committee {‘the Committes’) for
the year ended 31 Decamber 2020, my
first as Audit Chair, This report details the
Audit Committee’s responsibilities and
key activities over the period. The role of
the Committee Is to protect the interests
of sharehclders regarding the integrity

of financial information published by the
Group and to oversee the effectiveness
of the external audit. It does this through
reviewing and reporting to the Beard on
the Group's financial reporting, internal
controls and risk management processes
and the perfermance, independence and
effectiveness of the external auditor.

Following the simplification and re-
structuring of the Group in 2019, and, the
rotation of the PwC audit partner for the
year ended December 2020 it was decided
that an audit tender process should be
undertaken in October 2020. Following

the tender process Crowe U.K. LLP were
appointed on 10 November 2020 for the
year end audit.

Committee composition

| bacame Chair of the Audit Committee on
31 March 2020 and Carc! Hosey became
a member of the Committes following the
retirements of Robert Boyle and Rebecca
Migkin. Our biographies are shown on page
39. The membership of the Committee is
balanced and is considered to contain the
appropriate combination of recent, relevant
financial experience through the Chalr, as
well as competence relevant to the sector.
The Executive Directors, representatives

of the external auditor and other Group
executives regularly attend meetings at the
invitation of the Committes. The Committee
met four times during the year with an
acditional meeting held in respect of the
Audit tender, with all members attending.
Meetings are held throughouit the year

and timed to align with the overall financial
reporting timetable. At least once during the
year, the Commitiee meets separately with
the external auditor and with management,
and as Chair | am in regular direct contact
with the externai auditor and with the Chief
Financial Officer.

www.centaurmedia.com

Roles and responsibilities

The main roles and responsibilities of the
Audit Sommittee are to:

+  Monitor the integrity of the tinancial
staterments of the Group and any public
anncuncements relating to the Group's
financial performance, reviewing (and
approving) significant financial reporting
jucigements contained in themn;

+ Review and monitor the external
auditor’s independence and cbjectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit
process, taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements;

* Review and assess the Annual Report
in order to determine that it can advise
the Board that, taken as a whole,
the Annual Report is fair, balanced
and understandable, and prevides
shareholders with the information they
need to assess the Company's position
and performance, business model and
strategy as required by provision 27 of
the UK Corporate Governance Code;

+  Make recommendaticns to the Board in
relation to the appointment and terms
of engagement of the external auditor
and to review and approve levels of
audit and non-audit remuneration;

» Develop and implement policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to
supply nen-audit services;

*  Review the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal financial control and risk
management systems;

+  Review the Group's financial and
operational policies and procedures
to ensure they remain effective and
relavant;

+  Oversee the whistleblowing
arrangements of the Group and to
ensure they are operating effectively;
and

* Report to the Board on how it has
discharged its responsibilities.

GOVERNANCE

Financial statements

During the year and up until the date of this
report, the Audit Committee undertack the
followiryg activitlies to ensure the integrity of
the Group's financial statements and formal
announcements:

*  Regularly met with management and
the Chief Financial Officer to discuss
the results and performance of
the business;

* Received reports from management
on the internal controls covering the
financial reporting process;

+ Reviewed and agreed the exiarnal
auditor's strategy in advance of their
audit for the year;

+ Reviewed compliance with
requirements under the UK Corporate
Governance Code, and in particular
its impact on the Strategic Report and
Viability Statement;

+ Discussed the report received from the
external auditor regarding their audit in
respect of the prior year, which included
comments on significant financial
reperting judgements and their findings
on internal contrels:

+  Met with other management personnel;

+ Reviewed and discussed with
management and the Chief Financial
Officer each financial reporting
announcement made by the
Group; and

+ Reviewed compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS').

The most significant financial reporting
judgements considered by the Audit
Committee and discussed with the external
auditor during the year were as follows:
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Audit Committee Report

CONTINUED

Carrying value of goodwill,
intangible assets and
investments

The Audit Gammittee has reviewed
management's assessment of the
recaverability of the Group's goodwill

and intangible assats and whether there
is a need for any resulting impairment,
The recoverable armount of goodwill has
been determined through value-in-use
calculations of each cash-generating unit
('CGUW) based on Board approved forgcasts
for the first three years of the value-in-use
calculation and applying a terminal growth
rate of 2.5%.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that

all goodwill and intangible assets

relating to the discontinued cperations

at MarketMakers have been fully

impaired during the year. Management’s
assessment of the recoverability of the
Group's remaining goodwill and intangible
assets resuited in no further impairment
being recognised.

At 31 December 2020 the Committee
reviewed management’s assessment of the
recoverabiiity of the Group’s goodwill and
intangible assets. The Commitiee has paid
particular attertion to the judgements and
assumptions used to forecast cash fiows,
particularly around revenue and Adjusted
EBITDA growth rates. The Commitiee
was satisfied that the forecasts reflect the
CGUs’ historical budgeting perfarmance
and that reasonable sensitivities were
performed, that the value-in-use calculation
reflects management's best estimate, and
that the booking of no impairment against
any segment is appropriate. As a result,
the Audit Committee was satisfied with the
carrying value of goocdwill and intangible
assets in the Group’s balance sheet,
Further details on goodwill and the
impairment testing are included in note 10
to the financial statements.

Going concern and viability

The Audit Committee received a report
sefting out the going congern review
undertaken by management which
forms the basis of the Board's going
concern gonclusion. During the year, the
Group closed its telemarketing business,
MarketMakers, as a loss of contracts
following the onset of Covid eliminated
the relatively low margins made by thia
business unit.

The remainder of the Group performed

in a satisfactory manner with excellent
growth in the Mini MBA and resilience in
premium content billings, combined with a
full year's benefit of over £6m reduction in
annualised overheads, compensating for
the loss of physical event revenue causea
by the pandemic. This resulted in the Group
breaking even at an adjusted operating
profit level (2019 re-presented: £1.2m loss).
The Group’s cash generation remained
strong with positive Adjusted EBITDA
despite the impact of Covid. Cash stood at
£8.3m at the end of 2020 (2019: £9.3m).

The Committee has reviewed forecasts to
cover the twelve months from signature
date based on the Group's MAP23
strategy with downside scenarios
gxplored. The Committee has also taken
into consideration the impact of the new
£10m revelving credit facifity with NatWest
on 16 March 2021. The Committee has
concluded that the adoption of the going
concarn basis is appropriate.

The Commiittee has also assessed the
statement in relation to the longer-term
viability of the Group and of the Group’s
principal risks to viability, inctuding reviewing
the long-term financial projections for the
period over which the statement is mads.
and reviewing qualitative and quantitative
analysis ang scenario testing prepared by
management. The Committee concluded
that the statement in relation ta the longer-
term viability of the Group in the Strategic
Report is appropriate.

Adjusting items

The Audit Committes has gcontinued

to challenge management over recent
financial reporting periods with regard to
the presentation of exceptional tems and
other alternative performance measures.
Adjusting items disclosed in the year
inGlude significant exceptional costs

arfsing primarily in reiation to the closure

of the MarketMakers business and some
restructuring costs in Xeim. The Committee
notes that the restructuring activities arise
from specific change programmes during
the year, and that they are material and
could therefore distort the user's view of the
Group's results. The Committee is satisfied
that it is appropriate to present these

items as adjusting items on the basis that
they assist the user in assessing the core
operating performance of the Group.

The Committee assesses the
appropriateness of all alternative
performance measures disclosed as
adjusting and the impact these have on the
presentation of the Group’s results and is
satisfied that they do not inappropriately
repiace or obscure IFRS measures. Further
details on adjusting items are included in
nates 1(b) and 4 to the financial statements.

Accounting for the closure
of MarketMakers

The Committee has considered the
accounting for MarketMakers as a
discontinued operaticn in the year. It is
satisfied that it meets the requirerments of
IFRS 5 and its classification as discortinued
operations is appropriate.

New accounting standards

No new accounting standards were
introduced during the year.

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decemper 2020



Risk management

The Group’s management is responsible
for the identification, assessment and
managament of sk and winerging risk,

as well as for designing and operating the
system of internal control as set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 26 to 30. The
Committee has assessed management’s
Identification of risk and cencluded that
appropriate mitigating actions are being
taken. The auditor has also detailed certain
risks in their report and set out the work
performed to satisfy themselves that

these have been properly reflected in the
financial statements. Tha Committee has
worked closely with management and
received detailed information to assess the
effectiveness of internal financial control and
risk assessment and rmanagement systems,
and report on them to the Board {(which
retaing ultimate responsibility). Details of
financial risks are set out in note 27.

Having monitored the Group's risk
management and internal control system,
and having reviewed the effectiveness

of material controls, Including financial,
operational and compliance controls, the
Committee confirms on behalf of the Board
that it has not identified any significant
control failings or weaknesses at any

time curing the year and to the date of

this report.

Risk of fraud

The Committee considered the risk

of fraudulent financial reporting in the
business, and through its review of the
effectiveness of internal controls and
reporting from management, has concluded
that adequate controls were in place during
the year.

Whistleblowing

The Cemmittee reviewed the Group's
whistieblowing policy and is satisfied that
this has met FCA rules and good standards
of corperate governance. Further details of
the whistieblowing policy are set out within
the Directors” Staternent on Gorporate
Governance on page 46.
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Internal audit

The Committee considered whether it was
appropriate to appoint internal auditers
and concluded that this is not currently
required given the size of the business, its
relatively centralised operations and the
risks identified together with the mitigating
controls.

External audit

The Group's external auditor was
PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP ('PwC’) until
10 November 2020 when Crowe U.K. LLP
{'Crowe’) were appointed following a formal
tender process. The Committee monitors
the external audit process to ensure high
standards of quality and effectiveness. This
was assessed throughout the year using a
number of measures, including:

*« Reaviewing the guality and scope of
planning of the audit and the level
of fees;

+  Moenitoring the independence and
transparency of the audit; and

*  (Obtaining feedback from management
and the Directors on the quality
of the audit team, their business
understanding and audit approach,
and approving reappointment.

Until 10 November 2020 when Crowe
were appeinted as auditor, PwC had been
the Company’s external auditor since

its incorporation in 2004 and centinued
following a tender process in 2016.

The Audit Committee has considered

the independence and objectivity of the
external auditor through a careful review of
their terms of engagement, scope of work
and level of fees (which are shown in note

3 to the financial statements). This included
reviewing the nature and extent of non-audit
services supplied by the external auditer to
Centaur, seeking to balance objectivity and
value for money.

The extarnal auditor is excluded from
providing any non-audit services that
individually, or in aggregate, may impair the
independence of the auditor. Prior approval
from the Audit Committee is required for
any permitted audit related or other senvices
in accordance with the regulations.
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During the year, PwC and Crowe provided
no services 1o the Group other than audit
and audit-related (interim review) services.

The external auditor's report to the Directors
and the Audit Committee also confirmed
their independence in accordance with
auditing standards and the Committee
concurred, Should non-audit services be
required in the forthcoming year, we are
likely to use suppliers other than Crowe.

Self-assessment

During the period the Audit Committee
performed a formal, questionnaire based,
self-assessment of the effectiveness of the
Audit Committee with satisfactory results.

Report to the Board

The Board has requested the Committee
to confirm that in its opinicn the Board

can make the reguirad statement that the
Annual Seport taken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for sharenolders
to asssss the Company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy.
The Committee has given this confirmation
on the basls of its review of the whole
Annual Report, underpinned by involverment
in the planning for its preparation, review

of the processes to ensure the accuracy of
factual content and by assurances from the
Remuneration Committee.

Independent auditor

A resolution is to be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting for the appointment of
Crowe as auditor of the Company.
CESLIE-ANM REED

Chair of the Audit Committee

16 March 2021
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Nomination Committee Report

Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to present the report of the
Nomination Committee for the year ended
31 December 2020. This report details

the Committee's ongoing responsibilitios
and key activities over the period. The
Committee comprises myself and the three
independent Non-Executive Directors,
William Eccleshare (Senior Independent
Director), Carol Hosey and Leslie-Ann
Reed. Over the past 12 months, Centaur
has benefited from a stable, enthusiastic
and committed Board and this has

been invaluable in ensuring a calm and
measured response to the challenges of the
Covid pandemic.

Nomination Committee
Responsibilities

The Committee’s key responsibilities
include:

+ Reviewing the Board's structure, size
and composition;

*  Reviewing the compesition of Boarg
Committees;

«  Defining the role and competencies
required for appointments to the Board:

+  Identifying, nominating and reviewing
candidates for appointment to the
Board;

*  Managing succession planning for
all members of the Board and senior
management team; and

« Reviewing the leadership needs of the
arganisation, including Exacutive and
Non-Executive Directors as well as
senior management.

The appointment of Directors is a matter
for the Board, which considers the
recommendations of the Nomination
Committee. The Committee is responsible
for ensuring that the Board and the Board
Committees are properly constituted and
balanced in terms of skills, experience and
diversity. Our policy on Board diversity is
set out in the Directors’ Report above. For
most of the year, we had two female Board
members, representing one-third of the
Board. Details of diversity/gender in the
Company are set out in the Environmantal,
Social and Governance Statement on
page 37.

Activities during the year

During early 2020, the focus of the
Committee was the appointment of two
new independent Non-Executive Directors
in preparation for the retirements from

the Board of Robert Boyle and Rebacca
Miskin. For all appointments the Committee
followed a rigorous process that was
approved by the Board.

In additicn to the relevant skills required

to fulfil the chair roles for the Audit and
Remureration Committees, media sector
and listed company experience were also
requirements for at least one of the new
appointments, The role specification also
reflected the Committee’s desire to elevate
the importance of pecple at Board level by
hiring a non-executive with strong human
resource skills. Thanks to its wide network
of contacts, the Committee was able o
identify potential candidates without the
use of an external search consultancy or
open advertising. Following a short list

and interview exercise, the appointments
of Carol Hosey and Leslie-Ann Reed were
recommended to the Board. A reputable
independent executive search consultant,
Inzito, undertook the referencing process.

Carol Hosey was confirmed as a
Non-Executive Cirector, Chair of the
Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee with effect
from 5 February 2020. She also became

a member of the Audit Committee on

31 March 2020. Carol has extensive
remuneration experience at executive and
board level and has spent over 20 years

in senior HR roles, including positions at
Mace, Mitie Group plc, Nationwide Building
Scciety and Lloyds Banking Group. Carol’s
experience also means she is well placed
as the NED sponsor of Centaur's workforce
advisory panel, DICE.

Leslie-Ann Reed was confirmed as a
Non-Executive Director and a member of
the Audit, Rermuneration and Nomination
Committees with effect from 1 March
2020, She became Chalr of the Audit
Committee when Robert Boyle retired

cn 31 March 2020,

Leslie-Ann is an experienced non-executive
director and chairs the audit committees

at Learning Technologies Group plc and
Induction Healthcare Group PLC. She is
also a non-executive director and member
of the audit and remuneration committees
of Bloomsbury Publishing Plc. Leslie-Ann's
executive roles have Included GFO of the
B2B publisher Metal Bulletin plc and the
onling auctioneer Go Industry plc.

Following the business disposals in 2019,
the Committee determined that a pricrity
during 2020 was to enhance succession
pfanning to support and develop a diverse
pipeling of talent at afl levels of the Group.
As part of this exercise, the Committee
also identified emergency successors for all
key roles in the event the Covid pandemic
triggered any long-term absences. In 2021,
we will continue to focus on in-house talent
and identify gaps in skills and experience so
that rising stars can be developed further.

COLIN JONES
Chair of the Nomination Committee

16 March 2021

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020



GOVERNANCE !

Remuneration Committee Report

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the Directors’ Remuneration Report
{or the year ended 31 December 2020. This
Is my second report as Chair of Centaur's
Remuneration Committee since my
appointment on 5 February 2020 and it has
been a particularly unusual and challenging
year, for all concerned.

As we began 2020, we were only just
starting to understand the potential
magnitude of the pandemic and the impact
it would have on people, the economy and
business. Dealing with the array of issues
that have arisen as a result of Covid has
been made all the moere difficult as few
people have had experience of leading
through such a global event; | doubt and
hope that | don't see anything of the like in
the remainder of my career.

With this as the background for the year,
the Committee has considered socme
particularly difficult issues. Healthy debate
has ensurad that the interests of all
stakeholders have been considered and

we have achieved a balanced approach in
the application cf the agreed Remuneration
Palicy and the continued commitment,
mctivation and Incentivisation of our people,
during an otherwise difficult year.

One area | would tike to draw your attention
to surrounds the 2020 Annual Bonus Plan
for Executive Directors, details of which

you can read on page 80. The Committee
considered carefully whether it would be
appropriate to make any payments under
this Plan, given the emphasis on consening
cash, our participation in the government’s
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (' CJRS')
and the suspension of dividend payments
during the year. While Centaur did participate
in the CJRS the sums received were small
relative to the costs of the business generally
and the bulk of the funds received related to
the MarketMakers business, where ultimately
we were unable to preserve the roles and the
business was closed in August.

Having given due consideration to these
points, the Committee agreed that the
proportion of bonus that was allocated

to financial targets (80%) should lapse,

as these targets would not be achieved.
The 20% allocated to perscnal objectives
looked likely t¢ be achieved in full but we felt
it was relevant and appropriate to amend
these objectives for the year to support
the considerakle efforts of the Executive
Team to drive the business forward during
the pandemic. On that basis the objectives
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relating to this 20% of the bonus opportunity
were reviewed and split evenly between
revised financial targets and the personal
objectives that had been agreed at the start
of the year {10% to each grouping).

This action had the desired effect and we are
pleased to report that business performance
has been better than anticipated at the start
of the year and parts of the business have
outperformed through the creativity and
ingenuity of our peaple. Executive Directors
wil therefore be receiving bonus awards

for the 2020 financial year of no mare than
20% of base pay. The Board has also taken
the decision to reinstate the payment of
dividends and is proposing to pay a final
dividend in relation to 2020.

| know some of you will also have questions
regarding the in-flight Long Term Incentive
Plans, which have been impacted by events
of the last year. The Committee discussed
whether it was appropriate to change

the performance conditions for these
schemes and agreed to retain the existing
parformance conditions, as a matter of
principle. An LTIP grant was made in 2020,
the performance conditions for which have
been aligned to the achievement of MAP23;
this was a reduced grant to reflect the lower
share price in the sarly part cf the year,
largely reflecting the short-term impact of
Covid, and should reduce the risk of the
Executive Directors receiving a windfall gain
at the vesting date.

The Committee alse considered reducing
the salaries of the Directors and senior
management team as part of the cost
saving initiatives undertaken to protect the
financial positicn of the Company in the
early stages of the pandemic. Ultimately
the Committee concluded that executive
ray had already been reduced significantly
by the impact of Covid on 2020 annual
bonuses and LTIP grants, and no salary
reduction was implemented. However, the
Non-Executive Directors, for whom the
annual fee is their only remuneration from
the Company, agreed to reduce their fees
by 20% for a three-month period during the
height of the pandemic.

These are just a few of the significant

issues we have discussed this year and |
hape gives you a flavour of the work of the
Committee. The full list of actions during the
year is set out below.

This report is in three parts: (i) this

Annual Statement; (if) the Directors’
Remuneration Policy section, which sets
out the Remuneration Policy approved

by sharehclders at the AGM held on 17

May 2018; and {jii) the Annual Report
on Remuneration.

Committee membership
and work of the Committee

during the year

During the year, Centaur's Remuneration
Committee comprised: Colin Jones
{Chair until 5 February 2020 when |
joined the Board and became Chair of
the Committee), William Eccleshare and
Leslie-Ann Reed. Rebecca Miskin and
Robert Boyle retired from the Board and
Committee on 31 March 2020.

The Committee had two scheduled
meetings during 2020 and met one further
time. The main Committae activities during
the year {full details of which are set out

in the relevant sections of this report)
Included:

*  Agreeing Executive Director base salary
levels from 1 April 2020,

»  Agreeing the performance against the
targets for the 2019 annual bonus;

+  Agreeing the targets for the 2020
annual honus plan and revisions
necessitated by Covid;

+  Agreeing not to use discretion to
amend the performance conditions for
the LT1Ps granted in 2018 and 2019
due to Covid;

+  Agreeing the award levels and
performance tests for the 2020 LTIP
awards;

+ Reviewing the Company's share dilution
capacity for LTIP awards;

+ Reviewing and setting remuneration for
the Directors and senior management;

+  Reviewing workforce remuneration and
alignment of workforce incentives and
rewards; and

+  Reviewing gender pay numbers and
disclosures and the CEO pay ratio
requirements.

In addition, the Committes has considered
how the Policy and practices are consistent
with the six factors set out in Provision 40
of the UK Corporate Governance Code:

+  Clarity
Our Policy (approved by shareholders
in 2019) is understood by our senior
executive tearm and has been clearly
articulated to our sharsholders and
representative bodies (both on an
ongoing basis and when changes are
proposed).
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= Simplicity
The Cammittee is mindful of the
need to avoid overly complex
remuneration structures which can be
misunderstood and deliver unintended
ouicomes. Therefore, a key abjective
of the Committee is to ensure that
our executive remuneration policies
and practices are straightforward to
communicate and operate.

* Risk
Our Policy has been designed to
ensure that inappropriate risk-taking is
discouraged and will not be rewarded
via: (i} the balanced use of annual and
long-term pay with a blend of financial,
non-financiai and shareholder return
targets; (i) the significant role played
by equity in our incentive plans; and {ji)
malus/clawback provisions.

« Predictability
Qur incentive plans are subject to
individual caps, and our share plans
are subject to market standard dilution
limits.

+ Propaortionality
There is a clear link between individual
awards, delivery of strategy and
long-term petformance. In addition,
the significant role played by
incantive/at-risk’ pay, together with the
structure of the Executive Directors'
service contracts, ensures that poor
performance is not rewarded.

+  Alignment to culture
Our executive pay policies are fully
aligned to our culture through the use
of metrics in our incentive plans.

Implementation of the
Remuneration Policy
in 2020

The Committee implemented the
Remuneration Policy in 2020 as follows:

+  Base salary levels were not increased
far Executive Directors from 1 April
2020 {contrary to the statement in
the 2019 Annual Report) due to the
impact of Covid. Therefore, Swagatam
Muketii's base salary remained at
£320,000 and Simen Longfield’s
remained at £175,000;

+  There were no changes o pension or
benefit provisions;

+  Bonus for 2020 was to be aligned with
the new MAP22 strategy introduced
towards the end of 2019. Due to
Covid, and the first lockdown which
commenced just after we signed off our
2019 Annual Report, the Committee
reviewed the bonus plan confirming
that the 80% aligned to financial targets
would lapse but that the targets for the
rermaining 20% would be changed and
split evenly between revised financial
targets and the existing personal
objectives. This approach was agreed
in June 2020, The financial chiectives
{equating to 10% of base salary) were
reset based on a forecast produced
in May 2020 while personai objectives
(alsa 10% of base salary) were as
originally approved. The revised
scherme meant that the fofal bonus
opportunity was reduced from 100% to
20% of salary for 2020; and

+  The Committee granted LTIP awards
to Swagatam Mukerji and Simen
Longfield on 3Q June 2020, Prior to thig
grant, Centaur's share price had fallen
significantly due to Covid uncertainties.
To take the low share price into account
and to prevent potential windfall gains,
the Committee agreed to a grant of
LTIP based on 75% of base salary
rather than 100% permitted under
the Policy. Additicnally, since future
performance was extremely uncertain
and the MAP22 targets that had been
set out in autumn of 2018 were no
lenger applicable, the Committee
agreaed to defer the setting of specific
performance criteria until no later
than six months after the grant. The
performance conditions were agreed
in December 2020 after a new MAP23
strategy had been proposed so that
full consideration could be given to the
effect of Covid. These performance
conditions are based on TSR, Group
Adjusted EBITDA margin and Adjusted
Basic EPS (each weighted one third).

Further details are given on pages 59 to 62.

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decemper 2020

Implementing the
Remuneration Policy for
2021

*  The base salaries for the Executive
Directors are expected to increase
on 1 April 2021 by 2% in line with the
expected general workforce increases.,
There will be no changes to pension
and bensfit provisions;

*  The maximum annual bonus for
Executive Directors is 100% of salary,
The majority of bonus potential {80%)
will be measured against financial-
basad targets with a minority (20%)
based on strategic and personal
objectives. Any annual bonus greater
than 75% of basic salary wil be
awarded i Carntaur Madia Plc stiares
and deferred for three years; and

+  LTIP awards are expected to be
granted on a basis consistent with
awards granted in prior years in
terms of grant levels (100% of salary),
Performance targets are expected
to be based one-third on Adjusted
EBITDA performance, one-third on
Adjusted Basic EPS and one-third on
relative TSR.

Shareholder consultation
and AGM approvals

At the 2021 AGM thers will be an advisory
resolution on the Annual Statement and
Annual Repert on Remuneration for the
year ended 31 December 2020. | hope we
continue to receive your support.

CARCL HOSEY
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
16 March 2021



Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The following section of the Directors’
Remuneration Report sets out a summary
of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders at the AGM

held on 17 May 2019, There have besn no
changes to the policy since that date. The
fult Directors’ Remuneration Policy is set out
below for ease of reference.

Policy scope

The Pglicy applies to the Chairman,
Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors.

Policy duration

The current Remuneration Policy was
passed by a binding shareholder vote at
the Company's AGM held on 17 May 2019
and became affective fom the date of that
meeting. The policy takes into account the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code which became effective from 1
January 2019, and other gocd practice
guidelines from Institutional shareholders
and shareholder bodigs. All payments to
Directors during the policy period will be
consistent with the approved policy.

Overview of Remuneration
Policy

Centaur recognises the need to attract,
retain and incentivise executives with the
appropriate skills and talent to manage and

Reflects the value of
the individual and their
role

Reflects skills and
experience over time
Provides an appropriate
level of basic fixed
income avoiding
excessive risk arising
from over reliance on
variable incorneg

Base salary

www.centaurmedia.com

develop the Group’s businesses, drive the
Group’s strategy and deliver shareholder
value. The main principles of the Directors’
Remuneration Poticy are:

» To achieve total remuneration packages
that are compestitive in the sector within
which the Group operates and with the
market in general;

+ To provide an appropriate balance
between fixed and variable
remuneration which rewards high levels
of performance; and

+  To incentivise and retain management
and to align their interests with those of
shareholders.

Considerations of
employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group

The Gommittee considers the base salary
increases and remuneration policies and
practice more generally for all employees
when determining the annuai salary
increases and remuneration policy for the
Executive Directors. Employees were not
consutted in respect of the renewal of the
Directors’ Remuneration Policy approved at
the AGM in 2019, although the Committee
will keep this approach under review when
propasing a new Remuneration Policy in
future.

Reviewed annually,
normally effective 1 April

Paid in cash on a
maonthly basis

Pensionable

The Committes has not set
a maxirmum ievel of salary.
Increases will be set in the
context of salary increases
amongst the wider work farce

GOVERNANCE x

Consideration of
shareholder views

The Committee considers shareholder
feedback received in relation to the

Annual Report and AGM each year. This
feedback, ptus any additicnal feedback
received during the course of the year, is
then considered as part of the Company’s
annuat review cf its remuneration policy.

In addition, the Committee will seek to
engage directly with major sharehaolders
and their representative bedies should any
materiai changes be made to the Directors’
Remuneration Policy. Details of votes for
and against the resclution to approve last
year's Remuneration Report and the 2019
Remuneration Policy are set out in the
Annual Report on Remuneration.

Directors’ Remuneration

Policy — summary table

The table below sets out the Remuneration
Pclicy approved by sharehclders at the
AGM held on 17 May 2019.

Note that payments may be made under
arrangements in place prior to this policy
becoming effective (including pension, other
benefits and incentives).

The remuneration offered to employees of
the Group will be adapted to reflect loca!
market practice and seniority.

PERFORMANGE

TARGETS AND
"ERECOVERY PROVISIONS

Not applicable

The Committea retains the

Benchmarked against
companies with similar
characteristics and
sector comparators

discretion to make increases
above this level in certain
circumstances, for example,
but not limited to:

« Anincrease in the
individual’s scope and

responsibilities
+  Alignment to the external

market

* Anincrease to reflect an
individual’s perfarmance
and development in the
role, e.g. where a new
appaintment is recruited
at a lower salary level
and is awarded stepped

increases
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ELEMENT

2019 Incentive

Plan (“2019
IP*) for 2019
only

Annual bonus

{2020
onwards)

Long term
incentives

{ PURPOSE'AND LINK
TO STRATEGY

Incentivises delivery of
2019 strategic goals

Maximum award only
payabie for achieving
demanding targets

Incentivises annual
delivery of financial and
strategic goals
Maximum bonus only
payable for achieving
demanding targets

Aligns to main strategic
objectives of delivering
profit growth and
shareholder retum

OPERATION

Not pensionable

Defarral of any award

in excess of 76% of
maxirmum into shares for
two years

Dividend equivalents
may be payable on
deferred share awards

Targets reviewed
annually

Not pensionable

Deferral of any benus
over 75% of base salary
into shares for three
years

Dividend equivalents
may be payable on
deferred share awards

Annugl grant of
cenditional awards or
cost options

Dividend eguivalents
may be payable on
shares to the extent
awards vest

200% of salary

100% of salary

Awards capped at 100% of
salary (200% in exceptional
circumstances)

PERFORMANGE

TARGETS AND
RECOVERY PROVISIONS -

Measured over 2019

Based on maximising
shareholder value from
divestments of non-core
assets, achieving stretch
profit and cperating margin
targets for the ongoeing
Xeirm business and
reducing central overhead
costs by the end of 2019

Clawlback provisions apply

Normally measured over
a one-year performance
period

Primarily based on
Group's annual financial
perfermance (majority, if
not ally

Personal and/or strategic
abjectives [minority)
Measures for the following
years will be set out in

the Annual Report on
Remuneration of the
refevant year

Clawback provisions apply

Normally a three-year
performance period

Performance is based on
financial and/or share price-
based measures (e.g. EPS
and relative TSR)

The Committee may alter
the weighting and targets
for each grant annually

if it determines that it is
appropriate to do so

Targets for the following
years will be set aut in
the Annual Report on
Remuneration

Awards vest as follows:

+  Threshold performance:
25% of award

»  Maximum performance:
100% of award

Clawback provisions apply
as well as a two-year
holding period after vesting
for LTIPs issued after

May 2019

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decembe- 2020



. ELEMENT

Pension

Other benefits

Share
ownership

PURPOSE AND LINK
TO STRATEGY

Provides competitive
retirement benefits

Provides an opportunity
for Executive Directors
to contribute to their
own retirement plan

Aids retention and
recruitment

To provide alignment

of interests between
Executive Directors and
shareholders

Notes

1.

OPERATION. -

Defined contributions
made to the Executive
Director’s own pension
plan. Cash alternatives
may also be paid

Executive Directors are
provided with private
medical insurance

Cther benefits including
company car allowance
and car parking may be
provided if considered
appropriate by the
Committee

50% of the net of tax
vested LTIP shares
required to be retained
until the guideline is met

GOVERNANCE

Up to 15% of base salary, Not applicable
although pension provision

in respect of future Executive

Director appointments will be

aligned to the warkforce where

possible

There is no maximum. Set at
a level which the Committee
congiders is appropriate in the
context of the circumstances
of the role/individual and local
market practice

Nct applicable

200% of salary Net applicable

The Annual Report on Remuneration sets out how the Company implemented the policy presented above in 2020 and will apply it

in 2021.

Not all employaes have a bonus opportunity, and below Executive Director level bonus opportunities are lower. Participation in the

2012 IP was limited to Executive Directors and participation in the LTIP was IImited to Executive Directors and certain sselected senior
management. Other employees are elgible to participate in the Company’s all employee share plan. In general, these differences arise to
ensure remuneration arrangerments are competitive in the market, together with the fact that remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior executives typically has a greater emphasis on performance related pay. All bonus schemes are discretionary.

The choice of performance metrics applicable to the 2019 IR, which is not relevant for 2020 or subsequent years, reflected Centaur’s
strategy to simplify the business and maximise shareholder value during 2018 while ensuring that there was an appropriate focus on the

remaining business.

The choice of performance metrics applicable to the annual bonus plan reflect the Committee's belief that any incentive compensation
should be appropriately challenging and primarily tied to financial measures.

The EBITDA, EPS and TSR performance conditions applicable to the 2021 LTIP awards were selected by the Committee on the basis
that they are consistent with rewarding the delivery of long-term returns to shareholders and the Group's financial growth.

Executive Directors may participate in any all-emgployee share plan, in line with HMRC limits, and to the extent offerad.

www.centaurmedia.com
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Approach to recruitment
and promotions

The remuneration package for a

new Executive Director would be

set in accordance with the terms of

the Company’s prevailing approved
remuneration policy at the time of
appointment and would take into accourt
the skills and experience of the individual,
the market rate for a candidate of that
experience and the impoartance of securing
the relevant individual.

On recruitment, salary may (but need not
necessarily) be set below the normal market
rate, with phased increases as the executive
gains experience. Pension provision will

be aligned to that provided to the general
workforce where possible. Incentive awards
would be no more than set out in the Policy
table above. In addition, on recruitment the
Company may compensate for amounts
foregene from a previous employer (Using
Listing Rule 9.4.2 if necessary) taking into
account the guantum foregone and, as far
as reasonably practicable, the extent to
which performance conditions apply, the
form of award and the time left to vesting.

For an internal promaotion, any variable pay
element awarded in respect of the prior role
would be alowed to pay out according to
its terms. Any other ongoing remuneration
obligations existing pricr to appointment
may continue, provided that they are put

to sharehclders for approval at the earliest
oppaortunity.

The Committee may agree that the
Company will meet relocaticn, legal fees or
incidentat costs where appropriate.

Service contracts and loss

of office payments

The current Executive Directors have service
contracts which have a 12-month notice
period, dated 21 September 2016 for
Swagatam Mukerji and 6 November 2019
for Simon Longfield. In respect of these
service contracts, at the Board's discretion,
a payment in lieu of any unexpired notice
may be paid, comprising an amount for
base salary, pension and any accrued
holiday entitlerment. The amount may be
paid in one Iump sum or in two instaiments
ang mitigation will be applied to the second
instalment. If termination is within six months
of a change of control, a payment equal to
12 months' salary, pension and accrued
heliday pay is payable. Where the Company
terminates the contract in any other
manner, any damages shall be calculated

in accordance with common law principles
including those relating to mitigation of loss,
Notwithstanding the above, the Company

is entitled to terminate employment without
compensation, damages or payment in lieu
of notice in specified circumstances (e.g.
serious misconduct).

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decemper 2020

An annual incentive will normally be payable
for the period of the financial year served,
although it will normally be pro-rated and
paid at the norma pay-out date. Any share-
based entitlernents granted to an Executive
Director under the Company’s share plans
will be determined based on the relevant
plan rules, However, in certaln prescribed
circurnstances, such as death, disability,
retirement or other circumstances at the
discretion of the Committee, ‘good leaver’
status may be applied. For goed leavers,
awards will normally vest at the vesting date
set out in the relevant award, subject to

the satistaction of the relevant performance
conditions at the time and reduced pro-rata
to reflect the proportion of the performance
period actually served. However, the
Committee has discretion to determine that
awards vest at cessation of employment or
to dis-apply time pro-rating.

In addition to the above, cutplacement
support may be provided and legal fees or
any other minor incidental costs which are
considered appropriate may be payable,
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Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Company Chairman’s fee is determined by the Remuneration Committee (other than the Company Chairman, if he sits on the
Committee). The fees for the Non-Executive Directors are set by the Board, excluding the Non-Executive Directars. The table summarises

PURPOSE.AND LINK

ELEMENT TO STRATEGY

Chairman Reflect time commitments  Cash fee normally paid on

and Non- and respensibilities of each a monthly basis

Executive role, in line with those Reimbursement of

Directors fees  provided by similarly sized  j.\ciqental expenses where
companies appropriate

Reviewed periodically

An additicnal amaount will
be paid for Chairing a
Committee

Letters of appointment

the key aspects of the Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors:

Thers is no prescribed

PERFORMANCE
TARGETS AND
RECOVERY
PROVISIONS

Not applicable
maximurn annua fee or
fee increase

The Committee and Board
are guided by the general
increase in the Non-
Executive market, but may
decide to award a lower
or higher fee increase to
recognise, for exampis,

an increase in the scale,
scope or responsibifity of
the role or take account

of relevant market

movements

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment with the Company, which are for an initial three-year period with
the option for an extension for a further three-year period and provide for a notice period of three months. All of the current Non-Executive

Directors have chosen tc submit to annual re-election at each AGM.

et better of Current bt o of

st appointed as wpontrent wpe ntoeont

2 Director sommencement dats cxpiry date

Colin Jones 1 September 2018 1 September 2018 1 September 2021
Wiliam Eccleshare 1 July 2016 1 July 2019 1 July 2022
Carol Hosey 5 February 2020 5 February 2020 & February 2023
Leslie-Ann Reed 1 March 2020 1 March 2020 1 March 2023
Raobert Boyle {retired 31 March 2020) 8 January 2010 8 January 2019 19 March 2020
Rebecca Miskin (retired 31 March 2020) 13 January 2011 14 January 2017 14 January 2020

Approach to fees on recruitment

For the appaointment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director, the fee will be set in accordance with the approved remuneration policy

in force at that time.

www.centaurmedia.com
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Annual Report on Remuneration

A surmmary of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied during the year ending 31 December 2021 is set cut below.

Base salary
The Executive Directars’ curtent and proposed salaries are as foflows:

HEESTRN Foan
1 Ape 2021 r "
e . _ — o R - I - s, Shange
Swagatam Mukerji 326,400 320,000 2%
Simon Longfield 178,500 175,000 2%

! The -E;s-c-ut-ive D\Fectors z-ire expected ta recewe e; 2‘-%; salarﬁ :ncre;sué fr;)rﬁ -17Apn‘\ é021 M\rT A\iﬁe wrth t-he expectad Qénera\ ;voﬂdorce mcrease Itsho_uk:l b;note(; tr.\a-l followiné tﬁé mgnoﬁ
of the 2019 Annual Report on 17 March 2020, the Executive Directors waived the 2% pay nse that was proposed to be effective from 1 April 2020.
Pension and benefits

Pension and benefits provision will be in line with the policy. Swagatam Mukerji receives a pension allowance equivalent to 9% of annual
salary, the rate at the time of his appointment in 2018, Simon Longfield receives a pension allowance equivalent to 5% of annual salary, in
line with the pension arrangements for the general workforce.

Annual bonus for 2021

The maximum bonus for Executive Directors will be 100% of salary. The majority (80%) of bonus potentiat will b& measured against financial-
based targets with a minority (20%}) based on strategic and personal objectives. Any annual bonus greater than 75% of basic salary will be
awarded in Centaur Media Plc shares and deferrad for three vears.

Long term incentives for 2021

LTIP awards will be granted to Executive Directors in 2021 as follows:

= One-third of the 2021 award will be based on Adjusted EBITDA. EBITDA threshelds and targets will be set for the year ending 31
December 2023 in line with the Company’s long-term business plan (MAP23).

*  One-third of the 2021 award will be based on absolute Adjusted Basic EPS targets. The EPS target range for these awards will also be
set for the year ending 31 Dacember 2023 in line with the Company's long-term business plan.

+  One-third of the 2021 award will be based on relative TSR measured against the constituents of the FTSE SmallCap (excluding
investment trusts). 25% of this part of the award will vest for median TSR increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for upper quartiie TSR
over the thres years ending 31 December 2023. In addition to the TSR performance condition, the Committee will need to be satisfled
that the Company's TSR performance reflects the underlying financial performance of the Company for this part of an award to vest.

The performance targets for the above awards of which the EBITDA and EPS targets are derived from the performance envisaged under the
MAP23 will be disciosed in the Directors’ Rermuneration Report to the 2021 Annual Report, subject to any commercial sensitivity.

Fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The fees for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors from 1 April 2021 are as foliows:

Tren Aot

Y apn 2 Vg 2020
- T honge
Calin Jones h o 100,000 100,000 0%
Wiliam Eccleshare’ 45,000 43,775 2.8%
Carol Hosey (appointed 5 February 2020)° 45,000 45,000 0%
Leslie-Ann Reed {appointed 1 March 20200 45,000 45,000 0%

" The fees for Willam Eccleshare were reviewed and wil be bought nto ing with those for Carol Hosey and Leslie-Ann Reed with effect from 1 April 2021. His annual fees will be £40.000
Plus £5,000 for being the Senior Independent Director

? Carol Hosey was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 3 February 2020 Her annual fees are 40,000 plus £5,000 for chairing the Remuneration Commitiee.
* Lesle-Ann Reed was appainted as Noh-Executive Director on 1 March 2020. Her annual fees are £40,000 plus £5,000 for channg the Audit Committee.

Annual Report and Financial Statements fo- the year ended 31 December 2020
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Remuneration received by Directors for the year (audited)
Directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

R Tota
Al b Benr ity DGuoties! Borsin "o Testal Finerl ERTRRINT
7!%;(}(’:“{3'.-‘? D!}O’(’I’f’({l'; - V o o R T
Swagatam Mukerji 2020 320,000 3.831 51,867 19,783 - 405,531 343,664 51.8G7
2019 278,177 3,660 404,426 19,783 115,195 821,241 301,620 519,621
Simon Longfield 2020 175,000 - 33,833 8.750 - 217.583 183,750 33,833
2019 27,428 - - 729 - 28,157 28,157 -
Non-Exgoubive Directors
Colin Jones? 2020 95.000 - - - - 95,000 95.000 -
2019 84,388 - - - - 84,388 84,388 -
Willam Eccleshare? 2020 41,586 - - - - 41,586 11,586 -
2019 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
Leslie-Ann Reed? 2020 34.833 - - - - 34,833 34.833 -
(appointed 1 March 2020} 2019 - - - - - - - -
Carol Hosey? 2020 39.000 - - - — 39,000 39,000 -
{appointed 5 February 2020) 2019 - - - - - - - -
Farmer Dircctors
Rcbert Boyle 2020 10.944 - - - - 10,944 10.944 -
{to 31 March 2020) 20198 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
Rebecca Miskin 2020 10,944 - - - - 10.944 10.944 -
{to 31 March 2020) 2019 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
Andria Vidler 2020 - - - - - - - -
{to 30 September 2019) 2019 283,691 11,076 481,806 30,166 168,626 975,425 324,933 650,492
Neil Johnsen 2020 - - - - - - - -
{to 30 June 2019) 201¢ 62,500 - - - - 62,500 62,500 -
ﬁOtBSZ ’ o T h T o o o

' The 2020 bonus amounts relate to bonuses earned in 2020 and payable In 2021 as set out on page 80.
2 The Non-Executive Directors agreed to walve 20% of their fees for 3 months between June and August 2020,

www.centaurmedia.com
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Annual Report on Remuneration

CONTINUED

Annual bonus for the year (audited)

As previously stated, due to Covid, the 2020 Bonus Plan was revised in June 2020 as there was no reasonable possibility that the financial
targets would be achieved and this portion of the bonus lapsed. The remaining 20%. originally 2ligned to the parsonal objectives, was reset
as follows:

« Personal chiectives 10%

«  Financial objectives 10%

As such the total bonus opportunity was reduced from 100% to 20% of salary

The performance against the financial objectives was as follows:

W“-Wf:;l‘t_t_n{’ o . Taget __ Mechapm o . Result  Payable
Adjusted EBITDA £1.0m The bonus was structured so that 10% of salary was paid over £2.0m CEO: £32,000
{excluding the impact target and a pro rata bonus paid of between 0% and 10% of CFO: £17,500
of IFRS 1B) salary betwesn an Adjusted EBITDA of £nil and £1.0m

The performance against the personal objectives, as determined by the Commitiee, was as folows:

0*’!‘&‘5’}’9, L 7 7 . v.frcu!wi i . ’Y‘{r}jht«r{’g‘i L NPgn{;rnz/;uLC(; L ,E”‘f—i‘y‘t‘,{’l, 7

Lead transformation of the organisation, capability and CEO One-third 100% The aggregated

cufture to enable delivery of Centaur's strategy performance

Develop a high performing ExCo and extended CEO One-third 100%  fesultsinabonus

leadership team 9;%%“?’6??:0

3 1l

Deveiop KPis to enable external and internal CFO One-third 100% oo O e
takeholders to obtain insight inte Centaur's pert opportunity for both

stakeholders to obtain insight Into aur's performance the CEO and CFO

Develop pricing and discounting strategy for priority CFQ One-third 100%

brands

Build strong, supportive, influential relationships with CEO and CFO One-third sach 80%

shareholders

! Payable: CEQ: £29,867; CFC: £16,333
The Committes reviewad and discussed the achievemant against the personal objectives, as part of the year-end review process, for both
the CEQ and CFO. Part of this review considered whether it was appropriate to make an award at all, as Centaur had been in receipt of &
grant under the government's Coranavirus Job Retention Scheme (furlough). The majority of these payments received from the Government
were intended to support the MarketMakers business. After several months this proved 1o be an unviable option, and the business was
closed in August 2020. The furlough claim for the rest of the business was minimal. The Comparyy is restoring the dividend for the year end
and therefore the Committee believes it is appropriate for the Executive Directors to receive a bonus to reflect their strong performance in
exceptional circumstances.

It was agreed that all personal ohjectives had baen achieved in fuli, with the exception of the shared abjective (bottom of the table above)
which was reduced to B0% achievement, to reflect shareholder feedback, during the year,

The above perfarmance against personal and financial objectives has resulted in the payment of a bonus of £61,867 for the CEQ and
£33,833 for the CFO equivalent to 19.33% of their respective annua! salaries against an original bonus potential (pefore Covid) of 100%

of salary.

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decembe- 2020



GOVERNANCE‘

Vesting of 2018 LTIP awards

With respect to the LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors (Andria Vidler and Swagatam Mukerji) in 2018 which will lapse in 2021,
vesting is based 50% on EPS and 50% on relative TSR for the three-year performance period to 31 December 2020. Further details relating
to these awards are provided in the table below:
Poatorriage Sonrlfing Weglhiting Tngets At Jutuoma: Yot g
EPS 50% 0% vesting below 4.15 pence Below threshold 0%
25% vesting at 4.15 pence
100% vesting at 7.04 pence
Straight-line vesting between these points

Relative TSR vs FTSE 50% Q% vesting below median Below median 0%
SmallCap index (excluding 25% vesting at median
investment trusts) 100% vesting at upper quartile
Straight-line vesting between these peints
Total LTIP vesting 0%

As none of the performance tests for the 2018 LTIP awards have been satisfied, awards granted under this LTIP to the Executive Directors
will not vest and will lapse on the vesting date in 2021 as follows:

Numiser of shaies Numssr ot Dale or Sharsad price Vaiee
[hrector wnder award Voesting shanes vesting vesling v vesting v
Andria Vidler 740,807 0% 0 6 April 2021 N/A -
Swagatam Mukerji 506,072 0% 0 6 April 2021 N/A -

Grant of LTIP awards in 2020

LTIP grants were made on 30 June 2020 to Swagatam Mukerji and Simon Lengfield in their roles as CEQ and CFO respeactively over shares
equal to 75% of salary with performance tests based on Adjusted Basic EPS, Group Adjusted EBITCA margin and relative TSR {each
weighted one third). Details of this award are set out below:

Number of
shares under Faco value of Porformance Parformance
Diroctor Award date award Basis awarc? conditon pernd
Swagatam Mukerji 30 June 2020 . Méé"d.déwom " ' 75% of £240.000 Seebelow 1 January 2020
base salary to 30 June 2023
Simon Longfiekd 30 June 2020 525,000 75% of £131.250 Seebelow 1 January 2020
base salary to 30 June 2023

* The share price used I calculate the face value of the award was the average share price for the 5 working days pricr to the date of grant.

The performance conditions for this award, including EBITDA and EPS targets derived from the first two years of the MAP23, are set outin
three parts beiow:

Seof shares amch will vostf tar et

Partormance condit'on Werghting Meastemant potied Fargots arhieverd
Adjusted Basic EPS' 33.3% 3 years to Threshold? 25%
31 December 2022 Top? 100%
Between threshold and top Straight-iine basis between

25% and 100%

Group Adjusted EBITDA 33.3% 3yearsto Bottom %2 25%
margin? 31 December 2022 Top %2 100%
Between bottom and top Straight-line basis between 25%
and 100%
Relative TSR vs FTSE 33.4% 3vyears to Median 25%
SmallCap index {excluding 30 June 2023 Upper Quartile or above 100%
investment trusts) Between Median and Upper Pro-rata on a straight-fine basis

at 30 June 2020°

Quiartile between 25% and 100%

2 The performance targets for Adjusted Basic EPS and Adusted EBITDA margin for the three years, dertved from MAP23, are commercially sensitive and are not disclosed. They wil
remain commercially sensitive during the three-year paricd of performance until the calgulation is performed and disclosed in the 2022 Annual Report.

3 The TSR element will only vest it there has been sustained improvement in the Company’s undertying financial performance over the performance period. TSR is measured over the
3-year period from 1 July 2020 — 30 June 2023.

Swagatam Mukerji purchased 6,919 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan. The Comoany matched these shares ona 1
for 2 basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resulting in 3,459 matching shares being awarded in the year.

www.centaurmedia.com
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Board changes and payments for loss of office (audited)

Carol Hosey was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 5 February 2020 and Leslie-Ann Reed was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director an 1 March 2020. No payments for loss of office were paid or are payabie to Robert Boyle or Rebecca Miskin wha both retired from
the Board and committess on 31 March 2020,

Payments to past Directors (audited)

Consistent with a long-standing arrangerment, Graham Sherren, former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, was paid £3,000 during the
year (2019: £3,000) for advisory services performed.

Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)

Share awnershio plays a key role in the alignment of our executives with the interests of shareholders, The Executive Directors are expected
to build up and maintain a shareholding in the Company equal to 200% of salary from the date of the 2019 AGM. Where an executive does
not meet this quideline, they are required to retaln at least 50% of the vested shares net of tax under the Company's LTIP until the guideline
is met,

The tables below set out details of Executive Directors’ outstanding share awards under LTIP schemas (which will vest in future years,
subject to performance and continued service). Under sach scheme the exercise price is £nil.

Share
At At price 3
3 Decamoe 3 Decnsher Date nt Potermance Cxeroise date of
L o ; 20 ‘Lj MC“ anterd Exeroimad’ . ’%];: -\N\’J L W’J’%G L wuwex;fyl . p_fif'\_uc( o ._Bneﬁo,,d_, grant
Simon Lengfield - 525,000 - - 525,000  30/Q6r20 Qi/01/2Q 30/06/23 25.0p
2020 —-30/06/23 - 31/12/23
- 525,000 - - 525.000
Swagatam Mukerji 274273 - 274273 - - 24/0417 01/01/17 24/04/20 45.8p
2017 -31/12/19 - 30/06/20
2018 506,072 - - - 506.072  06/04/18 01/01/18 06/04/21 50.2p
-31/12/20 -~ 05/10/21
2% 758,293 - - - 758.293  Q3/10/19 01/01/19 03/10/22 42.2p
—-3112/21 - 02/04/23
2020 - 960,000 - - 960.000  30/06/20 01/01/20 30/06/23 25.0p
-30/06/23 -31/12/23
1.638,638 960,000 274,273 - 2.224,365

T s disclosed v last vear's Annual Repert, the TSP part (0% of the 2017 Award vested, whersas the EPS pert [50%) of the 2017 Award lapsed Bror to 31 Decarmber 2019, Swag
Mukerj exercised 274,273 shares on 28 Aprl 2020 and sold encugh shares to pay his tax and NI, retaining 145,106 shares which are reflected in the table befow.
2 Performance conditions for LTIPS granted in 2018 and 2019 nave not been adiusted and the Award granted in 2018 wili lapse in 2021,

The table below sets out the number of shares held or potentially held by Directors {including their connected persons where relevant).

Sharenolding ltcresiy
gquidehne insharo
intorests e nichnary shares acvoved” sehomes
31 December 37 Decarbcr
2019 2026 LTIP Toiai
Exinutiye i
Swagatam Mukeri 136,601 397.206" No 2,224,365 2,621,571
Simon Longfieid 34,499 72789 No 525,000 597,769
Mor-E<pontives
Colin Jones 120,000 310.000 N/A - 140,000
William Eccleshare - - N/A - -
Carof Hosey {appointed 5 February 2020) - - N/A - -
Leslie-Ann Reed (appeinted 1 March 2020) - - N/A - -

' 570.227 of these shares aré held by Rina Muken
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GOVERNANCE ﬁ

The graph below shows the TSR of Centaur Media Plc compared to the performance of the FTSE SmallCap index {excluding investment
trusts) over the last ten and a half years. This comparator has been chosen on the basis that it is the index against which performance for
the purpose of share awards made under the LTIP is assessed. Owing to the change to the financial year end in 2014, there was no
financial year ended 30 June 2014 and, instead, TSR performance for the 18 months ended 31 December 2014 is shown.

The graph shows the value of £100 invested in Centaur Media Plc on 1 July 2010 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE

SmallCap index {excluding investment trusts) at each financial period end.
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@ CortamMedin —e— TTSE SmaltCan (oedus ng Ivastneont Trusts:
Source: Datastream {Thomson Reuters}
History of remuneration for the CEO
The table below sets out the CEO single figure of total remuneration over the past ten and a half years.
Total -t
rermnneration AN aonus et ves
Peaiod ended CET N oof mas it max)
31 December 2020 S Swagatam Mukerj 405,531 19 0
31 December 2019 Swagatam Muker]i
{from 4 September 2019} 258,743 70 N/A
Andria Vidler
{until 30 September 2019) 975,425 63 50
31 Decemnber 2018 Andria Vidler 430,859 0 0
31 December 2017 Andria Vidler 558,626 37 0
31 December 2016 Andria Vidler 422,605 0 0
31 December 2015 Andria Vidler 416,607 2z N/A
31 December 2014 Andria Vidler 670,077 56 N/A
{18-month period) (from 14 Novermber 2013)
30 June 2013 Geoff Wimot 514,920 0
30 June 2012 Geoff Wimot 363,321% 7 0
30 June 2011 Geoff Wilmot 568,673 58 0

" Based on salary and benefts for the pericd from 4 September 2019 to 31 Cecember 2019 and a pro-rated porfion of the 2019 IP relaling to that period, Excludes the LTIF part of his

remuneration on the basis that this related to his role as CFO.
¢ Based on total remuneration including salary, benefits, 2019 IP and LTIP remuneration, but excluding £352,642 contractual notice payment.
3 Excludes £384,704 termination and contractual notice payment as detailed in the 2013 Report and Accounts.
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Change in remunetration of the CEQ, other Directors and employees

The percentage change in remuneration between 2019 and 2020, excluding LTIP and pension contributions for the CEO, CFO, Non-
Executive Directors and for the average of all other employees in the Group was as follows:

 %ohange2020v 2018
Taxahie
Base salary Bengfits
Exacutive Diroctors
Swagatam Mukerji' 15% 6%
Simon Longfield? 0% 0%
Non-Executive Dirociors
Colin Jones? 13% N/A
William Eccleshare (5)% N/A
Carol Hosey N/A N/A
L eslie-Ann Reed N/A N/A
Empioyee population (11%) {6%)

1 This increase reflects the increase from Swagatarm Mukerf's salary as CFO of £260,100 to his salary as OFO from 4 September 2019 of £320,000. Thers has been no ingrease in his
salary and benefits since this date.

2 There has been no change in Simon Longfield’s salary and benefits since he jeined Centaur on & Novermber 2019.

' The increase in remuneration for Colin Jones reflects the incréase in Tees from £43, 775 pa as Non-Executive Directar t¢ £125,600 pa on apeaintment a8 Chairtnan on 30 June 2018,
and the subsequent reduction of 20% to £100,000 pa from 1 January 2020,

CEO pay ratio
The tables below set out a comparisen of the CEO total remuneration to the equivalent remuneration of the upper quartile, median and lower
guartile UK employees:

25th 0 tile Medan TSthoenle
-“‘"‘F, ) hiethod ay valio R pay rr—"\pg 7
2020 Option C' 141 10:1 71

! ;I:I'lieﬁgroup hias used Opuon [# gﬁfeﬁ lhé(this method of calcu]él;c;a was coﬁsideréd 10 be the most efficient and robust approach in respect of gathenng recent and readily avallable data
for 2020, The annualisation of employee remungration data for December 2020 is considered representative of the relevant quartiles.

Sarary Total renrinarabion

Year L ,’gzth s Mzr,_i_l_a_!\ ) -jt’)'h ‘I\.I(,-_ 251_I_1 e _ Mrw;_. han f‘?ih ‘_:tnllf;m
2020 £28,014 £36,360 £51,000 £29,988 £40,000 257,740
Change in remuneration of the CEO

73 s sy i L o Ia.xat]!;_‘ iJ\’f‘:’;‘:-Ti . o . _5_'&1:1‘.1(; i B o

Rlalels) 2019 % Change 2020 2019" % Change _o20an 2019" % Change
CEQ' £320,000  £363.801 (12)% £3.881 247,105 (92)% £61.867 £616,875 Q0)%
Salaried employees? 50,630  £56,894 {111% £2478 £2,629 B)% £1.395 £4,849 7%

' -201 éEEb_ram:me%En caICulat-e_d_ basegﬁ-ﬁ_g -moF\th-'s_s;a-l;ry, Denéas E;d b;:w:;s lorAnan; Vldier Ggro thme béim of atepﬁ;g? down;om lh; Board onme"r? gﬁtemberé& 9 a"rmu; ?37
morth's salary, benefits and bonus for Swag Mukerji thersafter.

z Galculated based on average remuneration for all employees in the Group (exciuding discontinued operations). Average base salanes have recuced due 1o a number of higher paid
employees leaving the business in 2019 following the divestment and restructunng programme. Bonuses have also reduced m 2020 due to the impact of Covid.,

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The following table sets out the percentage change in distributions to shareholders and employee remuneration costs.

Tl 2019 % Change
Employae remuneration costs? £17.2m £21.7m {21)%
Dividends paid and share repurchases £l £7.7m {(100)%

' 2019 employee chtsW (é-p;eseq;led as per ncie 5 of the financial étalerr’wents‘
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committes is responsible for monitering, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board at least annually on the
broad policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Chairman, Caompany Secretary and management tier below the Board.

It also determines their individual remuneration packages, including pensicn arrangements, bonuses and all incentive schemes and the
determination of targets for any performance-related pay schemes operated by the Group. In addition, the Committee reviews pay and
conditions across the warkforce and takes this into account when considering executive remuneration. Minutes of Committee meetings are
circulated to the Board once they have been approved by the Committee.

External advisors

The Remuneration Committee has access to independent advice where it considers it appropriate. During the year, the Committee sought
advice relating to executive remuneration from FIT Remuneration Consultants (‘FIT’), who were appointed by the Committes. The Committee
is satisfied that the advice recsived from FIT in relation to executive remuneration matters during the year under review was objective and
independent, FIT is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and abides by the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of
Conduct. The fees charged by FIT for the year, based on time and materials, amounted to £6,888.

Statement of shareholder voting
The voting results for the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (2019 AGM) and fast year's Directors’ Remuneration Report were as follows:

Mt 9f vobes N of wotes agaanst Mo Retnmizer
for and nercentage “andd percentage P at votos

Ra;%olx_m_ur_a_ S o o o r:f_y_c_)t(_*::' astl ) mof untes cast%nm i m“vin.:;‘; M”lﬁi‘,dm
Appreval of Directors” Remuneration Policy in 2019° 102,537,475 (87 .8%) 14,247 400 (12.2%) 116,784,875 3,233
Approval of Directors” Remuneration Report in 20207 84,799,285 (75.34%) 27,744,626 (24 .66%) 112,543,911 0

* Objections were raised by 138 fo the 2019 iP, under which Andria Vidier and SWagatam Mukeni would be entitled to increased annual bonuses for cne year only.

? The votes against were largely in respect of the 2019 Incentive Plan pay-outs. This plan was put in place for Executive Directors in 2013 to reflect Centawr's strategy to simplify the
business and maximise shareholder value from the divestrment of non-core assets, reducing central overhead costs and achieving stretch profit and operating margin targets for the
ongeing Xeim business for 2019. These were partially achievad and therefore bonuses were paid as sat out in the 2019 Annual Report. The 2019 Incentive Plan was not designed to be
used in subsequent years.

Approval

The Board of Directors has approved this Remuneration Committee Report, including both the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the
Annual Repart on Remuneration.

Signed on behaif of the Board of Directors

CAROL HOSEY
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

16 March 2021
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in
Respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors are réspansible for preparing
the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and ragulation.

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare financial statements for sach
financial year. Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group financial
staternents in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {FRSs)

as adopted by the European Union

and Company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Unicn. Under company law
the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the Group and Company

and of the profit or loss of the Group and
Cormpany for that period. In preparing

the financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

+  select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;

+ gtate whether applicable IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union have
been followed for the Group financial
statements and IFRSs as adgopted by
the European Union have been followed
for the Company financial statements,
subject to any material départures
disclosed and explained in the financial
staterments;

»  make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reascnable and
prudent; and

* prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis uniess it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Campany will continue in
business.

The Directors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and
Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Group
and Gompany’s transacticns and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the Group and
Company and enable them 1o ensure that
the financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the Cempany's
website. Legislation in the United

Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissermnination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors' confirmations

The Directors consider that the annual
report and accounts, taken as a whole,
Is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group and
Company’s position and performance,
business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are listed in the Governance
Report confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

* the Company financial staterments,
which have been prapared in
accordance with JFRSs as adopted by
the Eurcpean Union, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and resutt of the Gompany;

*  the Group financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the Europsan
Unien, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit of the Group; and

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

+ the Directors’ Report includes a
fair raview of the development and
performance of the business and the
position of the Group and Company,
together with & desceription of the
principal risks and uncertainties that i
faces.

In the case of each Director in office at the

date the Directors’ Report is approved:

+ g far as the Diractor is aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which
the Group and Company's auditors are
unaware; and

s they have taken all the steps that they
ought to have taken as a Director
in order to make themselves aware
of any refevant audit information
and to establish that the Group and
Company's auditors are aware of that
information.

By order of the Board
HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary
16 March 2021



Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF CENTAUR MEDIA PLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements
of Centaur Media Plc {the '‘Company")

and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the
year ended 31 December 2020 which
comprise the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, Consolidated and
Company statement of changes in equity,
Consolidated and Company statement

of financial position, Consclidated and
Company cash flow statement and notes
to the financial staterments, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that

has been applied in their preparation is
applicanle law and International Financial
Reperting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Unicn and, as regards the
Parent Company financial statements, as
applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006.

In cur opinion, the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group’s and of the Parent
Company’s affairs as at 31 December
2020 and of the Group's icss for the
year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union; the Parent
Company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Unicn and as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006; and

+ have been prapared in accordance with
the reguirements of the Companies
Act 2008 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing
{UK) (1SAs {UK)) and applicable law. Cur
responsibilities under those standards

are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibiiities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfiled our

www.centaurmedia.com

other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to
going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we
have concluded that the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements
is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the
Directors' assessment of the entity’s ability
to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included:

« assessing the cash flow requirements
of the Group over the duration of the
viability statement based on budgets
and forecasts;

+ understanding what forecast
expenditure is committed and what
could be considered discretionary;

+ considering the liguidity of existing
assets on the statement of financial
position;

s considering the terms of the finance
facilities and the amount available for
drawdown; and

« considering potential downside
scenarios and the resultant impact on
available funds.

Based on the work we have performed,

we have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or coliectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group and Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve
maonths from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

In relation to the entities reporting on

how they have applied the UK Carporate
Governance Code, we have nothing
material to add or draw attention to in
refation to the Directors’ statement in the
financial statements about whether the
Directors considered it apprepriate to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities
of the Directors with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant
sections of thig report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '

Overview of our audit
approach

Our application of materiality

In planning and performing our audit

we applied the concept of materiality.

An item is considered material if it coutd
reasonably be expected to change the
eccnomic decisions of a user of the
financial statements. We used the concept
of materiality to both focus our testing and
to evaluate the impact of misstatements
identified.

Based on our professional judgement,
we determined overaill materiality for the
Group financial statements as a whole

to be £175,000, based on a variety of
performance based metrics, including
5% of adjusted profit before taxation

and 0.5% of revenue. Materiality for the
Parent Company financial statements as
awhole was set at £170,000 based cn a
percantage of total assets.

We use a different level of materiality
{‘performance materiality’) to determine
the extent of our testing for the audit of
the financial statements. Performance
materiality is set based on the audit
materiality as adjusted for the judgements
made as to the entity risk and our
evaluation of the specific risk of each audit
area having regard to the internal control
ervironment.

Where considered appropriate performance
materiality may be reduced to a lower level,
such as, for related party transactions and
Lirectors” remuneration.

We agreed with the Audit Committee tc
report to it all identified errors in excess

of £10,000. Errors below that threshold
would also be reported to it if, in our opinion
as auditor, disclosure was required on
qualitative grounds.

Overview of the scope of
our audit

The scope of the audit work and the design
of audit tests undertaken was solely for the
purpeses of forming an audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. All entities included within the scope
of the censclidation were included within
the scope of our audit testing.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF CENTAUR MEDIA PLC CONTINUED

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {(whether or not due to fraud) that we identified.
These matters inciuded those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the aflocation of rescurces in the audit, and
directing the efforts of the engagement team.

We identified going concerr as a key audit matter and have detafied our respanse in the conclusions relating to going concern section above.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE KEY AUDIT

KEY AUDIT MATTER MATTER

Valuation of goodwill and Our procedures ‘”Gc';‘ded: | oroced

. . +  Assessing the Group’s budgeting review and approval praocedures
intangible assets upon which the tast lluw forecants aro based.

The Group has a significant balance of intangible assets - Comparing the Group's assumptions to externally deriver data in

at 31 December 2020 and there is a risk that it could be relation ta key inputs such as projected economic growth, market
mpaired. parnium and digeount rates. Tn challenae the reasonabléeness of the
The valuation of the recoverable amount of goodwill assumpticns we also assessed the historical accuracy ol lhe Gioup's
and intangible assets has a high degree of estimation forecasting.

uncertainty, with a polential range of reasonably possible «  Performing scenario-specific models inciuding changes to, and
outcomes greater than our materiality for the financial breakeven analysis on, the discount rate, long-term growth rates and
statements as a whoie. forocast cash fiows.

There is significant judgement with regard to assumptions «  Assessing whether the Group’s disclosures about the sensitivity

and estimates involved in forecasting future cash flows, of the outcome of the impairment assessment to changes in key
which form the basis of the assessment of the recoverability assurmnptions reflected the risks inherent in the valuation of goodwill

of goodwill balances. These includs forecast revenues,

oparating margin, long-term growth rates and the discount We found the resulting estimate of the recoverable amount of goodwill

rate used and intangible assets to be acceptable.
The financial statements discioss the sensitivity estirnated
by the Group,
Valuation of investments in Qe roneckires included:
+  Assessing the Group’s budgeting review and approval procedures
the Parent Company upon which the cash llow forecasts arc based.
We consider the carrying value of investments in the v Curnparing the Group's assumplions to externally derived data in
Group by the Parent Company and the risk over potential relation 10 key inputs such as projected economic growth, market
impairment to be a significant audit risk due to the inherent premium and discount rates. To challenge the reasonableness of the
uncertainty involved in farecasting and discourting future assumptions we a'so assessed the historical accuracy of the Group's
cash flows, which are the basis of the assessment of forecasting.
recoverability. «  Parforming seAnario-specific medels including changes to, and
We consider the key inputs into the impairment model to breakeven analysis on, the discount rate, iong-term grawth rales aid
be the approved business plans and assumptions for the forecast cash fows.
growth and discount rates. W tound the resulting estirmate of the recoveralble amount of
investments to be acceptable.
Revenue recognition Our procedures included:

« Validating that revenue is recognised in accordance with the stated

Revenue is recognised in accordance with the accounting accounting policies in compliance with IFRS.

policy set out in the financial statements. We focus on the

risk of material misstatement in the recognition of reveriue, + Ensuring that cut off was correctly applied across all revenue
as a result of beth fraud and error, because revenus is streams.
material and is an important determinant of the Croup’s «  Validating a sample of revenue items to confirm revenue was being
profitability, which has a consequent impact on its share recognized in line with IFRS and ensuring the services were delivered
price performance. within the pariad.

+  Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures related to

revenue.
We concluded that revenue was reasonably stated.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decemper 2020



Other information

The other information comprises the
infermation included in the annual report
including the Strateqic and Governance
reports, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The
Directors are responsible for the ather
information. Qur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the axtent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report,

we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. in connection with

our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstaternents, we are required

to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements

or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we

have performed, we conclude that there

is a material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report

that fact.

We have nathing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other
matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinicn based on the wark
undertaken in the course of our audit:

= the information given in the strategic
report and the Directors' report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements and
those reports have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal
requirements:

+  the infermation about internal control
and risk management systems in
relation to financial reporting processes
and about share capital structures,
given in compliance with rules 7.2.5
and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure Rules and
Transparency Rules sourcebook made

www.centaurmedia.com

by the Financial Conduct Authority

{the FCA Rules), is consistent with the
financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements; and

+ information about the Company's
corporate governance code and
practices and about its administrative,
management and supervisory bodies
and their committees complies with
rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the
FCA Rutes.

Matters on which we are
required to report by
exception

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the Group and the Parent
Company and its environment obtained

in the course of the audit, we have not
identified material misstatements in:

+ the strategic report or the Directors’
report; or

« the information about internal contral
and risk management systems in
relation to financial reporting processes
and about share capital structures,
given in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and
7.2.8 of the FCA Rules.

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our cpinion:

« adequate accounting records have not
been kspt by the Parent Company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited
by us; or

+ the Parent Company financial
staterments and the part of the
Directors' remuneration report to be
audited are nct in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’
rermuneration specified by law are not
made; or

+ we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our
audit; or

+ acorporate governance statement
has not been prepared by the Parent
Company.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ‘

Corporate governance
statement

The Listing Rules require us to review

the Directors’ statement in relation to

going concern, kenger-term viability and
that part of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the Parent Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Statemant specified
Tor Qur review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of
our audit, we have concluded that each
of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially
consistent with the financial statements or
cur knowledge obtained during the audit:

+ Directors' staternent with regards the
appropriateness of adopting the going
concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified on page
42

» Directors’ explanation as to its
assessment of the sntity's prospects,
the period this assessment covers and
why the pericd is appropriate set out on
page 30,

» Directors’ statement on fair, balanced
and understandable set out on page 66;

» Board’s confirmation that it has carried
out a robust assessment of the
emerging and principal risks set out on
pages 26 to 30;

* The section of the annual report that
describes the review of effectivaness of
risk management and internal control
systems set out on page 49; and

+  The section describing the work of the
Audit Committee set out on pages 47
to 49.




Centaur Media Plc

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF CENTAUR MEDIA PLC CONTINUED

Responsibilities of the
Directors for the financial

statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’
responsibilities statement set out on page
66, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is Nnecessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or errcr.

In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assassing the:
Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the
going cancern basis of accounting uniess
the Directors aither intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease aperations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial
statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or

eror, and 1o Issue an auditor’s report that
includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance
is & high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to infuence the sconomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial stalements.

Explanation as to what
extent the audit was
considered capable of
detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Iraguiarities, including fraud, are instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations,
We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect
material misgtaternents in respect of
rregularities, including fraud. The extant

to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud,

is detailed below however the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection

of fraud lies with management and those
charged with governance of the Company.

*  We obtained an understanding of
the legal and regulatory frameworks
that are applicable to the Group and
the procedures in place for ensuring
compliance. The mast significant
identifiedt were the Companies Act
2006, General Data Protection
Regulations and the UK Corporate
Governance Code. Our work
included direct enquiry of Head of
Legal, reviewing Board and rejevant
committee minutes and inspection of
correspondence.

»  Ag part of our audit planning process
we assessed the different areas of
the financial staterments, including
disclosures, for the risk of material
misstaternent. This included considering
the risk of fraud where direct enquiries
were made of management and thoss
charged with governance cancerning
both whether they had any knowledge
of actual or suspected fraud and their
assessment of the susceptibility of
fraud. We considered the risk was
greater in areas that involve significant
management estimate or judgement.
Based on this assessment wa designed
audit procedures to focus on the key
areas of estimate or judgement, this
included specific testing of journal
transactions, both at the year end and
throughaout the year.

*  Woe used data analytic techniques to
identify any unusual transactions or
unexpected refationships, including
consideting the risk of undisclosed
related party transactions.

QOwing to the inherent limitations of an audit,
there is an unavoidable risk that some
material misstaternents of the financial
staternents may not be detected, even
though the audit is property planned and
performed in accordance with the ISAs UK.

The potential effects of inherent limitations
are particularly significant in the case of
misstaterment resulting from fraud because
fraud may involve sophisticated and
carefully organised schemes designed to
conceal it, inclucding deliberate failure to
record transactions, collusion or intentional
misrepresentations being made to us.

A further description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Finangial Reporting Council’s website
at: www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibifities.
This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Other matters which we are

required to address

Following the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, we were appointed by the Audit
Committee, on 10 Novernber 2020 to audit
the financial statements for the period ending
31 December 2020.

The non-audit services prohibited by the
FRC’s Ethical Standard were not provided
to the Group or the Parent Company and
we remain independent of the Company in
conducting our audit.

QOur audit opinion is consistent with the
additional report to the Audit Committes.

tUse of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's
memt:ers, as a body, in accerdance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2008. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required

to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume rasponsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

MATTHEW STALLABRASS
Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of

Crowe UK. LLP

Statutory Auditor

55 Ludgate Hil

London

EC4M 7JW, UK

16 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Re-presented® Re-presented® Re-presented?

Ackusted Achuating St.atutory Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
Rosults e s Rrsults Results’ lterns! Results
2020 2020 2020 201y 2019 2019
Note Eri om S £m £m £m
Continumng cperations
Rovanue 2 32.4 - 32.4 39.6 - 39.6
Other operating income 2 - - - 1.6 - 1.6
Net operating expenses 3 (32.1) 2.3 {34.7) 42.4) 8.6) (49.0)
Operating profit / {loss) - 12.3) {2.3) {1.2} 8.6} (7.8)
Finance costs 3] (0.3) - C.3) {0.3} - 0.3
Loss before tax (0.3) {2.3) (2.8) (1.5} (8.6) (8.1)
Taxation 7 0.6 0.3 0.9 0.5} 1.1 086
Profit / {loss) for the year from continuing
operations 9 8.3 (2.0) (1.7) {2.0) (5.5) {7.5)
Discontinued cperations
Profit / {loss) for the year from discontinued
operations after tax 8,14 0.1 (12.8) (12.7) 2.4 7.0 9.4
Profit / {loss) for the year attributable to
owners of the paront after tax .4 {14.8) {14.4) 0.4 1.5 1.9
Total comprehensive income / {loss)
attributable fo owners of the parent G.4 {14.8} {14.4) 0.4 1.5 1.9
Earnings / (loss) per share atiributable to
owners of the parent g
Basic from continuing cperations 0.2p {1.4p) {t.2p) (1.4p} (3.9p} 5.3p)
Basic from discontinued operations 0.1p {8.90) {8.8p) 1.7p 4.9p 68.6p
Basic from profit / (loss) for the year 0.3p {10.3pt 10.0p}) Q.3p 1.0p 1.3p
Fully diluted from continuing operations 0.2p {1.4p} {1.2p) {1.4p) (3.8p) {5.3p)
Fully diluted from discontinued operations 0.1p {8.9p} {3.8p) 1.7p 4.9p 6.8p
Fully diluted from profit / (loss) for the year 0.3p {10.3p} {10.0p) 0.3p 1.0p 1.3p

' Adjusted results exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1()
2 See note 1{a} for description of the prior year re-presentation

The notes on pages 78 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Centaur Media Plc

Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reaseras
tor shares Farewn
Share Own Share 1o bo Defarred Surrency Retamed Tetal
capital shares prem.um L] shares TRSOrve “AUNGs ~OLity
Note &m £m £m £m Sm m m £m
At 1 January 2019 151 6.9) 1.1 1.8 0.1 - 55.5 66,7
Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income - - - - - - 1.9 1.9
Transactions with owners
N ther capacity as
owWnoers:
Dividends 25 - - - - - - 7.1 7.1
Acquisition of treasury
shares 23 - 0.6} - - - - - 0.6)
Exercise of share awards 24 - 03 - 0.1) - - 0.2) -
Fair value of employes
services 24 - - - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Fareign currency an
translation - - - - - 01 - 0.1
As at 21 Decomber 2019 151 7.2) 141 1.8 0.1 01 5041 611
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive loss - - - - - - 14.4) {114.4
Transactions with owners
in theiwr capacity as
Qwners:
Exercise of share awards 24 - 1.3 ~ 0.7} - - {0.6) -
Fair value of employee
services 24 - - - 0.5 - - - 0.5
Lapsed share awards 23 - - - 1.8 - - 1.0 -
Al oal 23 DHL,LNHDU AU iR f'."n .'3,5 1.0 0.6 ni 0 36.1

The notes on pages 78 to 119 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Company Statement
of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reserve
ton shares
Share Own Share 1o be Doforred Retamaed Total
capitai shares presny ssucd shares CArpngs 2rjuUity
Note £m °m O £m o £m £m
At 1 January 2019 15.1 6.3) 1.1 1.8 0.1 63.4 75.2
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive loss - - - - - (40.2) 40.2)
Transactions with ownaers in
their capacity as owners:
Dividends 25 - - - - - (7.1) (7.1)
Exercise of share awards 24 - - - {0.1) - Q.1) 0.2)
Fair value of employee services 24 - - - 0.1 - - 0.1
As at 31 Decemnber 2018 15.1 6.3) 1.1 1.8 Q.1 16.0 27.8
Profit ke [k vear and total
comprehensive income - - - - - 12.2 12.2
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Irangter ot troasury shares 23 - 2.2 - - - (1.6} 0.6
Exercise of share awards 24 - - - (0.7) - 0.2 (C.5)
Fair value of employes services 24 - - - 0.5 - - 0.5
Lapsed share awards 23 - - (1.0) - 10 -
As at 31 December 2020 151 a1 11 0.0 0.1 248 4.8

The notes on pages 78 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated financiai statements.
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Centaur Media Plc

Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Registered number 04948078

Restated?
31 Decoember 31 December
2020 2019
Note £m &m
Non-currant assets
Goodwil 10 1.2 52.2
Other intangible assets 1 4.9 9.0
Property, plant and equipment 12 3.3 4.3
Deferred tax assets 15 2.4 1.4
Other recaivables 18 0.5 0.5
52.3 67.4
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 5.8 10.3
Cash and cash equivalents 17 8.3 9.3
Current tax assets 21 0.2 0.1
14.3 19.7
Tatal assots 66.6 B7.%
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (8.8} 12.5)
Lease liabilities 19 (2.0) 2.1
Deferred income 20 {7.0) 8.7
{17.8) (23.3)
Net current habilitics (3.9 3.6)
Non-current liabihtics
Lease liabilites 19 n.4 2.2
Provisions 22 - 0.1}
Deferred tax fiabilities 15 (0.2} 0.4}
(1.6 2.7
Net assets q47.2 61
Capital and reserves attnbutable to owners of the Company
Share capital 23 151 15.1
Own shares 5.9 (7.2)
Share premium 1.1 1.1
Other reserves 0.7 1.9
Fareign currency reserve 0.1 0.1
Retained earnings 36.1 50.1
Total equity 7.2 61.1

2 Sew note i{a) for descripton of pnor year restatement
The financial statements on pages 78 to 119 were approved by the Beard of Directors on 16 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

SIMON LONGFIELD
Chief Financial Officer
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Company Statement
of Financial Position

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Registered number 049480738

Restated?
31 Decambion 31 December
2020 2019
Note £m £m
Non-current assots
Investments 13 65.0 90.1
Deferred tax assets 0.1 a1
Other receivables 16 0.2 0.3
65.3 90.5
Currgnt assets
Trade and ather receivables 16 357 Q.7
35.7 Q.7
Total assets 101.0 91.2
Current liabititios
Trade and other payables 18 (60.4) {63.4}
(60.4) 63.4)
Net current habilities (24.7) {B62.7)
Net assets 40.6 27.8
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Campany
Share capital 23 15.1 156.1
Cwn shares {4.1) 6.3
Share premium 1.1 1.1
Other reserves 0.7 1.9
Retained earnings 27.8 16.0
Total equity © 408 27.8

? See note 1(a) for description of prior year restaternent

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 and has not presented its
own statemant of comprehensive income in these financial statements. The profit for the year of £12.2m {2019: loss of £40.2m) includes an
impairment of £25.4m (2019: £35.7m) (note 13} and dividends received from the Company’s subsidiary Centaur Communications Limited of
£40.0m {2019: £nil) {ncte 30). No dividends were paid in the year {2019: £7.1m). The other movements in retained earnings are shown in the
Company's Statement of Changes in Equity.

The financial statements on pages 78 to 119 were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

SIMON LONGFIELD
Chief Financial Officer
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Centaur Media Plc

Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Year mnded Year ended
21 Qecamber 31 December
2020 2019
Note B £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 2.1 4.5
Tax refund - Q.1
Net cash generated from operating activities 2.1 4.7
Cash flows from invesling activities
Cash cansideration received on dispesal of subsidiaries less cash and cash
equivalents disposed of 14 - 18.7
Directly attributabla costs of disposal of subsidiaries 14 0.1} (2.3
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 1 0.1 -
Purchase aof property, plant and equipment 12 {0.2) 0.2)
Purchase of intangible assets 1 {0.6) 1.4
Acquisition of subsidliary 22 - {0.1)
Net cash flows (usad 10y / generated from investing activities {0.8) 14.7
Cash flows from finamcing activities
Payment for shares bought back 23 - 0.8)
mterest paid 6 (0.2} 0.2
Repayment of obligations under lease arrangements 19 1.9 2.3)
Termination of finance lsase 19 0.2) -
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders 25 - 7.1)
Proceeds from borrowings 27 - 2.8
Repayment of borrowings 27 - 2.8)
Net cash fiows used in financing activities (2.3 (10.2)
Met (decrease} / increase i cash and cash equivalents {1.09 9.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 9.3 0.1
Cash and cash equivalents at nnd of year 17 8.3 9.3

The notes on pages 78 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Company Cash Flow
Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ‘

Yo gl Year ended
21 Decehk 31 December
K] 2018
Note om £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 26 0.2 7.3
Cash flows from imvesting actiwtios
Net cash flows used in investing activities - -
Cash flows from financing acthvitres
Interest paid 3] {0.2} {0.2)
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders 25 - {7.1)
Proceeds from borrowings 27 - 28
Repayment of borrowings 27 - 2.8)
Net cash flows used in financing activities {0.2) 7.3)
Net increasce in cash and cash cquivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year - -
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of year 17 - -

The notes on pages 78 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Centaur Media Plc

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these censolidated and Company financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the pericds presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the
Graup consisting of Centaur Media Plc and its subsidiaries, and the Company, Centaur Media Plc. Centaur Media Plc is a public company
limited by shares and incorporated in England and Waies.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated and Company financial statemnents have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRS") as adopted by the European Union and IFRS Interpretations Committee ('IFRS IC’) and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where stated otherwise within the accounting policies.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have carefully assessed the Group's ability to continue
trading and have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adeguate resources to continue in operational existence for
at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements and for the foreseeable future, being the period as discussea
in the viability statement on page 30.

Net cash {see note 1{b)) at 31 December 2020 amounted to £8.3m (2019: £9.3m). In November 2018, the Group renewed its £25m
multi-currency revolving credit facility with NatWest and Lloyds which was due to run to November 2021, None of this was drawn down at
31 December 2020, Our cash conversion rate for the year was 100% (2019: 100%). On 16 March 2021, the Group signed a new multi-
currency revolving credit faciiity with Natwest that replaced the £25m facility signed with NatWest and Loyds in 2018. The new revolving
credit facility consists of a committed £10m facility and an additional uncommitted £18m accordion optien, both of which can be used to
cover the Group's working capital and general corporate nesds. The facility runs to March 2024 with the option to extend for two periads of
one year each. The covenants regarding leverage and interest cover are identical to those of the facility it replaces.

The Group has net current liabilities at 31 December 2020 amounting to £3.5m (2019: £3.6m). In beth the current and prior year these
primarily arose from its norma! high levels of deferred income relating to performance obligations to be delivered in the future rather than an
inability to service its liabilities, as deferred income will not result in a cash outflow. An assessment of cash fiows for the next three financial
years, which has taken into account the factors described above, has indicated an expected level of cash generation which would be
sufficient to allow the Group to fully satisfy its working capital requirements and the guarantee given in respect of its UK subsidiaries, to
cover ail principal areas of expenditure, including maintenancs, capital expenditure and taxation during this year, and to meet the financial
covenants under the ravolving cradit facility. The Company has net current liabilities at 31 December 2020 amounting to £24.7m (2019:
£62.7m). In the prior year, these almost entirely arose from unsecured payables to subsidiaries which have no fixed date of repayment. In the
current year, net current liabilties are lower due to an increase in receivables from subsidiaries arising from the declaration of a dividend from
the Company’s subisidiary Centaur Communications Linited,

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.
Although these astimates are based on management’s bast knowledge of the amount, events ar actions, the actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates.

Having assessed the principal risks and the other mattars discussed in connection with the Viabiiity Statement on page 30 which considers
the Group’s viability over a three-year period to March 2024, the Directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing its consolidated financial statements.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

No new standards cr amendrnents to standards that are mandatory for the first time for the financial year commencing 1 January 2020
affected any of the amounts recognised in the current year or any prior year and is not likely to affect future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
There are no standards that are not yet sffective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Prior year re-presentation and restatements

{i} Discontinued operations

Where the reguirements of IFRS 5 have been met, the operational results of subsidiaries disposed of have been presented in discontinued
operations in the current period and re-presented as discontinued in the comparative pericd. See nates 8 and 14 for mere detalls.

(i} Correction of prior period accounting errors

A restatement has been made to prior year comparatives for the value of disposals of software which are presented in other intangible
assets on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position. The restatement is in respect of a £0.6m gross up of the cost and
accumulated amortisation of software assets with a Enil net book value that were disposed during 2019. The restatement has been reflected
in note 11. As the restatement is of the same value in both cost and accumulated amortisation, there is no impact to the gain or loss on
disposal reported within the consclidated statement of comprehensive income. There is also no impact to the balance of other intangible
assets reported on the face of the consolidated staternent of financial position. This was identified after the authorisation of the 2019 Annual
Report and therefore the balances are being retrospectively restated. This restatement has no impact to periods prior to 2018.

(ifi} Correction of prior period presentation errors

A restatement has been made to the prior year comparatives to spiit other receivables between those due within one ysar and those dus
after one year. The restatement decreased other receivables in current assets by £0.5m for the Group and £0.3m for the Company and
increased the non-current assets by the same amount as detafled in note 18. On the face of the staterment of financial position, trade and
other receivables has reduced under current assets and other receivables has been added under non-current assets.

Comparative numbers
Certain prior year comparatives have been updated to reflect current year disclosures.

{b) Presentation of non-statutory measures

In addition to IFRS statutory measures, the Directors use various non-GAAP key financial measures to evaluate the Group's performance
and consider that presentation of these measures provides shareholders with an additional understanding of the core trading performance of
the Group. The measures used are explained and reconciled to their IFRS statutory headings below.

Adjusted operating profit and adjusted earnings per share

The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share, split between continuing and discontinued operations, provide

additional useful information on the core operational performance of the Group to shareholders, and review the results of the Group on an

adjusted basis internally. The term ‘adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with similarly titlied profit
measurements reported by other companies. It is not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measurements of profit.

Adjustments are made in respect of:

* Exceptional items - the Group considers items of income and expense as exceptional and excludes them from the adjusted results
where the nature of the item, or its magnitude, is material and likely to be non-recurring in nature so as to assist the user of the financial
statements to better understand the results of the core operations of the Group. Details of exceptional ftems arg shown in note 4.

«  Amortisation of acquired intangible assets — the amortisation charge for those acquired intangible assets recognised on business
combinations is excluded from the adjusted results of the Group since they are non-cash charges arising from investment activities.

As such, they are not considered reflective of the core trading perfermance of the Group. Details of amortisation of acquired intangible
assets are shown in nete 11.

» Share-based payments - share-based payment expenses or credits are excluded from the adjusted results of the Group as the
Directors believe that the volatility of these charges can distort the user's view cof the core trading performance of the Group. Details of
share-based payments are shown in note 24,

+ Impairment of goodwill - the Directors believe that non-cash impairment charges in relation to goodwill are triggered by factors external
to the core trading of the business, and therefore exclude any such charges from the adjusted results of the Group. Details of the
goodwill impairment analysis are shown in note 10.

+  Profit or loss on disposal of assets or subsidiaries — profit or loss on disposals of businesses are excluded from adjusted results of
the Group as they are unrelated to core trading and can distort a user’s understanding of the performance of the Group due to their
infrequent and volatile nature. See note 4.

«  Other separately reported iterns — certain other items are excluded from adjusted results where they are considered large or unusual
enough to distort the comparability of core trading results year on year. Details of these separately disclosed items are shown in note 4.

The tax related to adjusting items is the tax effect of the itemms above that are allowable deductions for tax purposes (primarily exceptional
iterns), calculated using the standard rate of corporation tax. See note 7 for a reconciliation between reported and adjusted tax charges.

Further details of adjusting items are included in note 4. A reconciliation between adjusted and statutory earnings per share measures is
shown in note 9.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Loss before tax reconciles to adjusted operating profit / loss) as follows:

Re-presented?

2020 2019
Note £m £€m
Loss before tax (2.8} 8.1)
Adjusting terms:
Exceptional operating costs 4 0.2 4.7
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 11 1.5 1.7
Share-based payment expense 24 0.5 0.1
Loss on disposal intangible assets 11 Q.1 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (Venture Business Research Limited) 14 - 0.1
Adjusted loss before tax (0.3) (1.5)
Finance costs 5 0.3 0.3
Adjusted operating profit / {lcss) - 1.2}

2 See note 1(a) for description of the pricr year re-presentation

Adjusted operating cash flow

Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. It Is defined as cash flow from operations excluding the impact of adjusting
iterns, which are defined above, and including capital expenditure. The Directors use this measure to assess the performance of the Group
as it excludes volatile items not related to the core trading of the Group and includes the Group’s management of capital expenditure.
Statutory cash flow from operations reconciles to adjusted operating cash as below:

2020 2019

Note £m em

Reported cash flow from operating activitios 26 2.1 4.6
Adjusting items from operations 1.0 4.8
Working capital impact of adjusting items from operations 3.4 2.1
Adjusted operating cash flow 8.5 7.3
Capital expenditure 0.8) (1.6)
Post capital expenditure cash flow 5.7 5.7

Underlying revenue growth

The Directors review underlying revenue growth in order to allow a like for like comparison of revenues between years. Underlying revenues
therefore excludge the impact of revenue contribution arising from acquired or disposed businesses and other revenue streams that are not
expected to be ongoing in future years.

Statutory revenue growth reconciles to underlying revenue growth as follows:

Xaim The Lawryer Total

om i em

Reported revenue 2019 31.4 8.2 39.6
Disposed business - Venture Business Research {'VBR') - 0.1 0.1)
Closed svent — Marketing Week Live 1.1} - .1

Underlying “ayveniye 2019 20.3 3.1 38.3

Reoorted reven.e 2620 26.0 8.4 324

Underying savenue 2020 26.0 6.4 3z2.4
Ranorted (cvenua growth (17)% (22)¥% (18)%
Unrdertyirg -avenue growth 143% {21)° {16}~
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure defined by IFRS. it is defined as adjusted operating profit before depreciation and impairment of tangible
assets and amortisation and impairment of intangible assets other than those acquired through a business combination. It is used by

the Directors as a measure to review performance of the Group and forms the basis of some of the Group’s financial covenants under its
revolving credit facility. Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as follows:

Re-presented?

2020 2019

Note £im £m

Adjusted opcrating profit / {lossi (as above) - (1.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 2.0 2.0
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 12 - 0.4
Amortisation of computer software 11 1.8 2.5
Impairment of computer software 11 - 03
Adjusted EBITDA 3.8 4.0

2 See note 1(a) for description of the pricr year re-presentation

Net cash / (debt)
Net cash/(debt) is not a measure defined by IFRS. Net cash/(debt) is calculated as cash less overdrafts and bank borrowings under the
Group's financing arrangements. The Directors consider the measure useful as it gives greater clarity over the Group’s liquidity as a whole.

Net cash consists entirely of cash and cash equivalents as overdrafts and bank borrowings are £nil as at 31 December 2020 (2018: £nil).
Refer to note 17.

(c) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Centaur Media Pic and all of its subsidiaries after elimination of
intercompany transactions and balances.

i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights (o, variable
returns from its involvernent with the entity and has the ability to affect thase returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group until the date that the Group ceases to control
thern. In the statement of comprehensive income, the results of subsidiaries for which control has ceased are presented separately as
discontinued operations in the year in which they have been disposed of and in the comparative year.

On the disposal of a2 subsidiary, assets and liakilities of that subsidiary are de-recognised from the consolidated statement of financial
position, earnings up to the date of loss of control are retained in the Group, and a profit/ioss) on disposal is recognised measured as
consideration received less the fair value of assets and liabilities disposed of.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions betweean Group companies are eliminated. The accounting
nolicies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group.

{d) Foreign currency translation

(i) Funclional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial staterments of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functicnal currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling,
which is the Group and Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated intc the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
axchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.,
(iii) Group companies

The rasults and financial position of the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency, as disclosed
in note 13, are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

+ assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

+ income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average sxchange rates {unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effact of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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On conselidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in eguity are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair vaiue adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabiiities of the foreign entity and
translatad at the closing rate.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the transaction price, which is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to the customer. Judgement may arise in timing and allocation of transaction price when there
are multiple performance obligations in one contract, However, an annual impact assessment is performed which has confirmed that the
impact is immaterial in both the current year and comparative year. Revenug arises from the sale of premium content, marketing services,
training and advisory, events, marketing solutions, recruitment advertising, and telemarketing services in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and value added tax. Goods and services exchanged as part of a barter transaction are recognised in revenue at the fair
value of the goods and services pravided. Returns, refunds and other similar allowances, which have historically been low in volume and
immaterial in magnitude, are accounted for as a reduction in revenue as they arise.

Where revenue is deferred it is held as a balance in deferred income on the consolidated statement of financial position. At any given
balance date, this deferred incomae is current in nature and is expected to be recognised whally in revenue in the fellowing financial year, with
the exception of returns and credit notes, which have histarically been low in volume and immaterial in magnitude.

Additionally, in the current year, deferred income held in a subsidiary at the point of its disposal will not have been recognised in revenue for
the Group for the year.

The Group recognises revenue earned from cortracts as individual performance obligations are met, on a stand-alone selling price basis.
This is when value and control of the product or service has transferred, being when the preduct is delivered to the customer or the period in
which the services are rendered as set out in more detail below.

Premium Content

Revenue from subscriptions is deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis over the subscription period reflecting the continuous
provision of paid content services over this time. Revenue from individual publication sales is recognised at the point at which the publication
is delivered to the customer. In general, the Group bills customers for premium content at the start of the contract.

Marketing Services

Revenrue from campaign work and consultancy contracts is recognised when the Group has obtained the right to consideration in exchange
for its performance, which is when a separately identifiable phase (milestone) of a contract has been completed and the value and benefit

of the services rendered have been transferred to the customer. In general, the Group bills customers for marketing services up front on a
milestone basis.

Training and Advisory

Revenue from training and adviscry is deferred and recognised over the pericd of the training or when a separately identifiable milestone of a
contract has been delivered 1o the customer. In general, the Group bills customers for training and advisory up front or on a milestone basis
as the service is delivered.

Events

Consideration received in advance for events is deferred and revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the event takes place. In
general, the Group bills customers for events before the event date,

Marketing Soiutions

Marketing solutions revenue from display and bespoke campaigns is recognised over the period that the service is provided. In general, the
Group bills customers for marketing solutions on delivery.

Recruitment Advertising

Sales of oniine recruitment advertising space are recognised in revenue over the pericd during which the advertisements are placed. Sales
of recruitment advertising space in publications are recognised at the point at which the publication occurs. In general, the Group bills
customers for recruitment advertising on delivery,

Telemarketing Services

Revenue from telemarketing services was deferred and recognised over the period that the service was delivered generally according to the
number of hours expended as a proportion of the total hours contracted. In general, the Group billed customers for telemarketing services in
advance. Al revenue from telemarketing services ceased during the year following the closure of the MarketMakers' telemarketing business
in August 2020 and is therefore presented within discontinued operations.
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(f) Other operating income
Other operating income includes income from all other operating activities which are not related to the principal activities of the Group.

Includled in other operating income is rental income and transitional services agreement income.

Rental income is for the sub-lease of properties under lease, which is recognised on a straight-line basis aver the lease term using the
exemption available for short-term leases under IFRS 16, see note 1(j}. All arrangemenits in which the Group sub-leased properties under
lease ceased during the prior year.

Transitional services agreement income relates to services provided to the buyers of the Group companies disposed of during 2019, which
is recognised at the point in time at which the service is delivered. The costs associated with this income are included within net operating
expenses on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. All transitional services agreements ceased during the prior year.

(g) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and

the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants are recognised in the profit or loss and deducted from the related
expense within net operating expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Note 3 provides further information on how
the Group acceounts for government grants.

(h) Investments

In the Company’s financial statements, investrents in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value.

Investments are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may nct be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the investments fair value less cost of dispesal and its value-in-use.
An asset’s value-in-use is calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted average cost of capital. Any
impairment is reccgnised in the statement of comprehensive income. If there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
investment's recoverable amount, impairment losses that have been recognised in prior periods may be reversed. This reversal is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

{i) Income tax
The tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the vear. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further includes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group and Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance date.

Deferred tax is pravided in full, using the liability method, on temparary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the censolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available to utlise those temporary differences and losses. Such assets and liabilities are not recegnised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calcuiated at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settied,
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates
to iterms charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is recognised in cther comprehensive income.

(i) Leases

Lessee accounting

Under IFRS 16, leases are accounted for on a ‘right-of-use model” reflecting that, at the commencement date, the Group as a lessee

has a financial obligation t0 make lease payments to the lessor for its right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. The financial
obligation is recognised as a lease liability, and the right to use the underlying asset is recognised as a right-cf-use {'BOL") asset. The ROU
assets are recognised within property, plant and equipment on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position and are presented
separately in note 12.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments using the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be
readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently the lease liablity is measured at amortised cost, with interest increasing
the carrying amount and lease payments reducing the carrying amcunt. The carrying amount is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease medifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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The ROU asset is initially measured at cost which comprises:

*  the amount of the initial measurement cof the lease liability;

« any lease payments made at or before the commeancement date, less any lease incentives received;
« any initial direct costs; and

+ an estimate of costs to be incurred at the enc of the lease term.

Subsequently the ROU asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost on a straight line-basis over the lease term.

Using the exemption available under IFRS 16 the Group elects not to apply the requirements above to:
*  short-term leases: and
*  leases for which the underlying asset is of a low value.

In these cases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an expense on a straight-ling basis over the lease term, or another systematic
basis if that basis is mcre representative of the agreement.

Lessor gccounting

The Group had centracts for the sub-lease of areas of its Wells Strest property lease. These arangements were exempt from the
requirements of IFRS 16 under the short-term lease exemption as they all had a lease term of under twelve months from the date of
transition. As such, the income derived from these sub-leasing arrangements is recognised on a straight-line basis and is presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in ‘other operating income’. All arrangements in which the Group acted as a lessor
ceased during the prior year.

(k) Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the asset's fair value less cost
of disposal and its value-in-use. An asset's value in use is calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted
average cost of capital.

{) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Work in progress comprises costs incurred relating to publications and
exhibitions prior to the publication date or the date of the event. Cost is measured as all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

(m} Property, plant and equipment

See nate 1(j) for right-of-use assets. All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The historical cost of property, plant and equipment is the purchase cost together with any incidental direct costs of
acguisition. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of assets, on a straight line-basis over the expected
useful economic lives to the Group over the following periods:

Leasehold improvements - 10 years or the expected length of the lease if shorter
Fixtures and fittings - 510 10 years

Computer eguipment -3 to 5 years

Right-of-use assets — over the lease term

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

{n) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Where the cost of a business acquisition exceeds the fair vaiues attributable to the separable net assets acquired, the resulting goodwill

is capitalised and allocated to the cash-generating Lnit ({CGL) or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is tested for impairment annually on a Group level or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Each segment is deemed to be a CGU. Goodwill and acquired intangible assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with IAS 36, in
assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is required, the carrying vaiue of the segment is compared with
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is measured as the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. Any impairment
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (in net operating expenses) and is classified as an adjusting item.
Impairment of goodwill is not subsequently reversed.

On the disposal of a CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill s included in the determination of the profit or loss on dispesal.

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

{ii} Brands and publishing rights, customer relationships and non-compete arrangements

Separately acquired brands and publishing rights are shown at historical cost. Brands and publishing rights, customer relationships and
non-compete arrangements acquired in a business combination are recognised at farr value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

(iii) Software

Computer software that is not integral to the operation of the related hardware is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Costs
associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group that will generate probable future
aconomic benefits in excess of costs are recognised as intangible assets when the criteria of 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ are met. They are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

{iv) Amortisation methods and periods
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost or fair value of intangible assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic
lives to the Group over the following periogs:

Computer software - 3105 years
Brands and publishing rights - 51t0 20 years
Customer relationships -3 to 10 years or over the term of any specified contract

Separately acquired websites and content -3 to 5 years

{0} Employee benefits

(i) Post-employment obligations

The Group and Company contribute to a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of employees. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administerad fund. Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income in net operating expenses when employer contributions become payable.

{ii) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based compensation plans for its employees. The fair value of the share-based
compensation expense is estimated using either a Monte Carlo (stochastic model} or Black-Scholes aption pricing model and is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted:

+ including any market performance conditions:

s excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions {for example, profitability, sales growth targets,
cash flow performance and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

+ including the impact of any non-vesting conditions {for example, the requirerment for employees to save}.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the pericd over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting year, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting and service conditicns. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The Company issues new shares or transfers shares from treasury
shares to settle share-based compensation awards.

The award by the Company of share-based compensation awards cver its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution only if it is left unsettled. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to
the grant date fair value, is recognised cver the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding

credit to equity.

A deferred tax asset is recognised on share options based on the intrinsic value of the options, which is calculated as the difference between
the fair value of the shares under option at the reporting date and exercise price of the share options. The deferred tax asset is utilised when

the share options are exercised or released when share options lapse.

{p) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of rescurces will be required to settie the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated.
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() Equity

i} Share capital and share premium

Ordinary and deferred shares are classified as equity, The excess of consideration received in respect of shares issued over the nominal
value of those shares is recognised in the share premium account. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
opticns are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

‘Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity instruments, for example as the result of a share buyback or share-based
payment plan, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs {net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Centaur Employees’ Benefit Trust are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from equity.

(i) Own shares

Own shares consist of treasury shares and shares held within an employee benefit trust. The Company has an employee benefit trust for the
granting of shares to applicable employees.

Own shares are recognised at cost as a deduction from equity shareholders’ funds. Subsequent consideration received for the sale of such

shares is also recognised in equity, with any difference between the sale proceeds and the original cost being taken to retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised in the financial statements on transactions in treasury shares.

{r}) Dividends
Dividends are recognised in the year in which they are paid or, in respect of the Company's final dividend for the year, approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

(s) Segmental reporting

Qperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
Executive Committee has been identified as the chief operating decislon-maker, reviewing the Group’s internal reporting on a monthly basis
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Refer to note 2 for the basis of segmentation.

(t) Financial instruments
The Group has applied IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ as cutlined below:

(i} Financial gssels

The Group classifies and measures its financial assets in line with one of the three measurement models under IFRS 9: at amortised cost,
fair value thraugh profit or loss, and fair value through other comprehensive income. Management dstermines the classification of its financial
assets based on the requirements of IFRS 9 at initial recognition.

They are included in current assets, except for matunties greater than 12 months after the balance date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s financial assets comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Please see the following sections.

(#) Trade receivables

Tradle receivables are accounted for under IFRS 9, being recognised intialy at fair value and supsequently at amortised cost less any
allowance for expected lifetime credit losses under the 'expected credit loss' madel. As mandated by IFRS 8, the expected [fetime credit
losses are calculated using the ‘simplified’ approach.

A provision matrix is used to calculate the allowance for expected lifetime credit iosses on trade receivables which is based on historical
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward ooking estimates. The allowance for expected
lifetime credit losses is established by considering, on a discounted basis, the cash shortfalls it would incur in various default scenarios for
prescribed future periods and multiplying those shortfalls by the probability of each scenario occurring. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconcmic factors affecting the avility of the customers to settle the receivables.
The allowance is the sum of these probability weighted outcomes. The allowance and any changes to it are recognised in the consclidated
statement of comprenensive income within net operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against net operating
expensss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The Group defines a default as failure of a debtor to repay an amount
due as this is the time at which cur estimate of future cash flows from the debtor is affected.

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand or maturing within three menths from the date of
acquisition,

{iv) Financial liobilities

Dabt and trade payables are recognised initially at fair value based on amounts exchanged, net of transaction costs, and subsequentty at
amortised cost.

Interest expense on debt is accounted for using the effective interest method and is recognised in finance costs.

n Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decemper 2020




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ‘

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

{v) Trade payabies

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
{vi) Borrowings

Barrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and carried subsequently at amortised cost. Costs of
borrowings, including commitment fees on undrawn facilities, are recognised in the consalidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred or, where appropriate, across the term of the related borrowing.

{vii) Receivables from and payables to subsidiaries
The Company has amounts receivable from and payable to subsidiaries which are recognised at fair value. Amounts receivable from
subsidiaries are assessed annually for recoverability under the requirements cf IFRS 9.

{u) Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires the use of certain key accounting assumptions and requires management to
exercise its judgement and to make estimates. The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

(i) Carrying value of goodwill, other intangible assets and Company investment estimale

In assessing whether goodwill, other intangible assets and the Company's investment are impaired, the Group uses a discounted cash
flow model which includes forecast cash flows and estimates of future growth. If the results of operations in future periods are lower than
included in the cash flow model, impairments may be triggered. A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the value-in-use calculations.
Further details of the assumptions and sensitivities in the discounted cash flow model are included in notes 10 and 13.

Intangible assets arising on business combinations are identified based on the Group's understanding of the acquired business and previous
experience of simiiar businesses. Consistent methads of valuation for similar types of intangible asset are applied where possible and
appropriate, using information reviewed at Board level where available. Discount rates applied in calculating the values of intangible assets
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries are calculated specifically for each acquisition and adjusted to reflect the respective risk profile of
each individual asset based on the Group's past experience of similar assets.

(ii} Recoverability of trade receivables estimate

The allowance for expected lifetime credit losses for trade receivabies is calculated in line with IFRS 9. This is established by considering on
a discounted basis the cash shertfalls it would incur in various default scenarics for prescribed future periods and multiplying the shortfalls
by the probability of each scenario occurring. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers 1o settle the receivables. Further details about trade receivables are included in
note 16 and information about the credit risk and expected lifetime credit losses are shown in note 27.

{iii) Share-based payments estimate

The fair value of the share-based compensation expense recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income requires the
use of estimates. Details regarding the determination of fair value of these costs are set out in note 1(a)(ii).

{iv} Voluation of intangibles estimate
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are required to be recognised separately from goodwill and amortised over their useful
life. The Group has separately recognised computer software, brands and custormer relationships in the acquisitions made (see note 11).

The fair value of these acquired intangibles is based on valuation technigues that require inputs based on assumptions about the future and
estimates related to current market conditions.

The Group also makes assumptions about the useful life of the acquired intangibles as outlined in note 1{n)(iv).

(v} Deferred tax judgement and estimate

The calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities requires judgement. Where the ultimate tax treatment is uncertain, the Group recognises
deferred tax assets and liabllities based on an estimate of future taxable income and recoverability. Where a change in circumstances
occurs, or the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax balances in the year in which that change, or cutcome, is known. The accounting policy regarding deferred tax is set out above
in note 1.

{vi) Adjusting items judgement

The term ‘adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS. Judgement is required to ensure that the classification and presentation of certain
iterms as adjusting, including exceptional items, is appropriate and consistent with the Group’s accounting policy. Further details about the
amounts classified as adjusting are included in notes 1{b) and 4.

{vii) IFRS 16 reassessment of lease term judgement

Leases are required to be recognised at the present value of the lease payments not yet paid for the duration of the lease term. The lease
term is defined by IFRS 16 as the non-cancellable period of the lease, and any period covered by an option to extend aor terminate that the
lessee is reasonably cartain to exercise. The assessment of the lease term requires judgement when considering the option to extend or
terminate in a contract.

Curing the year, cne of the Group's property leases bas been rameasured upon reassessment of the lease term, where a judgement has
been taken that an option to extend will be exercised. The remeasurement of the lease, and the corresponding adjustment to the ROU asset
are presented in notes 19 and 12 respectively.
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2 Segmental reporting

The Group is organised around two reportable market-facing segments: Xeim and The Lawyer. These two segments derive revenues from
a combination of premium content, marketing services, training and advisory, events, marketing solutions and recruitment advertising.
QOverhead costs are allocated to these segments on an appropriate basis, depending on the nature of the costs, including in proportion

to revenues or headcount. Corporate income and costs have been presented separately as ‘Central’. The Group believes this is the most
appropriate presentation of egmental reporting for the user to understand the core operations of the Group. There is no inter-segmentat
revenue.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and eguipment, intangible assets (including goodwill) and trade receivables. Segment
liabilities comprise trade payables, accruals and deferred income.

Corporate assets and liabilities primarily comprise property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, current and deferred tax balances,
cash and cash equivaients, borrowings and lease liabilities,

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and includes additions resulting from
acquisitions through business combinations.

Core Continuing  Daseontinuod

Xemr The Lawyer aperalicns Cential operations opuelations Group
2020 Nete i £m £m vm £m e m
Revenue 26.0 6.4 324 - 324 3.6 36.0
Other operating Income - - - - - - -
Adjusted operating profit /
loss) 1) 1.9 1.4 3.3 3.3 - - -
Exceptional operating costs 4 0.2) Q.1) {0.3) 0.1 0.2) 0.9} (1.1}
Amortisation of acquired
intangibles 11 {1.5) - (1.5) - {1.5) {0.4) (1.9)
Share-based payments 24 {0.3) - (0.3} 0.2} {0.5) - 6.5)
Loss on disposal of assets and
liabilities 11 - - - {0.1) {0.1} (0.7} {0.8)
Impairment of goodwill 10 - - - - - (11.0) (11.0}
Operating profit / {loss) 0.1) 1.3 1.2 (3.5) (2.3} {13.0) (15.3)
Finance costs o] {0.3} - (0.3)
{Loss) 7 profit before tax (2.6} (13.0) {15.6)
Taxation 7 0.9 0.3 1.2
(Loss) / profit for the year (1.7) {12.7) (14.4)
Segment assets 40.6 17.7 58.3 - 58.3 - 58.3
Corporate assets 83 33 - 8.3
Consolhdated total assets 66.6 - 06.8
Segment liabilities {13.8) 38.1) {16.9) - [16.9) 0.3) 117.2)
Caorporate liabilities 2.2) 2.2) - (2.2}
Consolidated total iabilities (19.1) {0.3) (19.4)
Other items
Capial expenditure itangibic
and intangible assets; 0.2 - 0.2 0.5 0.7 0.1 0.8
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2 Segmental reporting continued

Crares Sontinnng - Disaontinued
Re-nreaeiied XKoo Thie Lawyraor aperations Condral unations opoerations Cuoup
20149 Nole cim £ £im m £im vm Ym
Revenue 31.4 8.2 39.6 - 39.6 16.3 55.9
Other operating income - - - 1.6 1.6 - 1.6
Adpisted operating profit /
{loss) 1ib) 4.0 23 6.3 (7.5) (1.2} 3.0 1.8
Exceptional operating costs 4 0.5) (1.0 (1.5} 3.2) 4.7} (0.1) 14.8)
Amaortisation of acquired
intangibles 11 (1.7) - 1.7} - (1.7) (0.8} {2.5)
Share-based payments 24 - - - 0.1) (0.1} - 0.1}
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 14 - 0.1 (0.1} - {0.1) - .1
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 14 - - - - - 7.8 7.3
Operating profit / {loss) 1.8 1.2 3.0 (10.8) (7.8) 9.9 241
Finance costs 6 {0.3) - 0.3)
(Loss) / profit before tax (8.1) 9.9 1.8
Taxation 7 0.6 {0.5) 0.1
{Loss) / profit for the year (7.3) 9.4 1.9
Segment assets 55.5 18.7 74.2 - 74.2 23 76.5
Corporate assets 10.6 10.6 - 10.6
Consolidated total assels 84.8 23 87.1
Segment liabilities {14.8) 3.8 (18.6) - {18.6) {2.6) (21.2}
Corperate liabilties 4.8) 4.8) - {4.8)
Consolidated total liabilities (23.4) {2.6) {26.0}
Other tems

Capital expenditure tanagible
and intangible assets) 0.7 01 0.8 0.6 1.4 0.1 1.5

2 See note 1{a} for description of the prior year re-presentation

Supplemental Information
Revenue by Geographical Location
The Group's revenues from continuing operations from external customers by geographical location are detailed below:

Re-prasented R pareainterd

Xenn The Lawyor Total Xeim The cawyoer Total

2020 2020 2020 2013 2019 2014

m £m Cm £m <im m

United Kingdom 17.2 5.2 224 23.4 8.6 30.0
Europe {excluding United Kingdom) 2.5 0.6 3.1 2.6 0.9 35
North America 4.1 0.4 4.5 4.4 0.4 4.8
Rest of world 22 0.2 2.4 1.0 0.3 1.3
26.0 6.4 32.4 31.4 8.2 39.6

2 See note 1(a) for description of the prior year re-presentation

Substantially all of the Group's net assets are located in the United Kingdom. The Directors therefore consider that the Group currently
operates in a single geographical segment, being the United Kingdom. Refer to note 13 for the location of the Group’s subsidiaries.
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2 Segmental reporting continued

Revenue by type
The Group's revenue from continuing cperations by type is as follows:

Re-presented? Re-presented?

Xoun The Lawyot Total Xeim The Lawyer Total

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019

Tim € 2m £m £m £m

Premium Content 9.5 37 13.2 10.9 3.5 14.4
Marketing Services 2.9 - 2.9 43 - 4.3
Training and Advisory 8.5 - 8.5 78 - 7.6
Events 1.6 0.9 2.5 4.3 21 6.4
Marketing Solutions 3.3 0.9 4.2 35 1.1 4.6
Recruitment Advertising 0.2 0.9 1.1 08 1.5 23
26.0 6.4 32.4 314 8.2 396

2 See note 1{a) for description of the prior year re-presentation

The accounting policies for each of these revenue streams is disclosed in note 1(g}, including the timing of revenue recognition. There are
some contracts for which revenue has not yet been recognised and is being held in deferred income, see note 20. This deferred income is
all current and is expected to be recognised as revenue in 2021.

Other operating income
The Group's other operating income from continuing operations by type is as follows:

2020 2019
om £m

Sate of goods and services
Rental income - 0.8
Transitional services agreement income - 0.8
- 16

Rental income in the prior year related to the sublease of part of the Group's rented property in London. This property was vacated in
Decermber 2019.

Transitional services agreement income in the prior year related to services provided to the buyers of the Group companies disposed of in
2019, All transitional services agreements ceased in 2019,
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3 Net operating expenses
Continuing operating profit / (loss) is stated after charging:

Re-presented? Re-presented? Re-presented?

Addjisted Addjustg Statutory Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
Restlts Hems Resuits Resuits’ ltems’ Results
2020 2020 2020 2019 2018 2019
Note £m m i £m £m £m
Employee benefits expense 5] 17.2 0.2 17.4 20.7 3.4 241
Government grants (0.3) - 0.3 - - -
Net employee benefits expense 16.9 0.2 t7.1 20.7 34 241
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 12 2.0 - 2.0 20 - 2.0
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 12 - - - 0.4 - 0.4
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 11,12,19 - 0.1 0.1 - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 1.8 1.5 33 25 1.7 4.2
Impairment of intangible assets 11 - - - 0.3 - 0.3
Loss on disposal of subsidiary® 4 - - - - 0.1 a1
Cther exceptional cperating costs 4 - - - - 1.3 1.3
Impairment of trade receivables 27 0.3 - 0.3 - - -
Share-based payment expense 24 - 0.5 0.5 - 0.1 01
IT expenditure 2.5 - 2.5 29 - 2.9
Other staff related costs 0.7 - 0.7 23 - 2.3
Marketing expenditure 0.7 - 0.7 1.6 - 1.6
Other operating expenses 7.5 - 7.5 9.7 - 9.7
324 2.3 34.7 42.4 6.6 49.0
Cost of sales 10.7 - 10.7 174 - 171
Distribution costs 0.1 - 0.1 0.1 - 0.1
Administrative expenses 21.6 2.3 23.9 25.2 6.6 31.8
32.4 2.3 34.7 42.4 6.6 49.0

! Adjusted resuits exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1{b)
Z See note 1{g) for description of the prior year re-presentation

* Loss on disposal of subsidiary [Venture Business Research Limited)

Government grants

The Group applied for government grants of £0.8m relating to the current year for furloughed employees based at both the London and
Portsmouth cffices {2019; £nil). This was received in full during the year. Government grants have been deducted from the related employee
penefit expenses and presented within net operating expenses in the consciidated statement of comprehensive income.

The government grants in continuing operations is £0.3m (2019: £nil) and in discontinued operations is £0.5m {2019: £nil).
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3 Net operating expenses continued

Property costs
Property costs have been grouped in other costs as they are no longer significant following the transition to IFRS 18.

Services provided by the Company’s auditors

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company and consolidated financial
statements 105 -
Feas payable to the Company’s predecessor auditors for the audit of the Company and consolidated
financial statements 31 238
Fees pavabie to the Company’s predecessor auditors and its associates for other services:
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation - 44
Total audit fees 136 282
Audit related assurance services provided by the predecessor auditors 50 22
Total non-audit fees 50 22
Total fees 186 304

Fees payable to the Company’s predecessor auditors for the audit of the Company and consclidated financial statements include non-
recurring fees of £31,000 {2019: £72,000).

Prior year fees payable to the Company's predecessor auditors for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries relates to Market Makers
Incorperated Limited and includes £14,000 included in discentinued operations.

4 Adjusting items

As discussed in note 1(b), certain items are presented as adjusting. These are detailed below:

Re-presented?

2020 2019
Note £m £m
Continuing operations
Exceptional operating costs:
Staff related restructuring costs (including external employment advice costs) 5 .2 25
Divestment programme related costs - 2.2
Exceptional operating costs 0.2 4.7
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets Ah 1.5 1.7
Share-based payment expense 24 0.5 o]
Loss on disposal of assets and liakilities 11,12,19 0.1 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 8,14 - 0.1
Adjusting items to profit before tax 2.3 8.6
Tax relating to adjusting items 7 (0.3) .1
Total adjusting items after tax for contyiuwing operations 2.0 5.5
Discontinued operations
Profit on disposal of subsidiaties 8,14 - (7.8)
Exceptional costs 8,22 0.9 0.1
Impaiment of goodwill 10 11.0 -
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 11 0.4 0.8
Loss on dispesal of assets and liabilities 11,1219 0.7 -
Tax relating to adjusting items 7 (0.2} Q.1)
Total ad:wsting itoms after tax ror AiIscontinued operatons 12.8 (7.0)
Total actusting tems aftor tax 14.8 (1.5)

? Ses note 1(a) for descripbon of the pror year re-présentation
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4 Adjusting items continued

Exceptional costs

Stoff related restrucluring costs (including external employment advice costs)

In the current year staff related restructuring costs of £0.8m in discontinued operations related to restructuring of the MarketMakers business
and £0.2m in continuing operations related to restructuring parts of the wider Centaur Group due to the adverse impact of Covid. Refer to
note 22 for further details.

In the prior year staff related restructuring costs of £2.4m in continuing operations and £0.1m In discontinued operations related to the
Group's cost reduction plan following the compietion of the divestment programme in 2019. There were aiso £0.1m of costs related to
external employment advice in continuing operations.

Divestment programme related costs

In the prior year, divestment programme related costs included professional fees incurred related to the sales process for The Lawyer of
£1.2m and management incentives of £1.0m related to that programme. These management incentives sit in employee benefits expense in
note 3 along with staff related restructuring costs {excluding external empioyment advice costs).

Other exceplional costs
In the current year, £0.1m in discontinued operations related to the exit of the Portsmouth lease upon cessation of MarketMakers’
telemarketing business. Refer to further details in note 22,

Other adjusting items
Other adjusting items relate to the amortisaticn of acquired intangible assets (see note 11} and share-based payment costs {see note 24) as
wel as the items discussed below:

Goodwill impairment
An impairment of £11.0m against goodwill relating to the MarketMakers business was recognised in the current year. There were no
impairments recognised in the pricr year. See note 10 for further details.

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities

In the current year the loss on disposal of assets and liabilities in continuing operations of £0.1m consists of a loss on disposal of software
assets of £0.1m (see note 11), a loss on disposal of computer equipment of £0.1m (see note 12), a loss on disposal of the MarketMakers
RCU asset of £0.1m (see note 12} which represented the propertion of the asset attributable to the continuing Really B2E business, offset
by a £0.2m gain on disposal of the corresponding lease liabilty (see note 19).

The loss on disposal of assets and liahilities in discontinued operations of £0.7m consists of the disposal of intangible assets totalling a net
book value of £0.8m (see note 11), with proceeds on dispesal of £0.1m creating a loss on dispesal of £0.7m (see note 11). Additionally,
there is a loss on disposal of computer equipment of £0.1m and the MarketMakers ROU asset of £0.5m (see note 12 which represented
the proportion of the asset attributable to the discontinued telemarketing business. This is offset by a £0.8m gain on disposal of the
corresponding lease liability (see note 19).

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

In the prior year the loss on disposal of a subsidiary in continuing operations of £0.1m related to the disposal of Venture Business Research
Limited ('VBR"). This is not presented in discontinued operations as it does not represent a separate major line of business and therefore has
been included in continuing operations.

The prior year profit on disposal of subsidiaries in discontinued operations related to the subsidiaries sald in the divestment programme in
2019. See note 14 for further detai's.
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5 Directors and employees

Re- Ra- Re-
presented? presented  presented?
20205 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019 2020 201¢
Continung  Discontmued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total Total Totat
Graup Group Group Group Group Group  Company Company
Note cm | £m £m £m £m em £m
Wages and safaries 15.0 3.1 18.1 18.6 7.9 26.5 1.0 14
Social security costs 1.6 0.3 1.9 2.4 0.7 3.1 0.1 0.1
Other pension costs 0.6 0.1 0.7 o.7 0.2 0.9 - 04
Adjusted staff costs 17.2 3.5 20,7 21.7 8.8 30.5 1.1 16
Government grants 3 (0.3) (0.5) {0.8} - ~ - - -
Exceptional staff related
restructuring costs® 4 0.2 0.8 1.0 2.4 01 25 - 03
Equity-settled share-based
payments 24 0.5 - 0.5 3.1 - 01 - 0.1
17.6 3.8 21.4 24,2 8.9 33.1 1.1 2.5

2 See note 1{g) for description of the prior year re-presentation
3 Excluding external employment advice costs

The average menthly number of employees employed during the year, including Directors, was:

Re-presented?

2020 2019 2020 2me

Group Group Company Company

Number Number Mumber Number

Xaim 218 255 - -
The Lawyer 56 52 - -
Central 10 10 4 4
Discontinued 134 344 - -
416 661 4 4

? See note 1(g) for description of the prior year re-presentation

The Group's employees are employed and paid by Centaur Communications Limited, a Group company. As the employees provide services
to other Group companies, their costs are recharged, and the relevant disclosures are made in the financial statements. The employees
relating to discontinued cperations were employad and paid by Market Makers Incorporated Limitea.

Key management compensation

2026 2019
£m £m
Salaries and short-term employment benefits 1.2 29
Termination benefits - 0.4
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.1
1.3 3.4

Key managemaent is defined as the Executive Directors and Executive Committee members.

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

2025 2018
Cin Em
Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 0.3 18
Termination berefits - 0.4
Post-employment benefits - 0.1
2.8 2.3
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5 Directors and employees continued

Highest paid Director's remuneration

2020 2019

i £m

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 0.4 0.8
Termination benefits - 0.4
0.4 1.2

One director and one former director exercised share options during the year (2019: no shares options were exercised). One Director
was pald compensation in respect of loss of office during the prior year, Further details of Directors’ remuneration are included in the
Remuneration Committee Report between pages 51 and 65.

6 Finance costs

2020 2019
Note: i £m

Commitment fees and amortisation of arrangement fee in respect of revolving credit
facility 0.2 0.2
Lease interest 19 0.1 0.1
0.3 0.3

Interest and fees on revolving credit facility

These finance costs are in relation to the £25m revolving credit facility, none of which was drawn down at 31 December 2020 {2019: Enil).
As indicated by the consglidated cash flow statement, there were no drawdowns from this facility during the year and all drawdowns in the
prior year were also repaid within the prior year. Finance costs in relation to this facility resulted in cash outflows by the Company and Group
of £0.2m during the year (2019: £0.2m).

Lease interest
Lease liabilities are recognised for the Group's property lease arrangements. £0.1m of interest on these leases was incurred during the year
{2019: £0.1m}. Please refer to notes 1) and 19 for further details.

7 Taxation

Re-presented®  Re-presented?

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
Continumg  Discontinued Total Centinuing  Discentinued Total
Note £im £m £m £m £m £m
Analysis of charge for the year

Current tax 21
UK Corporation Tax 0.1 Q.1) - - 0.6 0.6
Cverseas tax - - - - - -
0.1 (0.1) - - 0.6 0.6

Deferred tax 15
Current period 0.7} 0.2) 0.9 0.7) - 0.7)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.3} - {0.3) a1 {0.1) -
{1.0} (0.2} 11.2) (0.6) 0.1) 0.7)
Taxation (credit) / charge {0.9} (0. (1.2) (0.6) 0.5 0.1)

2 See note 1(a) for description of the prior year re-presentation
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7 Taxation continued
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) / profit in the consolidated statement of comprahensive Income as follows:

Re-presented? Re-presentec?

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2014
Continuing Discontmued Total Continuing Discontinued Total
£ £m m em £m £m
{Loss) / profit bafore tax {2.6) [13.0} (15.6} 8.1) 9.9 1.8
Tan al the UK ale ul vorporation lax of
19.0% (2019: 19.0%) {0.5) {2.5) 3.0) (1.5 1.9 0.4
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax
pUrposSEs 0.1 2.1 2.2 0.7 - 0.7
Profit on disposal - -~ - - (1.5) (1.5
Effects of changes in tax rate on
deferred tax balances {0.2) 0.1 {0.1} 0.1 - 04
Deferred tax adjustment on business
disposal - - - 0.1 Q0.1 0.2
Adjustments in respect of prior years {0.3) - (0.3} - - -
Taxation (credit) / charge {C.9} 10.3) (1.2} (0.8) Q.5 0.1

2 See note 1{g} for description of the prior year re-presentation

The Finance Act 2020 Included legislation to keep the rate of corporation tax at 19% from 1 Aprit 2020 and for financial year 2021, This
change had been substantively enacted at the reporting date. The government announced on 3 March 2021 that the rate of corporation tax
will increase from 19% to 25% from 1 April 2023 for companies with annual taxable profits of over £250,000. This has not yet been enactaed
and therefore, the Group's defarred tax balances continue to be recorded at 19%.

A reconciliation between the reported tax expense and the adjusted tax expense taking account of adjusting items as discussed in note 1(b)
and 4 is shown below:

Re-presertec?  Re-presented?

2020 2020 2320 2019 2019 2019
Continuing Discontinyed Total Continuing Discontinued Total
m £m &m £m £m £m
Roportod tax {oroait) £ chargr (0.9) (0.3) (1.0) 0.0) 0.6 (0.1
Effects of:
Amortisation of acquired intangible
assets 0.2 0.t 0.3 0.4 0.1 05
Exceptional costs - 0.1 01 0.7 - 0.7
Share-based payments 0.1 - 041 - - -
Adjusted tax {credit] / charge {0.6) (0.1} 10.7) 0.5 0.6 11

2 See note 1(a} for descnption of the prior year re-prasentation

8 Discontinued operations

A significant restructuring of the MarketMakers’ business was executed during the year following an adverse impact on the performance
of the telemarketing business following the onset of Covid. This led to the closure of the MarketMakers' telemarketing business (MM} in
August 2020. MarketMakers' Really B2B brand continues to operate and its performance is reported as part of continuing operations.

Aloss on disposal of £0.7m arose on the disposal of assets relating to the MarketMakers' telemarketing business being the difference
between the proceeds of disposal and the carrying amount of the net assets. Details of the disposal can be found in note 4.

In the prior year the Group disposed of the following subsidiaries:

»  Centaur Financial Platforms Limited {'FIN') on 31 March 2019;

«  Centaur Media Travel and Meetings Limited { T&M") an 30 April 2019;
*  Centaur Human Resources Limited ('HR’) on 30 Aprit 2019; and

*  Centaur Engineering Limited (‘ENG") on 31 May 2019.
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8 Discontinued operations continued

The disposals were effected in line with the Group’s strategy to simplify its structure, to improve operational execution and to focus attention
on leading brands.

A profit of £7.8m arose on the disposal of these subsidiaries being the difference between the proceeds of disposals and the carrying
amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets and attributable goodwill, less transaction costs. Detalls of these dispesals can be found in note 14.

In addition to the above-named subsidiaries, the Group disposed of its Venture Business Research Limited ('VBR') subsidiary in the prior
year on 13 May 2019 to an employee of VBR. A loss on disposal of £0.1m arose on this disposal as detailed in note 14. The loss on
disposal, as well as the operational resutts of VBR, were not included in discontinued cperaticns as it did not represent a separate majer line
of business and these were therefore included in continuing operations.

The results of the discontinued operations, which were included in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
cash flow statement, were as follows:

MM FIN T&M HR ENG Totai MM FIN T&M HR ENG Total
Statement of Fir the year ended 31 December 2020 For the year ended 31 December 2019
comprehensive mcome £m £m m 'm rm £m £m £m £m £m €m £m
Revenue 3.6 - - - - 3.6 9.3 2.1 3.8 0.7 0.4 16.3
Expenses (15.9) - - - - {15.9) (9.9) {1.1) (2.2) 0.6) 04 (14.2)
(Loss) / profit on disposal 0.7) - - - - {0.7) - 0.8) 3.0 38 1.8 7.8
{Loss) / profil befors tax (13.0) - - - - (130 0.8) 0.2 4.6 3.9 1.8 9.9
Attributable tax credit /
(expense) 0.3 - - - - 0.3 0.1 {0.2) {0.3) 0.1) - (0.5}
Statutory ({loss) / profit after
tax (12.7) - - - - 127 {0.5) - 4.3 3.8 1.8 9.4
Add back adjusting items -
Loss / (profit) on disposal 0.7 - - - - 0.7 - 0.8 (3.0 (3.8) (1.8) (7.8)
Exceptional costs 0.9 - - - - 0.9 - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Impairment of goodwill 11.0 - - - - 11.0 - - - - - -
Amortisation of acquired
intangible assets 0.4 - - - - 0.4 0.7 0.1 - - - 08
Tax relating to adjusting tems' (0.2} - - - - {0.2) 0.1 - - - - ©.1)
Total adjusting tems 12.8 - - - - 12.8 0.6 0.9 (3.0) 3.7 (1.8) (7.0}

Adiusted profit attributable
te discontinued operations
aftor tax 0.1 - - - - G 0.1 0.9 1.3 0.1 - 2.4

' Adjusted results exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1(b)

MM FIN TamM HR ENG Total MM FIN T&M HR ENG Total

For the year ended 31 December 2020 For the year ended 31 December 2019
Cash fiows an)l £ )| £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Operating cash flows 0.3 - - - - 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.3 0.4 0.4 2.0
Investing cash flows 0.1 - - - - 0.1 {0.1) - - - - {0.1)
Financing cash flows 0.4} - - - - (0.4) 0.2) - - - - 0.2)
Total cash flows - - - - - - - 0.8 0.3 .4 0.4 1.7

The attributable tax expense stated in the table above is derived from the prefit of discontinued operations. No income tax expense arose on
the profit or loss on disposals.
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9 Earnings / (loss) per share

Basic earnings per share ('EPS') is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of shares in issue during the year. 1,948,492 (2019: 1,573,134 shares held in the employee beneft trust and 4,550,179 (2019: 6,964,613)
shares held in treasury (see note 23) have been excluded in arriving at the weighted average number of shares.

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in izsue is adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares. This comprises share options and awards {including those granted under the share save plan) granted 1o Directors
and employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during the year.

Basic and diluted earnings per share have also been presented on an adjusted continuing and discontinued basis, as the Directors believe
that these measures are more reflective of the underlying performance of the Group. These have been calculated as follows:

Re-oresented

2020 2019 Re-presented
Earmings 2020 Earmings 2019 Re-oresented
/iloss) Worgghted 2020 S ioss) welgiited 2019
attnbutascle average Earnings # attributaple aver.age Earmings /
to owners of numbizr of (loss) 1o owners of nuimbear of floss)
the parent shares pet share the parent shares, ner share
Note i mithons perce £m millions pencae
Basic
Continuing operations 1.7 144 3 1.2 7.5 142.8 5.3
Continuing and discontinued operations {14.4) 144.3 10.0) 1.9 142.8 1.3
Effect of diutive securities
Qptions: Continuing operations - - - - - -
Options: Continuing and discontinued
operations - - - - 8.1 -
Diluted
Continuing operations (1.7) 1443 (1.2) (7.5) 142.8 {6.3)
Continuing and discontinued operations {14.4) 144.3 (10.0) 1.9 150.9 1.3
Adjusted!
Continuing operations
Basic 1.7} 144.3 {1.2) 7.5 142.8 5.3)
(Cther exceptional costs 4 Q.2 - 0.1 4.7 - 33
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 1 1.5 - 1.0 1.7 - 1.2
Share-based payments 24 0.5 - 0.4 0.1 - 0.1
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 14 - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Loss on disposal of assets and fabilities 11 [t - G.1 - - -
Tax effect of above adjustments 7 10.3) - 0.2) (1.1) - 0.8
Discontinued operations
Basic 12.7 144.3 (8.8) ¢.4 142.8 6.6
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 14 - - - (7.8 - 5.5
Cther exceptional costs 4 0.9 - 0.6 0.1 - 0.1
Ameortisation of acquired intangibles 11 04 - 0.3 0.8 - 0.6
Impairment of goodwill 10 1.0 - 7.6 - - -
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities " 07 - 0.5 - - -
Tax effect of above adjustment 7 (0.2} - (0.1} 0.1) - 0.1}
Adjusicd! nasic
Continuing operations 0.3 144.3 0.2 2.0) 142.8 (1.4)
Continuing and discontinued operations 0.1 114.3 0.3 0.4 142.8 0.3
Effcct of adutive secunties
Options: Continuing operations - 7.3 - - - -
Options: Continuing and discontnued
operations - 7.3 - - 8.1 -
Actrustod! dictad
Continuing operations 0.3 5% .6 0.2 2.0 142.8 (1.4)
Continuing and discontinued operations 0.1 1518 0.3 04 150.9 03

* Adusted results exclude adjusting items, as detaifed in note 1(b)

2 See note 1(a) for descnption of the prior year re-gpresentation
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9 Earnings / {loss) per share continued

Re-presented? Re-presented?
Adjustod Adjusted Statutory Adjusted Re-presented? Statutory
Results HIT Resuits Results'  Adjusted ltems’ Hesults
2020 R 2020 2019 2019 2019
m Cm om £m £m £m
tarnings / {loss) por sharc
attributable to owners of the paront
Fully diluted from continuing operations 0.2p (1.9p} (1.2p) (1.4p) (3.9p) 5.3p)
Fully diluted from discontinued
operations 0.1p (8.9p) (8.8p) 1.7p 4.9p 6.6p
Fully diluted from continuing and
discontinued 0.3p {10.3p) (10.0p) 0.3p 1.0p 1.3p

T Adusted resutts exclude adiustng tems, as detailed in note 1{b)

¢ See note 1(a) for description of the pricr year re-presentation

In 2019 there was no difference in the weighted average number of shares used for the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for
continuing operations as the effect of all potentiafly dilutive shares outstanding was anti-dilutive.

10 Goodwill

Gloup

Note £
Cost
At 1 January 2019 158.5
Disposal of subsidiaries 14 (48.4)
At 31 December 2019 1111
Closure of business (11.0}
Elimination of gocdwill (19.0}
At 31 Decemiper 2020 811
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2019 96.9
Disposal of subsidiaries 14 {38.0)
At 31 December 2019 £8.9
Impairment 11.0
Elimination of goodwill (3C.0)
At 31 Decomber 2020 39.9
Net hook value
At 31 Decemhber 2020 11.2
At 31 December 2019 52.2

At the half year 30 June 2020, an impairment of £11.0rm was recognised in the Xeim CGU, entirely related to the MarketMakers {MM’)
business within that CGU. This followed the impact that Covid had on the operations of MM and was a full impairment of the goodwill
balance relating to MM. Since this impairment was recognisad. the MM telemarketing business has ceased operations, and the goodwil
cost and accumutated impairment has been efiminated. The impairment is included within discontinued operations as disciosed in note 8.

in addition to the impairment and subsequent glimination of goodwill relating to MM, the Group also eliminated £19.0m of goodwill that has
been fully impaired in previous financial years relating to legacy brands and businesses that the Group no longer operates.

At 31 December 2020 a full impairment assessment has been carried out. No impairment further to the £11.0m detailed above is required
for the remaining carmying value of goodwill.

Disposals in the pricr year relate to the disposal of Centaur Financlal Platforms Limited (net book value £4.8m), Centaur Media Travel and
Mestings Limited (net book value £5.8m), Centaur Human Resources Limited {net bock value £nil) and Centaur Engineering Limited (net
book value £nil), See note 14 for further details.
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10 Goodwill continued

Goodwill by segment

Each brand is deemed to be a Cash Generating Unit { CGU'), being the lowest level at which cash flows are separatsly identifiable. Goodwill
is attributed to individual CGUs and has historically been reviewed at the operating segment level for the purposes of the annual impairment
review as this is the level at which management monitors gocdwill.

Financial Qther

Xehm The Lawyer Sarvoes Professional Total

Note fm fm £m £m i

At 1 January 2019 36.2 16.0 4.8 56 B2.6
Disposat of subsidiaries 14 - - (4.8) 5.8) (10.4)
At 31 December 2019 36.2 16.0 - - 52.2
Impairment charge (11.0) - - - (11.0)
At 31 December 2020 25.2 16.0 - - 41.2

Impairment testing of goodwill and acquired intangible assets

The detailed mpaiment assessment described below has been performed after the £11.0m impairment already ideritified in the Xeim CGU
relating to the MM business.

At 31 December 2020, goodwill and acquired intangible assets (see note 11) were tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36. In
assessing whether an impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is required, the carrying value of the segment is compared with
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amounts are measured based on value-in-use {‘VIU').

The Group estimates the ViU of its CGUSs using a discounted cash flow model, which adjusts the cash flows for risks associated with the
assets and discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 12.8% (2019: 12.8%). The discount rate used is consistent with the Group's weighted
average cost of capital and is used across all segments, which are all based predominantly in the UK and considered to have similar risks
and rewards.

The key assumptions used in calculating VIU are revenue growth, margin, Adjusted EBITDA growth, discount rate and the terminal growth
rate. The Group has used the MAP23 forecast for the first three years of the calculation and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.5% (2019:
2.5%). This timescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered appropriate given the nature of the Group’s revenues. The kay
drivers and targets of MAP23 are discussed in the Strategic Report.

The key assumptions used in the calculations of VIU for each segment have baan darived from a combination of experience and
rmanagement's expectations of future growth rates in the business. The forecasts have been prepared following a review of the business
where management has identified the key growth and focus areas which will deliver the targets, and conversely which areas of the business
will be de-prioritised over that period. The forecasts reflect the transformed Group which is more focused and streamlined in order to deliver
higher margins and profits.

The key assumptions and variables in this plan are sensitised in isolaticn and in combination. The main sensttivities applied to the key drivers
are outlined below. As required by |AS 36, these sensitivities are applied in order to assess the effect of reasonably possible changes in the
assumptions.

Sensttivity analysis has been performed on the VIU calculations, holding all other variables constant, to:

. apply a 10% reduction to forecast Adjusted EBITDA In each year of the modetied cash fiows, No impairment would occur in either of the
segments.

i. apply a2% increase in discount rate from 12.8% to 14.8%. No impairment would cccur in either of the segments.

iii. reduce the terminal value growth rate frorm 2.5% to 1.5%. No impairment would occur in gither of the segments.

. in combination reduce the terminal value growth rate from 2.5% to 2.0% and apply a 30% reduction to forecast Adjusted EBITDA in the
terminal year of the modelled cash flows. No impairment weuld occur in either of the segments.

After the £11.0m impairment recognised in the Xeim CGU relating to the MM business, the results of the impairment assessment and
sensitivities applied indicate that no further impairment to the goodwill of either CGU is required.
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11 Other intangible assets

Separately

Srands anl acauned

Computer publishine Custamer wroisites and
softvean: rights elatnnships rantent Totat

Note £m £m £rn £m im
Cost
At 1 January 2019 18.6 5.6 15.4 4.7 44.3
Additions - separately acquired 0.8 - - - 08
Additions - internally generated 0.4 - - - 0.4
Disposal of subsidiaries (restated?) 14 {0.6) (3.5) 2.4) (1.5) 8.0)
At 31 Decembar 2019 (restated?) 19.2 2.1 13.0 3.2 37.5
Additions - spparataly acniired 1 - - - 0.3
Additions - internally generated u.3 - - - 0.3
Disposals 0.9) (0.5} (1.7} - (3.1)
Al 31 Deceinber 2020 18.9 1.6 11.3 3.2 35.0
Accumulated amortisation
Al 1 January 2012 12.4 2.3 9.4 47 28.8
Amortisation charge for the year 2.6 0.3 21 - 5.0
Impairment charge for the year 0.3 - - - 0.3
Disposals of subsidiaries {restated? 14 0.5) (1.7) (1.9) {1.9) (5.8)
At 31 December 2019 (restated?) 14,8 0.9 9.6 32 285
Afmdrtisation charge Tor The year .Y U2 1.1 - 3.8
Disposals {0.5) 0.2) (1.5 - (2.2}
At 31 Uecember Uy 16.2 0.9 9.8 a2 30.1
Nel Fock valiie at 31 Deramber 2020 27 nvy 1.5 - 4.9
Net book value at 31 December 2019 4.4 1.2 3.4 - 9.0
Net book value at 1 January 2019 6.2 3.3 6.0 - 15.5

2 See note 1{a) for description of pricr year rastatemant

During the current vear, the Group disposed of intangible assets totalling a net book value of £0.9m. £0.1m of this is recognised in the
consolidated staterment of comprehensive income in continuing operations. The £0.1m loss on disposal of intangible assets in continuing
operations relates to software assets that were no longer in use by the business.

The remaining £0.8m of assets disposed have been recognised in discontinued operations, along with proceeds of disposal of £0.1m,
resulting in a loss on disposal of £0.7m in discontinued operations. The £0.7m loss on disposal of intangible assets in discontinued
operations resulted from the disposal relating to the MarketMakers ('MM’) business. On 24 August 2020, the Group disposed of the MM
branding and website with & net book value of £0.3m for proceeds of £0.1m, resulting in a loss of £0.2m. Customer relationsnips recognised
on the acquisition of the MM business in 2017 with a net book value of £0.2m were disposed resulting in a loss of £0.2m. MM software
assets were disposed at a net book value of £0.3m resulting in a loss of £0.3m. These disposals were effected in line with the closure of the
MM telemarketing business following an adverse impact on trading performance caused by Covid.

Amcrtisation and impairment cf intangible assets is included in net operating expenses in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive
income. The amartisation charge in continuing operations is £3.3m (2019 re-presented: £4.2m) and in discontinued operations is £0.5m
(2019 re-presented: £0.8m). The impairment charge in the prior year is wholly in continuing operations and relates to obsolete software.
Amortisation on acquired intangible assets from business combinations is presented as an adjusting item in note 4 (see note 1(k) for further
information). Total armortisation of £1.9m (2019: £2.5m} on such assets is all amortisation on assets in the asset groups ‘Brands and
publishing rights”, ‘Customer relationships’ and ‘Separately acquired websites and content’ of £1.8m (2019: £2.4m) in addition to £nil (2019:
£0.1rn) of amortisation on acquired intangible assets in the asset group ‘Computer software’. These total amounts relate to continuing
operations £1.5m {2019: £1.7m) and discontinued operations £0.4m (2019: £0.8m} as shown in note 4.

Other intangible assets are tested annually for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 at a segment level by companng the carrying value
with its recoverable amount. Flease see note 10 for further details.

The Company has no intangible assets (2019: £nil).
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Leasahold Fixtures Combister ROU assets -
mprovaanents and fittings 2(unent propoerty Total
£m £m Cen £m em

Cost
At 1 January 2019 2.2 0.7 1.7 - 48
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16
(1 danuary 2019) - - - 2.3 23
Additions — separately acquired - - 0.2 3.2 34
At 31 December 2019 2.2 0.7 1.9 55 103
Additions — separately acquired - - 0.3 1.7 2.0
Disposals (2.2 (0.6} 1.1} {2.1) 6.0
At 31 December 2020 - 0.1 11 5.1 6.3
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019 1.6 0.5 1.2 - 33
Depraciation charge for the year 0.4 01 0.2 1.8 23
Impairment charge for the year 0.2 - - 0.2 0.4
At 31 December 2019 2.2 0.6 1.4 1.8 6.0
Cepreciation charge for the year E 0.1 0.2 1.9 2.2
Disposals (2.2) (0.6) (0.9} {1.5) (5.2)
At 31 December 2020 - 0.1 0.7 2.2 3.0
Net book value at 31 December 2020 - - 0.4 2.9 3.3
Net book value at 31 December 2019 - 0.1 0.5 3.7 4.3
Net book vaiue at 1 January 2019 0.6 0.2 0.5 - 1.3

During the current year the Group disposed of tangible assets totaling a net book valug of £0.8m, resulting in a loss on disposal of tangible
assets of £0.8m (£0.2m in continuing operations and £0.6m in discontinued operations, see note 4).

The £0.2m loss on disposal of tangible assets in continuing operations relates to computer equipment assets that were no longer in use
by the business (£0.1m), and a proportion of the disposal of the MarketMakers' ROU asset that related to the continuing Really B2B
business (£0.7m).

The £0.6m loss on disposal of tangible assets in discontinued operations relates to disposal of computer equipment (£0.1m) and a
proportion of the disposal of the MarketMakers' ROU asset that related to the discontinued telemarketing business (£0.5m). These disposals
were affected in fine with the closure of the MM telemarketing business following an adverse impact on trading performance caused

by Covid.

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment is included in net operating expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The depreciation charge in continuing operations is £2.0m (2018 re-presented: £2.0m} and in discontinued operations is £0.2m (2019 re-
presented: £0.3m).

The impairment charge in the pricr year related to leasehold improvements in the Wells Street office which was vacated by December 2019
and is presented in continuing operations.

The Company has no property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2020 (2019: £nil).
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13 Investments

Iwestments

m osusitnary

undertian nogs
Cuampraey om
Cost
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 1511
Additions 0.3
At 31 Decomber 2020 151.4
Accumulated mpairment
At 1 January 2019 253
Impairment charge for the year 35.7
At 31 December 2019 61.0
Impairment charge for the year 25.4
At 31 December 2020 86.4
Met book value at 21 December 2020 65.0
Nat book value at 31 December 2019 90.1
Net book value at 1 January 2019 1258

Impairment testing of the investment

As outlined in the tables below, the carrying value of the investment represents the Company’s direct ownership of Centaur Communications
Limited {'CCL’). At 31 December 2020, the investment was tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36, [n assessing whether an
impairment of the investment is reguired, the carrying value of the investment is compared with its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is measured based on value-in-use {'VIL'). Although the Company only has direct ownership of CCL, CCL in turn directly or
indirectly controls the rest of the Group's subsidiaries. Therefore, the VIU of the Company’s investment in CCL is supported by the
cperations of the entire Group.

In the prior year, due to the disposals of the Group’s subsidiaries noted below, the Group’s cash flows and therefore its VIU was reduced.
This was identified as an indication of impairment of the Company’s investment carrying value and a full impairment assessment was carried
out. An impairment of £35.7m was identified and recegnised in the Company’s statement of comprehensive income. After this impairment
at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of the investment was fully supparted by the future cash flows of the continuing operations of

the Group.

In the current year, the ongoing global pandemic and its impact on the ecanomy and directly on the Group was identified as an indication
of impairment of the Company’s investment carrying value, particularly following the closure of the MarketMakers ('MM’) telemarketing
business. Therefore, a full impairment assessment has been parformed.

The Group estimates the VIU using a discounted cash flow model, which adjusts the cash flows for risks associated with the assets and
discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 12.8% (2019: 12.8%). The discount rate used is consistent with the Group's weighted average cost
of capital.

The key assumptions used in calculating VIU are revenue growth, margin, Adjusted EBITDA growth, discount rate and the terminal growth
rate. The Group has used its MAF23 forecast for the first three vears of the calculation and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.5% (2019:
2.5%). This timescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered appropriate given the nature of the Group's revenues. The key
drivers and targets of MAP23 are discussed in the Strategic Report,

The assumptions used in the calculations of VIU have been derived based on a combination of experience and management's expectations of
future growth rates in the business. The forecasts have been prepared following a review of the business where management has identified the
key growth and focus areas which will deliver the targets, and conversely which areas of the business will be de-prioritised over that pericd. The
forecasts reflect the transformed Group which is more focused and streamlined in order to deliver higher margins and profits.

Sensitivities are applied to each of the key assumptions and variables in isolation and in combination, in line with those sensitivities applied
for goodwill impairment testing as outlined in note 10. As required by IAS 36, these sensitivities are applied in order to assess the effect of
reasonably possible changes in the assumptions.

As a result of the impairment assessment and sensitivities applied, an impairment of £25.4m has been identified and recognised in the
Company’s statement of comprehensive income. This level of impairment specifically reflects the fourth sensitivity case outlined in note 10
where the terminal growth rate is reduced from 2.5% to 2.0% in addition to an EBITDA miss in the terminal year of 30%. The remaining
palance is supported by the underlying trade of the continuing Group.

Additions of £0.3m in the year relate to capital contributions for share based payments recharged to the Company’s subsidiaries.
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13 Investments continued
The Group dispased of its interest in the following subsidiaries during the prior year:

Proportion of
stdinary shares
and veting Cotutry of

Name rrghits beld (7 Principal activities incorporation Date of disposa
Centaur Engineering Limited 100 Cther publishing activities United Kingdom 31 May 2019
Centaur Financial Platforms Limited 100 Research data and analysis United Kingdom 31 March 2019
Centaur Human Resources Limited 100  Events and information services United Kingdom 30 April 2019
Centaur Media Travel and Meetings Limited 100 Cther publishing activites  United Kingdom 30 April 2018
Venture Business Research Limited 100 Research data and analysis United Kingdom 13 May 2012

The net profit on disposals of these subsidiaries was £7.7m (£0.1m loss on the disposal of VBR and £7.8m profit on the disposal of the
other four subsidiaries). See note 14 for further details.

In order to simpilify the group structure, the process to close dormant companies was started for E-consuftancy Asia Pacific Pte Limited,
E-consultancy Australia Pty Limited, Pro-Talk Limited, Taxbriefs Limited and Your Business Magazine Limfted. The process is ongoing at the
date of signing the Annual Report.

Centaur Newco 2018 Limited was dissolved during the year. The company did not trade since incorporation.
At 31 December 2020, the Group has control over the following subsidiaries:

Proportion of
ardinary shares

and voting Country of
MName righits held 7.0 Principal activities incorporation
Centaur Communications Limited ' 100 Holding company and agency services  United Kingdom
Centaur Media USA Inc.? 100 Digital infarmation, training and events United States
Chiron Communications Limited 100 Helding company  United Kingdorn
E-consultancy Asia Pacific Pte Limiteq 2 100 Dormant Singapore
E-consultancy Australia Pty Limited * 100 Dormant Australia
E-consultancy LLC ® 100 Digital information, training and events United States
E-consultancy.com Limited 100 Digital information, training and events  United Kingdom
Market Makers Incorporated Limited 3 100 Telemarketing and Research  United Kingdom
Mayfield Publishing Limited 100 Dormant  United Kingdom
Pro-Talk Ltd 100 Dormant  United Kingdom
Taxbriefs Holdings Limited 100 Holding company  United Kingdom
Taxbriefs Limited 100 Dormant  United Kingdem
ThelLawyer.com Limited 100 Publighing of consumer and business journals and  United Kingdom

periodicals

Xeim Limited 100 Digital information services  United Kingdom
Your Business Magazine Limited 100 Dormant  United Kingdom

* Directly owned by Centaur Media Plc

Registered address is 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmingion, DE 19808, USA. Functional currency 1s USD.
Registered address is 30 Cecil Street, #19-08 Prydential Tower, Singapore 0497 12. Functional currency is USD.
Registered address is Level 17, 383 Kent Street, Sydnay, NSW, 2000, Austraka. Funcbonal currency s AUD.
Registered address changed from 1000 Lakeside North Harbour Western Road, Portsrmouth, Hampshire, PO6 3EN to Floor M, 10 Yark Road, Londen, SE1 7ND on 13 January 2020,

The registered address of all subsidiary companies, except for those identified above, is Floor M, 10 York Road, Londen, SE1 7ND, United
Kingdom. The functional currency of all subsidiaries is GBP except for those identified above. The consdlidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of al entities controlied by the Company at 31 December 2020.
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14 Disposal of subsidiaries

In the prior year the Group disposed of the following subsidiaries:

+  Centaur Financial Platforms Limited ('FIN') on 31 March 2019;

+  Centaur Media Travel and Meetings Limited {'T&M"} on 30 April 2019;
+  Centaur Human Resources Limited ('HR") on 30 April 2019; and

* Centaur Engineering Limited ('ENG’y on 31 May 2018.

The dispcsais were effected in line with the Group's strategy to simplify its structure, to improve operational execution and to focus attention
on leading brands. All disposals were executed by way of sale of 100% of the equity shares. The results of these subsidiaries have been
included in discontinued operations as detailed in note 8.

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

FIN T&M HR ENG
31 March 2018 30 April 2019 30 April 2019 31 May 2019 Total
£rn )} £m £m £m
Goodwil 4.8 5.6 - - 10.4
Other intangible assets 1.1 - 11 — 22
Inventories - 1.2 01 0.4 1.7
Trade and other receivables 1.0 1.1 0.4 0.2 2.7
Intercompany 1.3 2.2 0.7 - 4.2
Cash and cash equivalents 0.6 0.3 0.4 0.4 1.7
Trade and other payables 0.8) (0.6) (0.4} 0.1) {1.9}
Deferred income (1.3) 2.9) (1.0 (1.2) 6.4}
Current tax liability {0.1) 0.3) - - 0.4)
Net asscts / (habilities) disposed attnbutable to
Shareholders of the Company 6.6 5.6 1.3 0.3} 14.2
Directly attributable costs of disposal 0.8 0.6 0.8 0.6 2.6
{Loss) / galn on disposal 0.8) 3.0 38 1.8 7.8
Fair vaiue of consideration 6.6 10.2 5.7 2.1 24.6
Satsfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents 5.3 8.0 5.0 2.1 20.4
Settlerent of intercompany balances 1.3 2.2 0.7 - 4.2
5.5 10.2 5.7 2.1 216
The net cash flow arising on the disposals was as follows:
FIN T&M HR ENG
31 March 2019 30 April 2019 30 April 2019 31 May 2019 Total
£m £m £m m £m
Net cash flow arising on disposalt:
Conslderation received in cash and cash equivalents 53 8.0 5.0 2.1 20.4
Less:
Directly attributable costs of disposal 0.6) {0.8) (0.6) 0.5} 2.3
Cash and cash equivalents disposed 0.6) 0.3) 0.4) 0.4} (1.7
I 71 [ X8} 1.2 16.4

During the current vear, £0.1m of directly attributable costs related to the prior year disposals was paid in cash.

In addition to the abcve-named subsidiaries, the Group dispased of its Venture Business Research Limited {'VBR') subsidiary in the prior
year on 13 May 2019 to an employee of VBR for £1 settled by cash and £31k settlement of intercompany balances. Net assets of £0.2m,
consisting wholly of other intangible assets were disposed of, resulting in a loss of £0.1m.

The loss on disposal, as well as the operational results of VBR were not included in discontinued operaticns as it did not represent a
separate major line of business and these were therefore included in continuing operations.
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15 Deferred tax

The movemeant on the deferred tax account for the Group is shown below:

Acoeiorated Othes
captal fermporary Tax

allowances differences losses Total
£m i 2m Crm
Net asset / {liability) at 1 January 2019 Q.7 {0.5) 0.1 03
Recognised in the statement of comgprehensive income {Q.1) 0.1 0.7 0.7
Net asset / (rability) at 31 December 2019 0.6 0.4 0.8 1.0
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 0.1 0.2 - 0.3
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income - 0.2 0.7 0.9
Nel asset / (hability) at 31 December 2020 0.7 - 1.5 2.2

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settle the
balances net.

2020 2019

Group Group

om £m

Deferred tax assets 2.4 1.4
Deferred tax liabilities 0.2) {0.4)
2.2 1.0

At the year-end, the Group has unused tax losses of £8.1m (2019: £4.2m) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset

of £1.5m (2019: £0.8m) has been recognised in respect of £8.1m {2019: £4.2m) of such tax losses. The Group has concluded that the
deferred tax asset will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable profit based on the approved MAP23 forecast (see Strategic
Report). The Group is expscted to generate taxable profits from 2021 onwards. The losses can be carried forward indefinitely and have no
expiry date as long as the companies that have the losses continue to trade.

The Company had deferred tax assets on share options under long term incentive plans of £0.1m at 31 December 2020 (2019: £0.1m).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be materially utilised after 12 months.

16 Trade and other receivables

Restated? Restated?

2020 2019 2020 2019

Tirog Group Company Company

Note m £m em £m

Amounts falling due within one year

Trade receivables 5.2 7.9 - -
Less: expected credit loss 27 1.0 {1.1) - -
Trade receivables — net 4.2 5.8 - -
Receivables from subsidiaries - - 34.9 -
Receivable frorn Employee Benefit Trust - - 0.6 0.6
Other receivables 0.2 1.8 0.1 -
Prepayments 12 1.3 0.1 0.1
Accrued income 0.2 0.4 - -
5.8 10.3 35.7 Q.7
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16 Trade and other receivables continued

Restated? Restated?
520 2019 20 2019
[ TRIN[w Group Cormpary Company
[\ £m m £m

Amounts falling due after one year
Cther receivables 0.5 0.5 0.2 03
0.5 0.5 .2 0.3

% See nota 1{a) for description of prior year restatement
Trade receivables and the expected credit loss includs £0.1m and (£0.1m) respectively, in relation to discontinued operations.
Receivables from subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed due date and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.49% (2019: 2.53%).

Cther receivables due within one year in the prior year included £1.5m in relation to the lease which was received in the current year on the
exit of the Wells Street property.

Cther receivables due after one year include £0.3m (2019: £0.3m) in relation to a deposit an the Waterioo property lease which is fully
refundable at the end of the lease term.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019

Group Group

em £m

Cash at bank and in hand 8.3 3.3
The Company had no cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2020 (2019: Enil).

18 Trade and other payables

2000 2019 2020 2019

Srous Group Company Company

2m cm Cm £m

Trade payables 0.2 1.1 - -

Payables to subsidiaries - - 80.0 62.0

Social security and other taxes 1.3 1.0 - -

Other payables 1.6 1.7 - -

Accruals 5.7 8.7 0.4 1.4

5.8 12.5 60.4 63.4

Payables to subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.49% (2019: 2.53%).

During the year, in response to Covid the Government allowed payments of VAT between 20 March 2020 and 30 June 2020 to be deferred
until 31 March 2021, Under this scheme the Group deferred a total of £1.0m VAT payments, which is includad in social security and other
taxes above. This is planned to be re-paid in 2021.

Trade payabies and other payables include £0.1m and £0.2m respectively, relating to discontinued operations.
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the trade payables approximates their fair value.
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19 Lease liabilities

All lease liabilities currantly held by the Group relate to property leases, for which corresponding right-of-use ({ROU') assets are held on the
consolidated statement of financial position within praperty, plant and eguiprment and detailed in note 12.

2020 2019

Group Group

£m £m

At 1 Janugry 4.3 2.3
Additions - 3.2
Remaasurement of lease liabilities 1.7 -
Interest expense 0.1 0.1
Cash outflow {1.9) 2.3)
Disposal cn exit of lease {0.8) -
At 21 Decomber 3.4 4.3
Current 2.0 21
Non-current 1.4 2.2
At 31 December 3.4 4.3

The lease liability for one of the Group’s property leases was remeasured during the year upon reassessment of the lease term and
renegotiation of payment terms due to Covid. The amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability has been recognised as an adjustment
to the ROU) agset.

During 2020, in response to Covid, the Intarnational Accounting Standards Beard ('IASB’) issued amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases’ to
allow lesseas not to account for rent concessions as lease modifications requiring a remeasurement if they are a direct consequence of
Covig and meet certain conditions. As described above, there was a renegotiation of payment terms on one of the Group's leases due to
the pandernic. Due to the effect of the renegotiation impacting months outside of the specified conditions, the Group has not applied this
practical expedient and has therefore remeasured the lease in respact of this.

The lease liability for the Group’s property in Portsmouth, which was the office for the MarketMakers’ business, has been fully released
during the year upon the cessation of the MarketMakers' telemarketing business.

The gain on disposal of the lease liability has been recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with £0.2m
racognised in continuing operations for the proportion of the liability that relates to the continuing Really B2B business, and £0.6m
recognised in discontinued operations relating to the propertion of the liability that relates to the discantinued telernarketing business. The
corresponding ROU asset was also disposed of (see note 12), with the resulting net gain on disposal of £0.2m being materially offset by the
exit penalty incurred.

20 Deferred income

2020 2019

Group Group

om £m

Deferred income 7.0 8.7

Deferred income arises on contracts with customers where revenue recognition criteria has not yet been met. See note 1(e) for further details.

21 Current tax assets

2026 2019

Stou Group

m £m

Corporation tax receivables n.z 0.1

The Company had no corperation tax receivables or payables at 31 Decernber 2020 (2019 Enif).
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22 Provisions

Ootegrad

F-rstrocturing Consdmaton Jthey Total
Oroup i i £ em
At 1 January 2019 - 0.1 0.1 0.2
Utilised in the year - 0.1) - 0.1
At 31 December 2019 - - 041 0.1
Additions 1.0 - - 1.0
Utiligod in tho year {1.0) - .1 (1)

AL 31 December 2020

Restructuring
During the currant year, a restructuring provision of £0.8m was recognised in relation to restructuring the MarketMakers business following

a sharp fall in revenue as several major customers were hit by disruption in their own markets. A further £0.2m was provided in relation to
restructuring other parts of the wider Centaur group due to the adverse impact of Covid. The provision was fully utilised in the second half of
2020. The associated expense has been recognised within exceptional costs and presented as adjusting tems as disclosed within note 4.
The staff related restructuring costs in continuing operations is £0.2m (2019: £nil) and in discontinued operations is £0.8m {2019: €nil).

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration at 1 January 2019 of £0.1m related to the 2017 acquisition of MarketMakers. This was settled in cash during 2019,

Other
The other provision relates to the dilapigation provision which was acguired on the acquisition of MarketMakers in relation to the building

leased by the company in Portsmouth. This provision was utilised during the current year as part of the exit of the Portsmouth lease upon
cessation of MarketMakers' telemarketing business. The associated expense has been recognised within discontinued exceptional costs

and presented as adjusting items as disclosed within note 4.
All amounts represent the Directors’ best estimate of the balance to be paid at the reporting date.
23 Equity
Nommal vane Humbet of
Ordinany shares of 10p each Cim shares
Autherised share capital — Group and Company
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020
Issued and fully paid share capital — Group and Company
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020

20.0 200,000,000

151 151,410,226

Deferred shares reserve
The deferred shares reserve represents 800,000 (2019: 800,000) deferred shares of 10p each, which carry restricted voting rights and have

no right to receive a dividend payment in respect of any financial year.

Reserve for shares to be issued
The reserve for shares te be issued is in respect of equity-setiled share-based compensaticn plans. The changes to the reserve for shares to

be issued represent the total charges for the year relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions with employees as accounted
for under IFRS 2.

During the year a transfer of £1.0m was made from the reserve to retained earnings for lapsed share awards relating to the TSR
performance condition of long-term incentive plans. £0.2m relates to the current year, £0.1m relates to 2019 and £0.7m relates to schemes
which iapsed before 2019. A prior year restaterment has not been made as the adjustment is not material to the users of the Annual Report
and financial statements.
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23 Equity continued

Own shares reserve

The own shares reserve represenits the value of shares held as treasury shares and in an employee benefit trust. At 31 December 2020,
4,550,179 (2019: 6,964,613) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury and 1,948,492 (2019: 1,673,134} 10p crdinary shares are held in an
employee benefit trust.

During 2020, 2,414,434 shares were transferred out of treasury to the employee benefit trust in order to meet future obligations arising from
share-based rewards to employees. The shares were transferred from treasury at the historical weighted average cost of £2.2m (20.9p per
share} and acquired by the employee benefit trust at the market value of £0.6m {25.0p per share). The difference between the historical
weighted average cost and the market value of £1.6m has been eliminated on consolidation.

During the prior year, the employee benefit trust purchased 1,247,205 ordinary shares held in the employee benefit trust in order to meet
future obligations arising from share-based rewards to employees. The shares were acquired at an average price of 51.7p per share, with
prices ranging from 45.6p to 54.0p. The total cost of £0.6m was recognised in other reserves in the own shares reserva in equity.

The employee benefit trust also issued 2,038,736 (2019: 532,062) shares to meet cbligations arising from share-based rewards to
employees that had vested in both the current and prior year and were exercised in the year. Tha shares were issued at a historical weighted
average cost of 61.3p (2019: 50.3p) per share. The total cost of £1.3m (2019: £0.3m) has been recognised as a reduction in the own shares
reserve in other reserves in equity.

24 Share-based payments

The Group's share-based payment expense for the year by scheme:

2020 2019
©m £m

Equity-settled plans
LTIk 0.5 0.1
Total equity-settled incentive plans and share based payrment expense 0.5 01

The Group’s share-based payment schemas upon vesting are equity-settled.

The share-based payment charge in 2020 of £0.6m (2019: £0.1m) increased year on year due to several reasons. Most of the increase

is driven by 5.9 million less forfeitures and lapses in the current year resulting in £0.4m less credits to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the reversal of charges previously taken. There was also an overall increase in the charge of £0.1m following the
true-up for a scheme that vested in the year and the true-up of a number of schemes for the amount of shares expected to vest compared
to the prior year. This was offset by a lower charge of £0.1m relating to a reduction of 1.5 million new share options granted compared to
rior year.

There is an immaterial amount of naticnal insurance payable on equity-settled share-based schemes in the current and prior year which is
included in liabilities as it Is to be settled in cash.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Group operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP") for Executive Directors and selected senior management. This is an existing
incentive policy and was approved by shareholders at the 2016 AGM. The share awards are valued at date of grant and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is charged over the vesting period, considering the number of shares expected to vest. Full details on
how the scheme operates are included in the Remuneration Report.

During the year, 1,057,321 (2019: 478,472) share options were exercised in relation ta LTIPs that vested in 2019. Further details are shown
below.

On 6 April 2020, 50% of the LTIP granted on 6 April 2018 to selected senior management vested upon meeting the performance conditions
of twa years continued employment, All 981,415 of these share options were exercised during the year. Further details are shown below.

On 30 June 2020, LTIPs were granted to Executive Directors and selected senior management. This grant was made at 75% of the normal
award allowed for under the Remuneration Policy to reflect the current low level of the share price as a result of Covid. Further details are
shown below.

In the pricr year 53,590 shares granted on 25 July 2018 vested and were exercised upon completion of the performance conditions of
continued employment. Details below.
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LTHP 2016 LIP 2015 LTIP 2016 LTIP 2006 LTP 2015 CTIP 2018 LTIRP 200s LTIP 2016 LTIP 2916 LTIP 207005 LTIP 20105 LTIP 2006

Grant date 30.06.2020 03.10.2019 25.10.2019 25.07.2019 25.07.2018 06.04,2018 06,04 2018 24.04.2017 07.04.2017 04102016 22.09.2016 30.03.2016
Share price at

grant date 24.00 41.50 32.50 46.00 44.40 50.20 50.20 45.75 4075 44.00 41,00 4900
Fair value 14.77 22.77 16.25 23.00 22.20 28.65 25.10 24.46 21.08 18.04 16.81 2092
Exercise date 29.06.2023 02.10.2022 05.04.2022 05.04.2022 24.07.2019 06.04.2021 08.04.2021 2404.2020 07.04.2020 04.10.2019 22.09.2019 30.03.2019
Exercise price (0) £ril il £nil £nil £nil £nil nil £nil £l £nit £nil enil
Muier of awans

Ralance at

b Jdhuary 2u20 - IR 128,133 2.238,640 ~ 1.716.879 1963191 675,764 381.557 - - -
Granted during

the year 2,074,732 - - - - - - - - - - -
Forfeited during

the year - - (80,083) 180.128) - - - - - - - -
Exercised durng

the year -~ - - - - - (881415} (B757841 (381.5357) - - -
Lapsed dunng the year - - - - - - - _ _ - . -
Aalance at

3 December 2020 2.074.782 995,259 48.050 2156512 - 1246879 981,776 - - - - -
Sxsrosable at

21 December 2020 - - - - - - - - - - — -
Awerage shore onee

At dntes nf pverese () - - = 21.19 25.50 24568 - - -
Balance at

1 January 2019 - - - - 53,590 1,246,879 2,104,890 1,351,528 2,058,786 573,385 366,667 1,983,489
Granted during

the year - 995259 128,133 2482366 - - - - - - - -
Forfeited during

the year - - - (245,726} - - (141,699 - {82,035) - - -
Exercised during

the year - - - - (53500 - - - (478,472 - - -
Lapsed during the year - - - - - - - (675,754} (2,006,722) ({573,395 (366,667) (1,583,480)
Balance at

31 Decemnber 2019 - 995,259 128,133 2,236,640 - 1,246879 1,963,191 675,764 381,557 - - -
Exercisable at

31 December 2019 - - - - - - - 675,764 381,557 - - -
Average share price at

date of exercise (p} - - - - 51.25 - - - 39.49 - - -
Grant date 30.06.2020 03.10.2019 25.10.2019 25.07.2019 25.07.2018 06.04.2018 06.04.2018 24.04.2017 07.04.2017 04.10.2016 22.08.2016 30.03.2018
Expected volatility (%) 47.0 40.0 - - - 435 43.5 45.4 454 438 438 31.8
Expected dividend

yield (%) - - - - - - 6.47 - - - - -
Risk free interest

rate (%) (0.09) 0.34 - - - 0.86 088 0.12 0.12 0.06 0.06 0.48
Valuation of model Black—

used Stochastic  Stochastic i M *  Stochastic Scholes  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic

* Shares granted on 25 October 2019, 25 July 2019 and 25 July 2018 were nil-cost options with non-market-based performance conditions. These schemes were valued based on the

estimated vesting value of the non-market-based condtions and expected forferture rates.

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2020 had a weighted average exercise price of £nil {2019: £nil) and a weighted remaining life of 1.3

vears {2019: 1.6 years).

In the prior year, the shares granted under two schemes in 2017 were assessed for early vesting following the sale of four business units
resulting In a significant change in the business. As a result, the shares related to the TSR performance conditions vested and shares related

to alf other performance conditions lapsed.
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24 Share-based payments continued

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan {(“SELTIP’)

Statements

The Centaur Media Plc 2010 Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 'SELTIP") was introduced during 2011 and was approved by
shareholders at the 2010 AGM. This is not an HMRC approved scheme and vests over a three-year period with senvice and performance
conditions. Awards were granted under this scheme in 2011 for no consideration and no exercise price. This scheme has closed to new

awards,

Awards of bonus units were made in 2013 as summarised in the following table:

Number
ot ahuics
Threshold PETA Profit SELTIP Total Bonus pool awarded in
Financi, year profit achieved growth contribution Donus pool allocaterl total
2013 £8.0m £8.6m £0.6m 30% £0.1m £0,1m 118,851
* The Remuneraton Committee did not allocate the entire bonus pool in 2013,
* Awards were only made to participants with continuing employment.
Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan
These awards were priced using the following models and inputs:
SELTIF 2013
Grant date 15.09.11
Share price at grant date 33.88
Fair value 23.76
Exercise date 17.09.14
Exercise price (p) enil
Numpor of awards
Balance at 1 January 2020 6,862
Granted during the year -
Forfeited during the year -
Exercised during the year -
Balance at 31 December 2020 6.862
Excroisable at 31 December 2020 5.862
Average share price at date of axercise [ -
Balahce at 1 January 2019 6,862
Granted during the period -
Forfeited during the pericd -
Exercised during the period -
Balance at 31 December 2019 6,862
Exercisable at 31 December 2019 6,862

Average share price at date of exercise (p)

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2020 had a weighted average exercise price of £nil (2019: £nil) and a weighted remaining life of 1.7

years (2019: 2.7 years).

Share Incentive Plan

The Group has a Share incentive Plan, which is an HRMC approved Tax-Advantaged plan, which provides employees with the opportunity
to purchase shares in the Company. This plan is open to all employees who have been employad by the Group for more than 12 months.,
Employees may invest up to £1,800 per annum (or 10% of their salary if less) in ordinary shares in the Company, which are held in trust. The
sharses are purchased in the open market and are hefd in trust for each employee. The shares can be withdrawn with tax paid at any time,
or tax-free after five years. The Group matches the contribution with a ratic of one share for every two purchased. Cther than continuing
employmert, there are no other performance conditions attached to the plan.

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, as are all employees of the Group.

2019
£

Number of outstanding matching shares

58.11 48,071
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25 Dividends

20 2019
yim £m

Equity dividends
Final dividend for 2018: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share - 2.1
Interim dividend for 2018: ordinary dividend of 1.5p and special dividend of 2.0p per 10p ordinary share - 5.0
- 7.1

At the time of the 2019 results announcement on 18 March 2020, a final dividend relating to 2019 of 0.5p per share was proposed. Due
to the uncertainty posed by the Covid outbreak, the Board decided that it was prudent not to pay this final dividend of £0.7m. The total
dividend pertaining to 2019 was therefore the interim dividend cf £5.0m, comprising a £2.1m ordinary dividend of 1.5p per share and a
£2.9m special gividend of 2.0p per share. This dividend was paid on 18 October 2019,

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of £0.7m (0.5p share) is proposed by the Directors and, subject to shareholder
approval at the Annual Genera! Meeting, will be paid to all shareholders on the Register of Members on 28 May 2021.

During the year, the Company received a dividend of £40.0m from Centaur Communications Limited (2019: £nil).

26 Notes to the cash flow statement
Recongiliation of {loss) / profit for the year to net cash inflow from operating activities:

2020 2019 020 2019
Group Group Caornpuny Company
Note fm £m £ £m
(Loss) / profit for the year {14.4) 1.9 {27.7} (40.2)
Adjustments for:
Tax 7 (1.2) ©.1) (0.4} 1.4
Net interest expense 6 0.3 0.3 0.8 1.7
Depreciation 12 2.2 2.3 - -
lmpairment of property, plant and equipment 12 - 0.4 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 3.8 5.0 - -
Impairment of intangible assets 11 - 0.3 - -
Impairment of gocodwill 10 11.0 - - -
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 11 0.8 - - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 14 - 0.1 - -
Gain on disposai of subsidiaries 14 - (7.8) - -
Loss on impairment of investment 13 - - 25.4 35.7
Share-based payment charge 24 0.5 0.1 - 0.1
Dividends received from subsidiaries 25 - - 40.0 -
Unrealised foreign exchange differences 0.t - - -
Changes in working capital {excluding effects of
disposals of subsidiaries):
Decrease / (increase) in trade and cther receivables 4.4 0.5 {34.1) 1.8
{Decrease) / increase in trade and cther payables (3.7) 1.3 (3.8) 6.8
{Decrease) / increase in deferred inccme (1.7} 0.3 - -
Casb generated from operating activitios 2.1 4.6 0.2 7.3
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26 Notes to the cash flow statement continued
Recongiliation of movernents of liabilities to cash fiows arising rom financing activities:

Grou g Srnnp
Company Logse
Borrowings nabilties
Note £ fm
At 1 January 2019 - 3.3
hanges from financing cash flows.
Interest paid B 0.2) -
Repayment of obligations under finance leases 19 - 2.3
Proceeds from borrowings 27 2.8 -
Repayment of horrowings 27 (2.8) -
©.2 2.3)
Other changns:
Interest expense 6 0.2 0.1
Additions on commencemeant of new lease 19 - 3.2
0.2 3.3
Balance at 31 December 2019 - 4.3
Changes from financing cash flows:
Interest paid ¢ {0.2) -
Repayment of obligations under finance leases 19 - (1.9
0.2} 1.9}
Other changes:
Interest expense 5] Q.2 0.1
Remeasurement of lease liabilities 19 - 1.7
Disposal on exit of fease 19 - 0.8)
0.2 1.0
Balance at 31 December 2020 - 3.4
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27 Financial instruments and financial risk management

Financial risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group's risk management policies. The Board receives monthiy reports from
the Chief Finanuial Officer through which 1t reviews the effectiveness of policies and processes put in place to manage risk. The Board sets
policies that raduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the operating effectiveness of the Group.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, capital risk and currency risk.
Of these, credit risk and liquidity risk are considered the most significant. This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each
of the above risks.

Categories of financial instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and metheds adopted, including the criterfa for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in note 1(1). All financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

2020 2019
Note £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 17 8.3 9.3
Trade receivables - net 16 4.2 6.8
Cther recsivables 16 0.7 2.3
13.2 184
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 19 3.4 4.3
Trade payables 18 0.2 11
Agccruals 18 5.7 8.7
Provisions 22 - 01
Other payables 18 1.6 1.7
10.9 15.9

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and other receivables (note 16). Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial
statements, which is net of impairment losses, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Credit
risk is managed on a Group basis. The Group does not consider that it is subject to any significant concentrations of credit risk.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, of varying sizes and spread across diverse industries and geographies. The
Group does not have significant exposure to credit risk in relation to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced predominantly by the circumstances of individual customers as opposed to
industry or geographic trends.

The business assesses the credit quality of customers based on their financial position, past experience and other qualitative and
guantitative factors. The Group's policy requires customers to pay in accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days
from the date of invoice. Under normal trading conditions, the Group is exposed to relatively low levels of risk, and potential losses are
mitigated as a result of a diversified customer base and the requirement for events and certain premium content subscription invoices to be
paid in advance of service delivery.

The credit control function within the Group's finance department monitors the outstanding debts of the Group, and trade receivable
balances are analysed by the age and value of outstanding balances.

Any trade receivaple balance which is objectively determined to be uncollectible is written off the ledger, with a charge taken through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The Group also records an allowance for the lifetime expected credit loss on its trade
receivables balances under the simplified approach as mandated by IFRS §. The impairment model for trade receivables, under IFSR 9,
requires the recognition of impairment orevisions based on expected lifetime credit losses, rather than only incurred ones. All balances past
due are reviewed, with those greater than 90 days past due considered to carry a higher level of credit risk. Refer to nate 1it) for further
details on the approach to allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

The allowance for expected lifetime credit losses, and changes to it, are taken through administrative expenses in the consclidated
statermnent of comprehensive income.
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27 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued
The ageing of trade receivalles according ta their ariginal due date is detailed below:

2620 2020 2018 2019

Gross Provision Gross Provision

Py N H £m £rm

Mot due 3.3 .1 3.7 -
0-30 days past dus 0.6 - 15 -
31-60 days past due 0.1 - 0.5 -
61-90 days past due 0.2 (0.1) 0.4 0.1
Over 90 days past due 1.0 {0.8) 18 1.0
5.2 (1.0} 79 (t.1)

Trade receivables that are less than 3 months past due are generally not considered to be impaired, except where spagific credit issues or
delinguency in payments have been identified. In making the assessment that unprovided trade receivables are nat impaired, the Directars
have considered the quantum of gross trade receivables which relate to amounts net yet included in income, including pre-event invoices
in deferred income and amounts relating to VAT. The credit quality of trade receivables not yet due nor impaired has been assessed as
acceptable.

Tha movement in the allowancs for expected credit losses on trade receivables is detailed below:

Re-presented®  Re-presented?

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019

Contming Discontmnued Tostal Continuing Discortinued Total

m om £m £m £m £m

Balance at | January 0.7 0.4 1.1 1.1 o1 1.2
Utilised {0.1) - 0.1} 0.4) - 0.4)

Additional provision charged to the

statement of comprehensive income 0.3 - 0.3 - 0.4 0.4
Release - (0.3} 10.3) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - ©.1) ©.1
Balance at 31 December 0.9 0.1 1.0 0.7 0.4 14

z See note Haj for description of the pnor year re-presentation

The Group's palicy requires customers to pay in accardance with agreed payrment terms, which are generally 30 days from the date of
invoice ar, in the case of live events related revenue, no less than 30 days before the event. All credit and recovery risk associated with trade
receivables has been provided for in the consolidated staternent of financial position. The Group’s policy for recognising an impairment loss
is given in note 1{t)(ii). Impairment losses are taken through administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The remaining provision of £0.1m for discontinued operations relates to MarketMakers trade debtors which have been fully provided for.
The Directors consider the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates te their fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents
Banks and financial institutions are independently rated by credit rating agencies. We choose only to deal with those with a minimum ‘A’
rating. We determine the credit quality for cash and cash eguivalents to be strong.

Other receivables
Cther receivables are neither past due nor impaired. These are primarily made up of sundry receivables, including employee-related debtors
and receivablas in respect of distribution arrangements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and working capital credit facilities, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

In March 2021, the Group terminated its existing £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility with NatWest and Uoyds which was due

to run to November 2021. It has been replaced by a new multi-currency revelving credit facility with NatWest which runs to March 2024
with the aption to extend for two periods of one year each. The new facility consists of a £10m committed factity and an additional £15m
uncommitted accordion option, both of which can be used to cover the Group's working capital and general corporate needs. As at 31
December 202C, the Group had cash of £8.3m (2018: £9.3m) with a full undrawn loan facility of £25m (2019: full undrawn loan facility

of £25m).
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27 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued
The following tables detail the financial maturity for the Group's financial liabilities:

Book Far Lass thun
value Vel 1 oyen 2-3 yoars
Cm i T m
At 31 Decembor 2020
Inlerest bearing 2.4 34 2.0 1.4
Non-interest bearing 7.5 7.5 7.5 -
109 10.9 95 14
AL 41 Decembear 2019 "
Interest bearing 4.3 4.3 241 2.2
Non-interest bearing 1.8 1.8 11.56 0.1
15.9 159 136 2.3

The Directors consider that book value is materially equal to fair vaiue.

The book value of primary financial instruments approximates to fair value where the instrument is on a short maturity or where they bear
interest at rates that approximate to the market.

The following table details the level of fair value hierarchy for the Group's financial assets and liabilities:

Financial Assets nanaial Liakl tiey
Lovel 1 Lovel 3
Cash and bank balances Lease liabilties
Level 3 Trade payables
Trade receivables — net Accruals
Other receivables Provisions
Other payables
Borrowings®

* Bormowings are purety in relation to the Group's revoiving credit facility which is discussed above. The amount drawn down from this facility at 31 December 2020 was Enil {2G19: Enil).

All trade and other payables are due in ane year or less, or on demand.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but is exposed to interest rate risk when it borrows funds at floating interest rates
through its revolving credit facility. Borrowings issued at variabie rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group evaluates
its risk appetite towards interest rate risks regularly to manage interest rate risk in relation to its revolving credit facility if deemed necessary.

The Group did not enter any hedging transactions during the current or prior year and as at 31 December 2020, the only floating rate to
which the Group was exposed was LIBCR, The Group's exposure to interest rates on financlal assets and financial liabilities is detailed In the
liquidity risk section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity
The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, and sensitivity analysis has been performed based on exposure to variable interest rates at the
reporting date.

If interest rates had been 50 basis pcints higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s net profit after tax would
increase / (decrease) by £nil (2019: Enil} and equity by Enil (2019: €nil).
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CONTINUED

27 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Capital risk
The Group manages its capital to ensure that all entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern whike maximising return to
siakeholders, as well as sustaining the future development of the business.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net cash, which includes cash and cash equivalents (note 17), and equity attributable to the
owners of the parent, comprising issued share capital (note 23), other reserves and retained eamings. The Board also considers the levels of
own shares held for employee share schemes, and the ability to issue new shares for acquisitions, in managing capital risk in the business.

For the whole of 2020, the Group benefited from its banking facilities, renewed in November 2019 which ran until Novermber 2021 with

an option to extend far a further 2 periods of 1 year each. Interest was calculated on LIBOR plus a margin dependent on the Group's

net leverage position, which was re-measured quarterly in fine with covenant testing. The Group's borrowings were subject to financial
covenants tested quarterly. The principal financial covenants under the facility were the ratic of net debt to Adjusted EBITDA {see note 1(b)
for explanation and reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA) would not exceed 2.5:1 and the ratio of EBITDA to net finance charges would not be
less than 4:1. In July 2020, the Group agreed with the banks to waive leverage and interest cover cavenants up to, and including, the testing
pericds to 30 September 2021. This was subject to minimum liquidity tests which ware reported monthly. At no point during the year did the
Group breach its covenants or its minimum liguidity tests.

From March 2021, the Group benefits from a new banking facility with NatWest, which features a committed £10m facility and an additional
uncommitted £15m accardion option, both of which can be used ta cover the Group's working capital and general corporate needs. The
facility is available untit March 2024 with an option to extend for a further two pericds of one year each. Interest is calculated on SONIA

plus a margin dependent on the Group's net leverage position, which is re-measured quarterly in line with covenant testing. The Group’s
borrowings are subject to financial covenants tested quarterly. The principal financial covenants under the facility are that the ratio of net debt
to Adjusted EBITDA (see note 1t for explanation and recanciliation of Adjusted EBITDA) shall not exceed 2.5:1 and the ratio of EBITDA to
net finance charges shall not be less than 4:1.

Currency risk

Substantially ali the Group's net assets are in the United Kingdom. Most of the revenue and profits are generated in the United Kingdom
and consequently foreign exchange risk is limited. The Group continues to monitor its exposure to currency risk, particularly as the business
expands into overseas teritories such as North America, howsver the results of the Group are not currently considered 10 be sensitive to
movements in currency rates.

28 Pension schemes

The Group contributes to individual and collective money purchase pension schemes In respect of Directors and employses once they have
completed the requisite period of service. The charge for the year in respect of these defined contribution schemes is shown in note 5.
Included within cther payables is an amount of £6.1m (2019; £0.1m) payable in respect of the money purchase pension schemes.

29 Capital commitments
At 31 December 2020, the Group had no capital commitments (2019: Enil).
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30 Related party transactions

Group
Key management compensation is disclosed in note 5. There were no other material related party transactions for the Group in the current

or prior year,
Company
The Company had the following transactions with subsidiaries during the year.

i} Interest
During the year, interest was recharged from subsidiary companies as follows:

2020 2019
N £m
Net interest payable 0.6 1.7

There were no borrowings at the year end.

The balances outstanding with subsidiary companies are disclosed in notes 16 and 18.

ii) Dividends

During the year the Company received £40.0m {2018: £nil} of dividends from its subsidiary, Centaur Communications Limited.
There were no other material related party transactions for the Company in the current or prior year.

Audit exemption

For the year ended 31 December 2020 the Company has provided a guarantee pursuant to sections 479A-C of Companies Act 2006 aver
the liabilities of the following subsidiaries arnd, as such, they are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual
financial statements, or preparation of individual fimrancial statements, as appropriate, for this financial year.

Sutstanding

abrities

Ny Cumpany numbaer jalid]
Centaur Communications Limited 01595235 52.6
Chiron Communications Limited 01081808 60.9
E-consultancy.com Limited 04047149 8.2
Mayfield Publishing Limited 02034820 0.4
Market Makers Incorporated Limited 050683707 2.2
Pro-Talk Limited 03939119 -
Taxbriefs Haldings Limited 03572069 -
Taxtriefs Limited 01247331 -
Thelawyer.com Limited 11491880 2.4
Xeim Limited 05243851 276
Your Business Magazine Limitad 01707331 -

See note 13 for changes to subsidiary holdings during the year.

31 Post balance date events
No material events have occurred after the reporting date.
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Five Year Record (Unaudited)

Re-presented?

2016" 2017+ 2018 2016 2020
Revenue (£m) 71.9 64.7 50.3 36.6 32.4
Operating loss (£m) 3.9 0.3) (20.3} 7.8) (2.3)
Adjusted operating profit / (loss) {£m) a1 4.1 (2.2 1.2)
Adjusted cperating profit / {loss) margin 13% 6% (4%) 3%)
Loss before tax (£m) 4.4 ©.7) (20.5) 8.1) {2.6)
Adjusted profit / (loss) before tax (Em) 8.8 3.7 (2.4 (1.5) (0.3)
Adjusted diluted EPS [pence) 4.5 1.8 {1.4) 0.3 0.3
Ordinary dividend per share (pence) 3.0 3.0 3.0 1.5 0.5
Net operating cash flow {£m) 14.0 12.1 5.6 4.7 24
Average permanent headcount (FTE) 554 589 758 317 282
Revenue per head (£000) 131 110 66 125 115
Re-presented?
2016" 2017 2018~ 2019 2020
Revenue oy type £m £m £m £m o
Premium Content 20.9 191 14.4 14.4 13.2
Marketing Services -~ 19 4.5 4.3 2.9
Training and Advisory 5.1 8.0 8.0 7.6 8.5
Events 25.7 187 6.5 6.4 2.5
Marketing Solutions 15.7 9.3 4.6 4.6 4.2
Recruitment Advertising 4.5 3.5 2.7 23 1.1
Telemarketing Services - 4.2 9.6 - -
71.9 B4.7 50.3 39.6 32.4
Re-presented®
2018 2617 2018 2019 2520
Othoa £m £m £m £m 2in
Goodwill and other intangible assets 88.8 94.2 781 B1.2 46.1
Other assets and liabilties {7.8) (13.4) {(11.5) 9.4) {7.2)
Net assets before net debt 81.2 80.8 66.6 518 38.9
Net {debt) / cash (14.1) 4.1 a.1 9.3 8.3
Tota equity 67.1 84.9 66.7 61.1 47.2

2 Seo note 1(a) for descnption of the pnor year re-presentation

* 2016 — 2018 have not been re-presented with regards to discontinued aperanons relating 1o the cassation of the MarketMakers telemarketing business in 2020, 2019 has been
re-presented for discontinued operations in line with the comparatives disclosed in these financial statements.

Marketing and Advertising Solutions revenue was split into Marketing Sclutions and Recruitment Advertising in the current year.
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